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IURC Cause No. ----

Verified Direct Testimony of John W. Wetzel, P.E. 

I. 
Introduction 

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS. 

My name is John W. Wetzel and my business address is Midwestern Engineers, 

Inc., 802 West Broadway Street, Loogootee, Indiana 47553. 

WHAT IS YOUR OCCUPATION AND BY WHOM ARE YOU 

EMPLOYED? 

I am a Professional Engineer, registered in the State of Indiana since 1998, 

specializing in Civil Engineering with an emphasis on water and wastewater. 

Since 1996, I have been employed by Midwestern Engineers, Inc. 

("Midwestern"). I am a shareholder in Midwestern and I currently serve as its 

President. I also serve Midwestern and our various clients as a Senior Project 

Engineer. 

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND, 

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE, AND PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS. 

I graduated from Purdue University in 1993 with a Bachelor of Science degree in 

Civil Engineering. After graduation, I worked for Commonwealth Engineers 

from May of 1993 to November of 1996, before joining Midwestern Engineers, 

Inc. in November of 1996. Over the course of my career, I have been the lead 

Senior Project Engineer on numerous water and wastewater projects throughout 
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the State of Indiana. I have personally completed preliminary engmeenng 

reports, developed funding alternatives, aided our clients in obtaining grant and 

loan funds from various state and federal agencies, designed and prepared plans 

and specifications, and overseen construction and engineering on these projects. 

A sampling of these projects include the Patoka Lake Regional Water & Sewer 

District Phase VI, VII, and VIII wat~r improvement projects, the Patoka Lake 

Regional Water & Sewer District Phase V sewer improvement project, the 

Morgan County Rural Water Corporation "Western Expansion Project" and 

"Connection to the City oflndianapolis Project," the Decatur County Rural Water 

Corporation Phase III, IV, and V water improvement projects, the Washington 

Township Water Authority water system relocations and improvements along the 

I-69 Corridor, and numerous water improvement projects for the Stucker Fork 

Conservancy District. 

In addition, I am a member of various professional organizations, including the 

American Water Works Association ("AWWA"), American Council of 

Engineering Companies of Indiana, and Chi Epsilon Civil Engineering Honor 

Society. Other members of my firm and I are also active in the Indiana Rural 

Water Association and the Alliance of Indiana Rural Water. 

HA VE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THE COMMISSION 

PRIOR TO THIS CAUSE? 
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Yes, I have. Various other members of my firm and I have previously offered 

testimony and exhibits to the Commission on behalf of Stucker Fork Conservancy 

District, Washington Township Water Corporation of Monroe County, the City of 

Boonville, and other clients. 

HOW LONG HAS MIDWESTERN BEEN ENGAGED AND PROVIDING 

ENGINEERING SERVICES IN INDIANA? 

In 1959, Midwestern was founded with a primary focus on providing water and 

wastewater advice and design and construction engineering services to 

municipalities, regional water and sewer districts, conservancy districts, and 

nonprofit rural water and wastewater utility corporations throughout the State of 

Indiana. 

II. 
Experience and Background in Working with Gibson Water 

CAN YOU DESCRIBE YOU AND FIRM'S EXPERIENCE IN WORKING 

WITH GIBSON WATER? 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. ("MEI") has provided engmeenng services to 

Gibson Water, Inc. since the 1970's. MEI was the engineer of record for the 

initial Gibson Water construction project in the late 1970's which brought 

potable water to many rural areas in Gibson County. This project consisted of a 

master meter pit connection to the City of Evansville, located south of the 

Southwest corner of the I-64/U.S. 41 Intersection, aJ6" main from the meter pit 
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to a booster station located along CR 1250 S, a 12" main from the booster station 

northward to a 300,000 gallon elevated water storage tank located approximately 

3 miles north of the Town of Fort Branch, and approximately 110 miles of 

distribution and transmission main. MEI also completed engineering work on 

two (2) distribution system expansions in the 1980's, one in 1984 and one in 

1987, as well as engineering on an additional 300,000 gallon standpipe in 1989. 

Next, in 1996 MEI provided engineering on a number of water main relocation 

projects made necessary due to road/railroad improvements related to the 

development of the Toyota Manufacturing Facility ("Toyota") site between Fort 

Branch and Princeton. Also undertaken in 1996 was a system expansion project 

aimed at increasing available potable water flows for Toyota. This project 

included a new 20" transmission main from CR 1200 S northward to the west 

side of the Toyota site and a new 1.5 MG elevated water storage tank. Next, in 

2008 MEI completed engineering on both a water main relocation project caused 

by the construction of the new 1-69 and a distribution system expansion project 

which made potable water available to the Community of East Mount Carmel. 

Also, in 2012 MEI completed engineering on distribution system improvements 

that ran potable water to the Gibson County Coal Company facilities. We have 

also completed various miscellaneous consulting engineering type services for 

Gibson Water since its inception in the mid to late 1970's. 

BASED ON YOUR EXPERIENCE IN WORKING WITH GIBSON 

WATER, ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH GIBSON WATER'S SYSTEM 

4 
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AND ITS ANTICIPATED OPERATIONAL, MAINTENANCE, AND 

CAPITAL NEEDS? 

Yes, I am. 

Q. WAS YOUR FIRM RETAINED BY GIBSON WATER, INC. ("GIBSON 

WATER") IN CONNECTION WITH THIS PROCEEDING? 

A. Yes, our firm was retained to: (i) analyze possible improvements to its 

distribution system to improve performance; (ii) increase system pressure in 

critical areas during peak demand periods; (iii) provide looping of the network to 

eliminate dead end piping segments and improve water quality in those areas; and 

(iv) assist in developing rates in an amount sufficient to cover the ongoing 

operational and maintenance needs of the utility. 

Q. WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY IN THIS CAUSE? 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to: (i) outline Gibson Water's requested relief in 

this Cause; (ii) detail Gibson Water's existing system and needs; and (iii) describe 

the capital improvement projects proposed by Gibson Water in this Cause, as well 

as the need for, and funding of~ the same. 

III. 
Gibson Water's Request for Relief 

Q. HAVE YOU REVIEWED THE PETITION INITIATING THIS CAUSE? 

A. Yes, I have. For the Commission's convenience, I have attached a copy of the 

Petition to my testimony as Petitioner's Exhibit 2. It is my understanding that the 
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Petition is being filed simultaneously with my testimony and exhibits. Gibson 

Water seeks approval to incur debt to complete certain projects and adjust its rates 

and charges to meet the needs of the utility. 

WITH WHOM DOES GIBSON WATER SEEK TO INCUR DEBT? 

The Board has considered a variety of options, but has decided to pursue the 

issuance of long-term debt to the United States Department of Agriculture -

Rural Development ("Rural Development") and the State Revolving Fund 

("SRF"). 

DO YOU AND YOUR FIRM HA VE EXPERIENCE IN WORKING ON 

BOTH RURAL DEVELOPMENT-FUNDED AND SRF-FUNDED 

PROJECTS? 

Yes. Our firm has done a number of Rural Development and SRF-funded 

projects. 

HAS GIBSON WATER PREPARED AN ACCOUNTING STUDY THAT 

DETAILS THE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROPOSED 

IMPROVEMENTS AND THE CORRESPONDING DEBT FROM RURAL 

DEVELOPMENT AND SRF? 

Yes, the Board of Directors for Gibson Water authorized H. J. Umbaugh & 

Associates, LLP ("Umbaugh") to prepare an accounting report ("Accounting 

Report") that summarizes the cost of the anticipated capital projects, the financial 

impact of the proposed debt, and the ongoing financial needs of the utility. A 
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copy of the Accounting Report is attached to the Prefiled Direct Testimony of 

Scott A. Miller, C.P.A. as Petitioner's Exhibit 7. 

IV. 
Overview of Gibson Water's System 

CAN YOU GENERALLY DESCRIBE GIBSON WATER'S SERVICE 

AREA AND CUSTOMER BASE? 

Yes, I can. Gibson Water is a nonprofit corporation providing water service to 

approximately 150 square miles of rural and urban areas in Gibson County, 

Indiana. The general location of Gibson Water's facilities are described in the 

attached Petitioner's Exhibit 3. With its existing facilities, Gibson Water serves 

approximately 1,7 50 retail customers. Gibson Water also provides wholesale 

water service to the Town of Haubstadt ("Haubstadt") and retail service to the 

Toyota Manufacturing Facility ("Toyota") near Princeton, Indiana, pursuant to 

two (2) separate water service agreements. 

IS PETITIONER'S EXHIBIT 3 A DEFINITIVE MAP OF GIBSON 

WATER'S SERVICE TERRITORY? 

No, it is not. Petitioner's Exhibit 3 is intended to show the location of Gibson 

Water's existing facilities and where its current customers are located. As has 

been the case in the past, Gibson Water can extend its existing facilities or make 

its service available to areas and customers outside of the area identified on 

Petitioner's Exhibit 3 when there is a need. 
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16. Q. MR. WETZEL, PLEASE DESCRIBE THESE WATER SERVICE 

AGREEMENTS IN MORE DETAIL? 

A. The Town of Haubstadt is served at wholesale through a master meter located 

near the intersection of U.S. Route 41 and County Road 925 S. Haubstadt uses an 

average of approximately 124,000 gallons per day ("GPD"), and is Gibson 

Water's second largest user. The wholesale Water Supply Contract between 

Gibson Water and Haubstadt was approved by the Commission in Cause No. 

43918 on November 4, 2010. 

The Toyota facility located on the east side of U.S. Highway 41 between Fort 

Branch and Princeton is Gibson Water's largest customer, consuming an average 

volume of approximately 700,000 GPD. The Water Supply Service Contract 

between Gibson Water and Toyota was approved by the Commission in Cause 

No. 40755 on March 26, 1997. 

17. Q. MR. WETZEL, CAN YOU GENERALLY DESCRIBE GIBSON WATER'S 

EXISTING FACILITIES? 

A. Yes, I can. Gibson Water purchases its entire supply from the City of Evansville, 

Indiana ("Evansville"), pursuant to a Water Purchase Agreement entered into on 

July 13, 1977. Under the terms of that Agreement, Evansville provides a not to 

exceed amount of 2.5 MGD of potable treated water. The term of the Agreement 

is 50 years from the date of initial delivery of water. 
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The master meter pit connection to Evansville is located south of the southwest 

corner of the intersection of 1-64 and US Highway 41. Water from this meter pit 

flows northward via a 16" main under I-64 to a booster station located along 

County Road 1250 South. This 16" transmission main is a critical component of 

the system as it is the sole feed from Evansville into the Gibson Water system. 

The original booster pumping station for Gibson Water was renovated in 1996, 

and now contains two 1,500 GPM high service pumps and one 800 GPM pump. 

The booster station pumps water northward, through primarily a 20" transmission 

main, to the two (2) elevated water storage tanks located at the Toyota site. One 

of the tanks (i.e. Tank 1) has a capacity of 300,000 gallons and is located on the 

west side of the Toyota site. The second tank (i.e. Tank 2) has a capacity of 

1,500,000 gallons and is located on the east side of the Toyota site. Both tanks 

have the same overflow elevation (approximately 669 feet). The distribution 

system also contains a third tank (i.e. Tank 3), which is a 300,000 gallon 

standpipe with an overflow elevation (approximately 669 feet) matching the other 

tanks. This tank is located north of Tanks 1 and 2, approximately 3 miles east of 

Princeton and "floats" with the other tanks. 

The distribution system contains approximately 190 miles of 2-inch through 20-

inch diameter water mains. The entire system operates on one pressure zone (due 

to all tanks having the same overflow elevation). However, system operating 

pressure varies dramatically throughout the service area due to the large amount 

of small diameter piping (which causes reduced pressure during peak demand 
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periods) and the significant variation in ground elevation. During high demand 

periods, inadequate operating pressures have been observed at a number of 

locations within the distribution system network. Most of these areas lie at 

remote locations relative to existing storage, pumping, or large transmission main 

facilities and are plagued by undersized and/or unlooped mains which are 

incapable of sustaining adequate pressure during peak demand periods. Some of 

these areas are southwest of Princeton, north of Owensville, south and west of 

Haubstadt and north of the I-64/I-69 interchange. Gibson Water wholesales water 

(approximately 124,000 gpd average) to the Town of Haubstadt through a master 

meter located near the intersection of US Highway 41 and CR 925, and also sells 

approximately 700,000 gpd of water to Toyota, its largest customer. Gibson 

Water also has emergency interconnections with both the Town of Fort Branch, 

Indiana ("Fort Branch") and the Town of Owensville, Indiana ("Owensville'). 

Both Fort Branch and Owensville each operate a number of groundwater wells 

and a treatment plant to serve their respective communities. These 

interconnections would only be used in an emergency situation. No water was 

sold or received via these emergency interconnections in 2016 or 2017. 

CAN YOU DESCRIBE THE CONDITION OF THESE EXISTING 

FACILITIES? 

Yes. The original portions of the distribution system consist of ductile iron and 

polyvinyl chloride ("PVC") pipes. The distribution system was subsequently 

expanded over the years to serve developing or unserved areas. The current 

10 
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distribution system contains approximately 190 miles of pipe, much of which is 

40 years old. Typical useful life expectancy of ductile iron or PVC main piping is 

estimated at 70 to 80 years. Therefore, the existing water distribution system 

network is suitable for continued operation, assuming normal maintenance 

activities, with significant useful life remaining. However, as discussed above, 

system operating pressure varies dramatically throughout the service area due to 

the large amount of small diameter piping (which causes reduced pressure during 

peak demand periods) and the significant variation in ground elevation. During 

high demand periods, inadequate operating pressures have been observed at a 

number of locations within the distribution system network. Most of these areas 

lie at remote locations relative to existing storage, pumping, or large transmission 

main facilities and are plagued by undersized and/or unlooped mains which are 

incapable of sustaining adequate pressure during peak demand periods. 

There have been no significant improvements to the booster pumping station 

since it was renovated in 1996. Twenty years of growth in the customer base, 

plus increasing flow demands from Toyota and other industrial and commercial 

users have taxed the station in recent years. The pumps require extended and 

excessive run times to meet current maximum day demands. The pumps have 

been well maintained, but they are now beyond their expected useful life of 15 to 

20 years and are experiencing reduced pumping capacity due to age and wear. 

The pump station building itself has been well maintained and is suitable for 

continued service. 

11 
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The three (3) elevated water storage tanks are generally in good condition and 

provide storage approximately equal to one and a half (1.5) days based upon the 

current average daily demand for the system. Tank 1 is approximately 40 years 

old; Tank 2 is approximately 20 years old; and Tank 3 is approximately 30 years 

old. With proper maintenance and regular inspection, the tanks should provide 

many more years of continued service. 

DO YOU ANTICIPATE A GROWTH IN THE DEMAND FOR WATER 

FROM GIBSON WATER? 

Population growth for Gibson County was approximately 12% for the period 

1960 to 2010. After the original system was installed, Gibson Water has 

periodically expanded and installed water mains to serve sporadic development as 

it has occurred. However, as with the County wide population growth between 

1960 and 2010, this expansion has been somewhat limited but steady. We have 

utilized projected county wide population growth along with current water 

demands to forecast projected residential, commercial, and wholesale water 

demands. The Indiana Business Research Center projects 3.6% growth in the 

population of Gibson County over the 20 year planning period; thus, we assumed 

a corresponding 3 .6% growth in the residential, commercial, and wholesale 

demands for the same period. 

A significant impact on future water consumption is expected to be created by 

Toyota, which is in the planning stages of a $600 million investment in its 

12 
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assembly plant. With the associated production and labor force expansion, an 

increase of 8% has been added to the current industrial water demand. However, 

should additional industrial users locate within the service territory boundaries, 

additional water demand increases over and above this estimated increase could 

be seen. 

Based upon the above, this results in a projected peak day water demand for the 

plan year 2037 of approximately 2.924 million gallons, an increase of 14% over 

2017 peak day demands. 

IN LIGHT OF THE NEEDS OF CURRENT AND FUTURE CUSTOMERS, 

DOES GIBSON WATER NEED TO UPGRADE AND MAKE 

IMPROVEMENTS TO ITS EXISTING FACILITIES? 

Yes, it does. In consultation with Gibson Water's Board and staff, Midwestern 

has identified a number of improvements that need to be made in order to address 

service reliability issues for Gibson Water's current customers, as well as to 

ensure the quality and reliability of service for future customers that are 

anticipated to connect to Gibson Water's system. By completing the proposed 

improvements, Gibson Water will be able to offer better service to its existing 

customers and have adequate capacity and facilities available for new customers 

when they need service. 

13 
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HA VE YOU PREPARED A PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT 

WHICH DESCRIBES GIBSON WATER'S EXISTING SYSTEM AND THE 

IMPROVEMENTS THE UTILITY PROPOSES TO COMPLETE? 

Yes. I have prepared a Preliminary Engineering Report ("PER") dated 

September, 2017, that describes Gibson Water's existing facilities, current 

deficiencies, and provides recommendations and probable costs for enhancements 

which will allow Gibson Water to meet regulatory requirements under all 

operating conditions. For the Commission's reference, I am attaching a copy of 

the PER as Petitioner's Exhibit 4. 

MR. WETZEL, PLEASE EXPLAIN THE PURPOSE OF THE PER? 

The purpose of the PER is two-fold. First, the PER is a planning document 

required by many state and federal agencies as part of the process of obtaining 

financial assistance for development of drinking water, wastewater, solid waste, 

and storm water projects. An applicant for funding from either the Rural 

Development or SRF programs, must submit a PER for review and approval. The 

PER describes the existing facilities, identifies current system deficiencies/needs, 

analyzes alternatives aimed at addressing these deficiencies/needs, proposes 

selected improvements, defines project costs, and provides information critical to 

the underwriting process. Second, the PER also provides justification as to why 

Gibson Water should be authorized to incur debt and adjust its rates and charges 

in this Cause. 

14 



1 23. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Q. 

A. 

Verified Direct Testimony of John W. Wetzel, P.E. 
On Behalf of Petitioner, Gibson Water, Inc. 

Petitioner's Exhibit No. 1 
IURC Cause No. ---

CAN YOU PLEASE BRIEFLY EXPLAIN THE CONTENTS OF THE 

PER? 

Yes, I can. The PER includes seven (7) chapters, along with detailed Tables, 

Figures, and Appendices supporting each chapter. 

Chapter 1 describes the general project location, environmental resources present, 

population trends within the service area and the existing and projected 20-year 

service area. 

Chapter 2 explains the existing water facilities (supply, distribution, pumping, 

storage), the wholesale and large volume customers, condition of existing 

facilities, and the financial status of the existing system. 

Chapter 3 discusses the need for the proposed projects by identifying areas within 

the distribution system that have experienced low residual pressures and 

describing how small mains and dead-end pipe segments contribute to and 

exacerbate this problem, discusses the aging piping and pumping infrastructure, 

lists current customers and water demands, and projects future water demands. 

Chapter 4 describes the vanous hydraulic modeling simulations that were 

completed on the system and presents the results of the modeling. Due to system 

deficiencies identified in part through the modeling, this Chapter also covers 

possible improvement alternatives considered to address the deficiencies, 

including a "No Action" alternative. Next, design criteria, maps, environmental 

impacts, land requirements, potential construction impacts, sustainability 
15 
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considerations, and cost estimates were provided for the various improvement 

alternatives identified. 

Chapter 5 discusses how each of the possible improvement alternatives were 

evaluated, presents the life cycle cost analysis, compares the hydraulic modeling 

results of the system with the proposed improvements vs. that of the existing 

system to ensure that the proposed improvements positively impact the areas of 

low residual pressures, and also describes the proposed improvement's non-

monetary factors like traffic impacts, construction noise, removal of trees and 

shrubs, impacts to businesses, service interruptions, and community impacts. 

Chapter 6 describes the proposed project in detail, provides a timeline schedule, 

discusses permit requirements and sustainability considerations, and provides 

probable total project cost estimates, annual existing and projected operating 

budgets, and gives general debt repayment information including an asset reserve 

schedule and projected annual revenue requirements. 

Finally, Chapter 7 includes conclusions and recommendations for the scope of the 

capital improvements. 

III. 
Proposed Capital Improvements 

in the Preliminary Engineering Report 

MR. WETZEL, CAN YOU DESCRIBE THE PROCESS USED TO 

DEVELOP THE LIST OF PROPOSED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

16 
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SHOWN IN YOUR PER AND ALSO ON PAGE 3 OF THE ACCOUNTING 

REPORT? 

Yes. The PER was used to identify the distribution system improvements needed 

to eliminate low residual pressure conditions in portions of the system during 

periods of high demand. A hydraulic model was created to evaluate the 

performance of the system and to determine the requirements for water main 

extensions or system reinforcements needed to improve system performance. The 

hydraulic model was also used to evaluate booster station performance and to 

identify pumping upgrades needed to meet projected peak day demands. Another 

factor in consideration of the proposed improvements was the fact that a single, 

16" transmission main carries water from the meter pit connection to Evansville 

across I-64, to the booster station located along County Road 1250 South. This is 

the sole feed from Evansville into the Gibson Water system. If there is a problem 

with this main (especially under 1-64), Gibson Water's entire system would have 

no source of supply and Gibson Water would be unable to provide service (once it 

exhausts the water in its storage facilities). 

Gibson Water's existing distribution system is plagued by a number of dead end 

water mains and the lack of system looping to provide redundant bidirectional 

feeds to critical areas. Low residual pressures occur in a number of these areas 

during peak water demand conditions. Improvement and reinforcement of the 

system is essential to improve carrying capacity and hydraulic gradients, 

particularly in high elevation areas. 

17 
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WHAT ARE YOUR RECOMMENDED CAPITAL PROJECT 

ALTERNATIVES BASED ON THE DETAILED ANALYSIS IN THE PER? 

The following alternatives, expressed as water main extensions, are recommended 

to ensure Gibson Water's ability to adequately meet projected maximum daily 

and peak hourly demand conditions: 

Alternative 2, the County Road 225 West Water Main Extension is essential to 

provide connectivity between the portions of the distribution system west of Fort 

Branch and Haubstadt. 

Alternative 3, the State Route 68 Water Main includes an 8-inch main that 

increases system carrying capacity to areas northwest of the I-69/I-64 interchange. 

Alternative 6, the County Roads 200 South and 350 West Water Mains include 6-

inch and 8-inch mains that are needed to improve service to a high elevation rural 

area west of Princeton and will also supplement existing 3-inch diameter dead end 

water mains along County Road 200 South and 350 West. 

Alternative 7, the State Road 64 Water Main Extension includes a 6-inch main 

that is needed to complete a system loop and eliminate poor water quality in the 

dead-end water main on State Road 64 in the northwest portion of the distribution 

system. 

Alternative 8, the Parallel Booster Station Supply Main plus Booster Pump 

Replacement includes a 16-inch main that is necessary to provide a redundant 
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1 transmission main to convey water from the connection point with Evansville to 

2 the Gibson Water Booster Station and northward to County Road 1200 South. 

3 This is essential so that service can continue to be provided to the entire system 

4 should the sole existing main have a problem. This alternative also includes 

5 upgrades to Gibson Water's high service pumping equipment within the booster 

6 station to ensure the ability of the system to meet projected maximum day 

7 demand conditions for plan year 2037. 

8 26. Q. IN YOUR PROFESSIONAL OPINION, ARE EACH OF THE PROPOSED 

9 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE PER AND IDENTIFIED ON 

10 PAGE 3 OF THE ACCOUNTING REPORT REASONABLE AND 

11 NECESSARY FOR GIBSON WATER TO PROVIDE SAFE, EFFICIENT 

12 SERVICE TO ITS CUSTOMERS? 

13 A. Yes, they are. As fully discussed 111 the PER, each of the recommended 

14 improvements are intended to address specific service quality and reliability 

15 concerns with Gibson Water's existing facilities. Upon completion, Gibson 

16 Water will have upgraded distribution facilities that will be able to meet projected 

17 demands, improve residual water pressure and service to its current and future 

18 customers, and make its system more reliable in case of an emergency. 

19 27. Q. WILL THE RURAL DEVELOPMENT AND SRF LOANS PROVIDE 

20 FUNDS FOR ALL OF THE IMPROVEMENTS PROPOSED BY GIBSON 

21 WATER? 
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Yes. Midwestern estimated the costs of the recommended improvements in 

Chapter 6 of the PER. We then provided these costs to Gibson Water's financial 

advisor, Mr. Miller, who has included them in the Accounting Report. Gibson 

Water is seeking authority to incur long-term debt in an amount sufficient to 

cover the cost of constructing the proposed improvements. 

WHAT AUTHORITY IS GIBSON WATER REQUESTING WITH 

RESPECT TO THE ISSUANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT? 

Gibson Water is requesting authority to issue a 40-year note in an estimated 

amount of $2,438,000 to Rural Development and a 35-year note in an estimated 

amount of $1, 143 ,00 to SRF. These amounts cover the probable construction 

cost of the alternatives recommended above, as well as a 10% construction 

contingency and estimated non-construction costs. 

DO YOU BELIEVE THESE COST ESTIMATES IN THE PER ARE 

REASONABLE? 

Yes, I do. Based on our firm's experience with similar projects in the past, I 

believe our estimates are reasonable projections of the actual costs that will be 

incurred for the recommended improvements. I must caution, however, that they 

are estimated costs and there will no doubt be some variation in final cost for 

most, if not all, of the components of the recommended improvements. 

WHAT ARE THE CONSEQUENCES IF GIBSON WATER DOES NOT 

COMPLETE THE RECOMMENDED IMPROVEMENTS AT THIS TIME? 
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The "No Action" Alternative discussed in the PER assumes no improvements are 

made to Gibson Water's distribution system. Without improvements, areas of low 

residual pressure during periods of high demand will remain. The system may be 

unable to meet projected peak day flows. Additionally, areas of potential 

development may not be able to be adequately served. Finally, Gibson Water 

would continue to be exposed to a potential system-wide outage should issues 

develop with the existing supply main. We determined that the "No Action" 

alternative does not meet Gibson Water's long-term goals and thus was 

eliminated from consideration. 

HAS RURAL DEVELOPMENT AND THE SRF PROGRAM APPROVED 

THE PER? 

Yes, Rural Development has approved the PER and the proposed improvements 

contained therein. I understand that the SRF Program will complete its review 

and hopefully approval of the PER within the next two (2) weeks. 

HAS GIBSON WATER RECEIVED A COMMITMENT FROM RURAL 

DEVELOPMENT THAT IT WILL MAKE THE CONTEMPLATED 

LOAN? 

Yes. Gibson Water has received a Letter of Condition which outlines the terms 

and conditions upon which Rural Development will issue the loan. 
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IN SUPPORT OF ITS REQUEST TO ADJUST ITS RATES AND 

CHARGES, IS GIBSON WATER INCLUDING EXPENSES OR 

AMOUNTS FOR PERIODIC MAINTENANCE? 

Yes, it is. The details of the individual components of Gibson Water's revenue 

requirements are discussed in much greater detail in the pre-filed testimony and 

accounting papers of Mr. Miller. 

DO YOU AGREE WITH THE PERIODIC MAINTENANCE ITEMS AND 

AMOUNTS SET FORTH IN MR. MILLER'S PRE-FILED TESTIMONY 

AND EXHIBITS? 

Yes, I do. I have reviewed the periodic maintenance items and amounts contained 

on page 10 of Mr. Miller's Accounting Report, and I believe these items and 

amounts are consistent with the expenses that Gibson Water will incur. 

CAN YOU EXPLAIN THE PROCESS BY WHICH GIBSON WATER 

DETERMINED AN APPROPRIATE AMOUNT FOR PERIODIC 

MAINTENANCE EXPENSE? 

Yes, I can. I understand that Gibson Water's last rate case was in 1986. 

Considering the length of time since its last rate case, the Gibson Water Board 

requested that Umbaugh and Midwestern review the Gibson Water's operations to 

ensure the rates were sufficient to cover the ongoing needs of the utility. As part 
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of this process, Midwestern was responsible for rev1ewmg the periodic 

maintenance expenses to determine if such amounts were an accurate reflection of 

what Gibson Water either had experienced or would experience upon completion 

of the new improvements. I, along with other members of Midwestern, and 

Gibson Water representatives reviewed each of the individual expenses. 

Midwestern also relied on its recent experience in working with clients that 

performed similar types of periodic maintenance projects. We then used this 

updated information to estimate the amount of maintenance expenses that Gibson 

Water could expect to incur on a prospective basis, prepared an exhibit that 

summarized and detailed each item of periodic maintenance and the estimated 

cost, and then discussed the exhibit. After a few iterations, the periodic 

maintenance expenses were finalized and then included on page 10 of Mr. 

Miller's Accounting Report. 

DO YOU BELIEVE THE AMOUNTS FOR PERIODIC MAINTENANCE 

ARE APPROPRIATE AND REASONABLE? 

Yes, I do. After significant review and research, I believe the items and amounts 

detailed in the Umbaugh Accounting Report are an accurate reflection of the type 

and amount of expenses that Gibson Water will experience for periodic 

maintenance. 

DOES THIS CONCLUDE YOUR TESTIMONY? 

Yes, it does. 
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STATE OF INDIANA 

INDIANA UTILITY REGULATORY COMMISSION 

IN THE MATTER OF THE PETITION OF 
GIBSON WATER, INC., A NONPROFIT 
CORPORATION, FOR AUTHORITY TO 
ISSUE LONG-TERM DEBT AND FOR 
APPROVAL OF A CHANGE IN RATES 
AND CHARGES 

) 
) 
) 
) CAUSE NO. 
) 
) 
) 

VERIFIED PETITION 

TO THE INDIANA UTILITY REGULATORY COMMISSION: 

------

Petitioner, Gibson Water, Inc. ("Gibson Water"), hereby files this Verified Petition 

("Petition") with the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission ("Commission") seeking authority 

to issue long-term indebtedness and adjust its rates and charges. In support of its Petition, 

Gibson Water states: 

1. Gibson Water is a nonprofit corporation duly organized and existing under and 

through the laws of the state of Indiana. Gibson Water's principal office is located at 517 East 

1250 South, Haubstadt, Indiana 47639. 

2. Gibson Water is a public utility as defined by Indiana Code§ 8-1-2-1 and as such 

is under the jurisdiction of the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission ("Commission"). Further, 

Gibson Water believes that by virtue of Indiana Code§§ 8-1-2-42.7, 8-1-2-61, 8-1-2-78, 8-1-2-

79, 8-1-2-83, and 8-1-2-125, the Commission has jurisdiction over this matter. Additional 

statutes that may be applicable to this Cause may be found at Indiana Code § 8-1-2-1 et seq. 

3. Gibson Water owns and operates transmission facilities, distribution facilities, 

land, land rights, equipment, materials, supplies, working capital, and other property which is 

used and useful for the rendering of potable water service to its customers. 



4. Gibson Water provides potable water in various rural and municipal areas in 

Gibson County, Indiana. Petitioner serves approximately 1,750 residential customers, and 

provides wholesale water service to the Town of Haubstadt ("Town") and retail service to its 

largest customer, the Toyota Manufacturing Facility ("Toyota"), near Princeton, Indiana. The 

Water Supply Contracts with Toyota and the Town were approved by the Commission in Cause 

Nos. 40755 and 43918, respectively. 

5. Gibson Water purchases its entire supply from the City of Evansville, Indiana 

("Evansville"), pursuant to a Water Purchase Agreement entered into on July 13, 1977. On 

December 21, 2017, Gibson Water filed its most recent request to change its water tracking 

adjustment applicable to all customers, which is based solely upon the change in the cost of 

purchased water from Evansville. 

6. Gibson Water's current base rates and charges for water utility service were 

approved by order of this Commission in Cause No. 37829, issued on February 26, 1986. These 

rates and charges are more than thirty-two (32) years old, and no longer produce revenues 

sufficient for Gibson Water to pay all the expenses incident to the operation of the Utility, 

including, but not necessarily limited to, maintenance and repair costs, operating charges, interest 

charges on bonds or other obligations, monies for a sinking fund for the liquidation of bonds or 

other evidences of indebtedness (including a debt service reserve), and funds to be used for 

working capital, making extensions and replacements, and paying applicable taxes. The existing 

rates are, therefore, unlawful. 

7. Gibson Water will propose in this case new water rates and charges which will be 

sufficient to pay its expenses as set forth in paragraph 6 above. 

8. Gibson Water does not currently have any outstanding indebtedness to the federal 

government. However, Gibson Water proposes in this Cause to incur long-term debt with the 

2 



United States Department of Agriculture - - Rural Development and Indiana State Revolving 

Loan Fund Program, the proceeds from which will be used to complete certain water system 

improvements. 

9. On January 29, 2018, Gibson Water provided notice to the Commission and the 

Indiana Office of the Utility Consumer Counselor ("OUCC') of its intent to file this Petition. 

Pursuant to IC 8-l-2-42.7(d)(2), Gibson Water is designating a historic test year that includes the 

twelve (12) month period ended August 31, 2017, with adjustments permitted for changes that 

are known, fixed, and measurable and in effect within twelve (12) months after the test year. 

10. Included with this petition, Gibson Water is submitting its case in chief which 

includes the pre-filed testimony and exhibits of Scott Miller, Certified Public Accountant, and 

John Wetzel, Professional Engineer. 

11. Gibson Water's case in chief includes, among other things, work papers, revenue 

requirements, revenues, expenses, balance sheet and income statements, and proforma tariff 

sheets. Gibson Water requests that a pre-hearing conference be held in this matter as soon as 

possible. 

12. Service of all petitions, motions, reports, testimony, exhibits, or papers of any 

kind, to be served upon Gibson Water should be served on Gibson Water's counsel of record as 

here noted: 

J. Christopher Janak, Esq. 
Kristina Kern Wheeler, Esq. 
Bose McKinney & Evans LLP 
111 Monument Circle, Suite 2700 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317) 684-5000 Telephone 
(317) 684-5173 Fax 
cjanak(Q),boselaw.com 
kwheeler@boselaw.com 
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WHEREFORE, Petitioner, the Gibson Water, Inc., respectfully requests that the 

Commission enter this Petition of record, set this matter for a preliminary hearing as soon as 

possible, hold such further hearings as the Commission believes necessary and appropriate, 

authorize Gibson Water to incur long-term debt as supported by the evidence, accept a new 

schedule of rates and charges, and for all other relief justice would require in the proceedings. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

~u'.islo , er J 'k, Esq, 

Attorney No. 849 -49 
Kristina Kern Wheeler, Esq. 
Attorney No. 20957-49A 
Bose McKinney & Evans LLP 
111 Monument Circle, Suite 2700 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317) 684-5000 
(317) 684-5173 Fax 

Counsel for Petitioner, 
Gibson Water, Inc. 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

INTRODUCTION 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Gibson Water, Inc. is a non-profit corporation organized to provide reliable water service to rural and urban 

areas in Gibson County, Indiana. Gibson Water, Inc. purchases water from the Evansville Water Company. 

The water is delivered through a Master Meter connection located near the intersection of U.S. 41 and 

Interstate 64 (1-64) in southern Gibson County. 

The purpose of all public water systems is to provide utility customers with an aesthetically pleasing and 

affordable water supply that is adequate in terms of quantity and delivery pressure. Water works facilities 

must be capable of meeting the projected future demands of the utility over the course of a reasonable 

planning period. The findings presented herein are intended to provide the Gibson Water officials with the 

information and guidance needed to make sound decisions regarding the water supply facilities. 

Toward that end, Gibson Water, Inc. wishes to make improvements to its distribution system to improve 

performance, increase system pressure in critical areas during peak demand periods, and provide looping 

of the network to eliminate dead end piping segments. Looping of the system will also serve to improve 

water quality in areas where dead end mains are present. The purpose of this Preliminary Engineering 

Report (PER) is to present the results of an evaluation of the water distribution system and to provide 

recommendations for enhancements which will allow the Utility to meet regulatory requirements under all 

operating conditions. 

As part of this study, a computer-based hydraulic model of the water distribution system was generated to 

evaluate the system and the beneficial impact of proposed improvements. The system was modeled using 

WaterCad, a pressure piping network program developed by Bentley Systems. 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

CHAPTER 1 - PROJECT PLANNING 

1.1 PROJECT LOCATION 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Gibson Water, Inc. (Gibson Water) is a non-profit corporation organized to provide reliable water 

services to rural and urban areas in Gibson County, Indiana. Gibson Water's administrative offices 

and pumping station are located approximately 2 miles south of Town of Haubstadt at the 

intersection of County Roads 50 E and 1250 S. Figure 1 (Appendix A) is a General Location 

Map showing the location of Gibson County. Figure 2 (Appendix A) presents the approximate 

service area of Gibson Water within the county. 

Gibson County is located in the southwest comer of Indiana above Posey and Vanderburg counties. 

The county is considered the northern portion of the Evansville, IN Metropolitan Statistical Area. 

The county seat is the City of Princeton and the county has ten townships. Table 1 presents U.S. 

Geological Survey and Public Land Survey System information for the service area. 

Table 1 

USGS and Public Land Survey System Information 

USGS 

I Quadrangle County Townships 
J\faps 

Montgomery, 

Princeton, Haubstadt, 
Patoka, 

Owensville, Gibson 
Union, 

Johnson 
Francisco 

Center 

Barton 

Boonville Warrick Greer 

1.2 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES PRESENT 

A full environmental report, containing pertinent environmental information for the proposed 

projects, has also been prepared. Flood plain maps (Figures B-1 and B-2) and wetlands maps 

(Figures B-3 and B-4) and a list of rare and endangered species in Gibson County are provided in 

Appendix B. 

The principal environmental resources with the Gibson Water service area are the Wabash River, 

Patoka River and Broad Pond. 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

1.2.1 Wabash River 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

The Wabash River forms the western boundary of Gibson County with the State of Illinois. The 

Wabash River drains the western portion of the Gibson Water service area through numerous rivers, 

streams and creeks. Principal among these are: Shelton Creek; McCarty Ditch; Blair Ditch; Scott 

Ditch; Barren Creek; Higginbotham Ditch and the Black River. 

The Wabash River is not listed as a scenic river in the Indiana Code (See Appendix C). The river 

is not listed by the Indiana Dept. of Natural Resources (DNR) as a special stream. In fact, DNR 

does not list ant water body in Gibson County as a Special Stream. DNR does list the Wabash 

River as an Outstanding River in Gibson County (See Appendix C). An Outstanding River is defined 

as a stream in the State which has environmental or aesthetic value. 

The Wabash River is not included in the Indiana Dept. of Environmental Management's (IDEM's) 

Listing of Indiana Waters Designated for Special Protection. 

None of the Wabash River tributaries in Gibson County are listed as Special Streams, Outstanding 

Rivers or identified for special protection. 

1.2.2 Patoka River 

The Patoka River is located in the Wabash Lowland region, with average elevations about 500 feet 

above mean sea level. The Patoka River begins in Orange County in the Hoosier National Forest 

at an elevation of approximately 660' m.s.l. The River flows westward approximately 140 miles, 

passing just north of Crawford County before draining to Patoka Lake. The River then continues 

through the City of Jasper in Dubois County, Winslow in Pike County, then north of Princeton in 

Gibson County, before meeting the Wabash River near Mount Carmel, Illinois. 

South Fork headwaters of the Patoka River are located in far northern Warrick County at 

approximately 500' above m.s.l. The south fork flows northwesterly approximately 17 miles where 

it enters the main stem of the Patoka River near the Pike - Gibson County Line. 

1.2.3 Broad Pond 

Broad Pond is a man-made impoundment on the western edge of Gibson County. The pond is 

supplied by Skelton Creek, Blair Ditch and McCarty Ditch prior to their discharge into the Wabash 

River. The pond principally serves to buffer drainage flow entering the Wabash River. Additional 

uses include fishing. 

1.3 POPULATION TRENDS 

Table 2 presents histo1ical population data for Princeton and Gibson County. The data was 

obtained from the Statslndiana website which compiled U.S. Census Bureau data from 1900 

through 2010. 
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Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Table 2 shows Gibson County has experienced a population growth over the last 50 years of nearly 

12%. The county seat, the City of Princeton, experienced a population growth of approximately 
9% during the same period. 

Entity 

Gibson County 
, Montgomery, 
I Patoka, Union, 

Johnson, Center, 
1--·!3.arton Townships 

L~~.~~-~L:~~i1:ceton 

Table 2 

Gibson County Historical Population Data 

1960 1970 I 1980 I 1990 200() 

' ! ' 

I
. I 

29.949 30,444 : 33, 156 I 31,913 

:·-····-·- --···----··-!····-·--·: _____ ; 
1 1,906 1,4~_1_. -~76 J_~'.121 I 

2010 % Increase 
Since 1960 

The Indiana Business Research Center (IBRC), Indiana University Kelley School of Business 
operates a research division providing population projections on countywide and citywide basis. 

This information is available on Statslndiana. The last available year for Gibson County and City 
of Princeton projected populations is 2015. The IBRC projected populations for Gibson County 

and the City of Princeton are 33,775 and 8,626 respectively. During the five (5) year period, the 

IBRC projected growth for Gibson County was 0.8% or 0.16% per year. The projected Princeton 

population projection is 8,626, a decrease of -0.2%. 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. assumed a 20-year planning period for this PER. Therefore, the end 
of planning year is 2037. Based on Table 2 and the IBRC population projections, MEI projected 

the Year 203 7 Gibson County population at 34,984 people using an annual increase of 0.16% for 
the 22 year period. [2037 Population= 2015 Population (33,775) x (1+.0016)22

] = 34,984. 

1.4 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

Gibson Water officers wish to make its customers and the public aware of the proposed 

improvements to the water distribution supply system. Therefore, public meetings will be held 
during the planning and design portion of the work. During planning, the projects will be discussed 

with meeting attendants. Discussion items will include: project need; costs; financing; and 
probable impacts on customer water rates. Potential consequences of not acting on the problems 

will also be addressed. Comments and questions will be encouraged at the public meetings and 

will be considered during planning and design. 

1.5 PROJECT AREAS 

The project areas consist of multiple individual improvement projects within the Gibson Water's 

existing service area (See Figure 10, Appendix A). Gibson Water is not currently planning an 

expansion of the service area. 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
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1.6 EXISTING SERVICE AREA 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

The existing water distribution system service area is roughly 58,710 acres or 91.7 sq. miles. 

Figure 2 (Appendix A) presents the limits of the Gibson Water service area. 

1.7 PROJECTED 20-YEAR SERVICE AREA 

The service area limits shown in Figure 2 include areas conforming to the regional extents of the 

existing water distribution system. In some cases, water mains were installed to serve sporadic 
development as it occurred. Many of these mains pass along areas of row crop farmland and areas 

with little to no ongoing development activity, and very few potential in-place customers. 

Therefore, the Gibson Water service area does contain many locations where customer growth is 

feasible. For this study, however, we believe it is appropriate to utilize population and associated 
water demand forecasts based upon the Stats Indiana population projections for Gibson County. 

Based upon this supposition, the 20-year service area matches the extents of the existing service 
area. No building developments or annexations are currently planned. 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

CHAPTER 2 - EXISTING FACILITIES 

2.1 LOCATIONMAP 

Figure 1 (Appendix A) is a General Location Map for Gibson County. Figure 2 (Appendix A) 
presents the Gibson Water, Inc. service area. 

2.2 HISTORY AND SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 

2.2.1 Gibson Water, Inc. 

2.2.1.1 

2.2.1.2 

Gibson Water, Inc. is a non-profit corporation founded in 1976 to provide reliable water service to 

residents of predominantly rural and urban areas in Gibson County, Indiana. 

Water Supply 

Gibson Water purchases its entire supply from the Evansville Water Company. The Water 

Purchase Agreement was entered into on July l31h, 1977. Under the terms of the agreement, 

the "Water Works District of Evansville, Indiana" is obligated to provide potable treated water 

in such quantity required by the purchaser, not to exceed 2.5 million gallons per day. The 

Agreement also includes a minimum obligation of 1.0 million gallons per month. The water is 

to be delivered at a reasonably constant pressure of70 psi to the suction side of Gibson Water's 

high service pumping facilities. 

The term of the Agreement is to extend for a period of 50 years, thus the expiration date is July 

of 2027. A copy of the Water Purchase Contract is included in Appendix L of this report. 

The Master Meter and vault installed at the point of connection with Evansville is located on 

the south side of Indiana Interstate 64 and west of the intersection with U.S. Highway 41. The 

Evansville Water Company has a 20-inch main supplying the Master Meter vault. From the 

master meter location, Gibson Water owns a 16-inch transmission main which crosses the 

Interstate and continues west and north approximately% mile to the Gibson Water pumping 

station. This singular transmission main is a critical component of the system, as it is the only 

source of conveyance from Evansville to the Gibson Water System. 

Booster Pumping Station 

The original booster pumping station was replaced in 1996 (See Photo 8, Appendix E). The 

new booster station contains two (2) 1,500 gpm high service pumps and one (1) 800 gpmpump 

(See Photo 4, Appendix E). The 1,500 gpm pumps are driven by 75 HP motors, and the 800 

gpm pump is a 40 HP unit. Each pump is provided with a variable frequency drive (VFD). 
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Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

2.2.1.3 

The pump controls have indicators showing the level of the elevated water storage tanks and a 

selector switch to allow the Operator to choose which elevated tank controls the pumps (See 

Photo 5, Appendix E). 

The booster station also contains isolation valves for each pump, slow closing, pilot operated 

pump control valves on each pump to prevent water hammer at pump shut down, and an 

effluent flow meter (See Photo 7, Appendix E) and chlorine injection system. 

Distribution System 

Based on the inventory derived from the W aterCAD hydraulic model, the distribution system 

contains approximately 990,000 lin. ft. (187.5 miles) of2-inch through 20-inch diameter water 

mains. Figure 3 (Appendix A) is a map showing the complete distribution system. The mains 

are a mix of ductile iron (D.I.) and PVC. Large diameter transmission mains were constructed 

using ductile iron. The vast majority of the rural distribution system was constructed using 

PVC pipe. The following table presents a breakdown of the system, showing total length for 

each pipe diameter. 

·-·--·-

Gibson Water, Inc. Water Distribution System 

Total System Pipe Length 

Diameter Length (ft.) Length (miles) 
(in.) 

---·-·-·-··-·- -· 

2 67,165 12.7 

3 311,900 59.1 

4 106,575 20.2 

6 185,380 35.1 

8 104,200 19.7 

10 67,180 12.7 

12 72,745 13.8 

16 12,440 2.4 

18 250 .05 

20 62,245 11.8 

All Diameters: 990,080 187.5 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

2.2.1.4 

System operating pressure varies dramatically due to the large amount of small diameter piping 

and the significant variation in ground elevation throughout the service area. Operating 

pressure is also greatly affected by variable system demands. System performance will be 

discuss if greater detail in subsequent sections of the report. 

Water Storage 

The Gibson Water distribution system includes three (3) elevated water storage tanks. Two (2) 

of the tanks are multiple column style structures. The third tank is a standpipe. 

Tank T-1isa300,000 gallon torn-ellipsoidal style tank located on U.S. Route 41 and just west 

of the Toyota Manufacturing plant. Tank T-1 was constructed in 1978 as part of the original 

distribution system construction (See Photo 1, Appendix E). 

Tank T-2 is a 1,500,000 gallon torus bottom style tank located on County Road 100 E at the 

Toyota Manufacturing plant. Tank T-2 was constructed in 1996 to provide the additional 

storage needed to adequately serve the Toyota plant (See Photo 3, Appendix E). 

Tank T-3, the standpipe, has a capacity of 300,000 gallons and is located at the end of South 

Dogwood Lane near the end of Curtice Lande Drive. Tank T-3 was constructed in 1990 (See 

Photo 2, Appendix E). 

Table 3 presents a summary of the tank types and capacities. 

TABLE3 

ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK INFORMATION 

Capacity Dia. 
Head Elevations 

··Tank Style Range 
(gal.) (ft.) 

(ft.) Overflow Bottom Base 

Tank 1 Multi-

U.S. Rt. 41 
300,000 Column 43.0 33.0 670.00 637.00 514.00 

Tank2 Multi-

CR 100 E 
1,500,000 Column 91.0 35.0 668.61 633.61 485.11 

Tank3 
300,000 

Welded 
31.0 27.0 670.00 632.00 541.00 

Standpipe Steel 

2.2.2 Wholesale Water Customers 

Gibson Water also provides the wholesale conveyance of water to one large manufacturing facility 

and one small community which lies within its service area. Gibson Water also has an emergency 

interconnection with two other neighboring communities. 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

2.2.2.1 

2.2.2.2 

2.2.2.3 

Town of Haubstadt 

Gibson Water wholesales water to the Town of Haubstadt through a Master Meter located near 

the intersection of U.S. Rte. 41 and CR 975. Based on the 2016 Billing Report provided by 

Gibson Water, Haubstadt uses an average of 124,000 gallons per day (GPD) or 86.1 gallons 

per minute (gpm). Based on the list of high water volume users, Haubstadt is Gibson Water's 

second largest user. A copy of the Water Purchase Agreement is included in Appendix L. 

Toyota Manufacturing 

Gibson Water has a commitment to provide wholesale water sales to the Toyota Manufacturing 

Facility located on US Highway 41 approximately 4 miles south of downtown Prinecton. The 

Toyota plant is Gibson Water's largest customer, consuming an average volume of 

approximately 700,000 gallons of water per day. A copy of the Water Sales Contract with 

Toyota Motor Manufacturing, Indiana is included in Appendix L. 

Owensville and Fort Branch (Emergency Interconnections) 

The Town of Owensville has four groundwater wells and a treatment facility to provide water 

to the community. Gibson Water has a Master Meter located near the intersection of U.S. Rte. 

165 and Warehouse Road to provide water to the Town under an emergency condition. In 

2016, Owensville did not receive any water from Gibson Water, Inc. 

Gibson Water also has an emergency water service interconnection with the Town of Fort 

Branch. Fort Branch owns and operates a number of groundwater wells and a treatment plant 

to serve the community. No water was conveyed to the Town by Gibson Water in 2016. 

2.2.3 High Volume Water Users 

Gibson Water provided a list of their high volume water users for 2016 (See Appendix D). Using 

the information, average monthly and total water use values were calculated for each user. These 

values were converted to average use rates (gpm) and placed in the hydraulic model at the 

appropriate locations. 

The highest volume water user is Toyota Manufacturing. Several of the high volume water users' 

consumption appeared to be seasonal. Where this was the case, the highest monthly consumption 

was used to calculate the usage rate for entry into the computer model. 
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2.3 CONDITION OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

2.3.1 Distribution System 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

The original distribution system was installed in 1977 and 1978; therefore, most of the system is 

close to 40 years old. The original system consisted of approximately 130 miles of 2-inch through 

18-inch diameter water mains. Pipe materials were ductile iron and polyvinyl chloride (PVC). 

The distribution system has been expanded over the years as needed to serve newly developing 

areas. The most significant expansion occurred in 1996 when a new 20-inch diameter main was 

installed to serve the Toyota plant. Based on the Hydraulic Model, the current distribution system 

contains approximately 187.5 miles of pipe. 

The majority of the distribution system, approximately 82%, consists of PVC pipe which is now 

40 years old. The A WWA Water Research Foundation considers the life expectancy of PVC water 

main piping to exceed 100 years. For this study, we estimate a minimum useful life of 70 to 80 

years. Therefore, the existing water distribution system network is suitable for continued operation 

with significant useful life remaining. 

2.3.2 Booster Pumping Station 

The original Booster Pumping Station was replaced with a new station in 1996. There have been 

no significant improvements or additions to the new station since its construction. The building 

and primary pumping equipment are therefore a little over 20 years old. The station contains three 

horizontally mounted centrifugal pumps with common suction and discharge headers. The two 

largest pumps are each rated for 1,500 gpm at 109' TDH. The smallest pump is rated for 800 gpm 

at approximately 100' TDH. 

Twenty years of growth in the customer base plus increasing flow demands from Toyota and other 

industrial and commercial users have taxed the station in recent years. Both of the 1,500 gpm 

pumps have lost pumping capacity due to age and wear and are now producing about 1,200 gpm 

each. The lowered capacity often causes the pumps to experience run times in excess of 20 hours 

per day to meet daily flow demands. Inefficient pilot operated pump control valves on the discharge 

side of each pump also reduce pump efficiency. The two larger pumps, when operating 

simultaneously, are only capable of producing approximately 1,700 gpm. Therefore, both of the 

large pumps require extended and excessive run times to meet current maximum day demands. 

The 800 gpm pump is not presently in use, as it provides little benefit in meeting system needs. 

With proper maintenance, the typical useful life for centrifugal pumps is 15 to 20 years. The pumps 

have been well maintained and have served the Utility well, but they are now beyond their expected 

useful life. 

Revised 10120117 
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Preliminary Engineering Repo11 
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The pump station building itself is of brick masonry construction, has been well maintained, and is 

suitable for continued service. 

2.3.3 Water Storage Tanks 

Tank T-1, the 0.30 Mgal. elevated tank, was constructed as part of the original distribution system; 

therefore, it is approximately 40 years old. A tank inspection was conducted in March, 2013 

revealing localized areas of corrosion and compromised coatings on the tank interior. Exterior 

conditions showed chalked and weathered coatings along with some mold growth on the bottom of 

the reservoir bowl. As a result of the inspection, the interior and exterior surfaces of the tank were 

repainted in 2016 and are in good condition. Modem coating systems are typically capable of 

providing a useful life of 12 - 15 years. Periodic inspections are recommended, but recoating of 

the tank should not be required for another 10 to 12 years. 

Tank T-2, the 1.50 Mgal. tank, is approximately 20 years old. The tank was repainted in 2014. 

During the repainting, both the interior and exterior were completely sand blasted with new coating 

systems applied. Therefore, the tank is currently in good condition. 

Tank T-3, the standpipe, is approximately 27 years old. The most recent recoating work was 

performed several years ago on the tank interior, which is good condition. The tank exterior 

currently has a heavy layer of mold and mildew on the lower portions of the tank (See Photo 2, 
Appendix E). Exterior surfaces of the standpipe are in need of pressure washing with an 

environmentally safe and biodegradable detergent to remove fungal growth. The tank exterior 

should also be provided with abrasive cleaning and recoating in the very near future. While it is 

unsightly, mold and mildew should not adversely affect the life of the coating system unless the 

conditions are very severe. 

Structurally, the three (3) elevated water storage tanks are in good condition and provide 

approximately one (1) day of current average demand for the system. With proper maintenance 

and regular inspection, the tanks should provide many more years of continued service. 

2.4 FINANCIAL STATUS OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

A copy of the current Schedule of Water Rates and Charges for Gibson Water, Inc. is included in 

Appendix J. Table 4 below presents a summary of operating revenues and expenses from the 

Gibson Water, Inc. 2015 financial statement. 

Revised 10120117 
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Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Comparison of 2015 and 2014 Operating Budgets 

Description 2015 2014 

Operating Revenues 

Water Sales $ 1,424,486 $ 1,407,146 

Other $ 7,552 $ 8,348 

Miscellaneous $ 29,339 $ 27,661 

Total Operating Revenues $ 1,461,377 $1,443,155 

Operating Expenses 

Cost of Water $ (645,984) $ (599,448) 

Utility Plant Operations $ (258,250) $ (275,454) 

Administration and General $ (454,704) $ (438,778) 

Total Operating Expenses $ (1,358,947) $ (1,313,680) 

Operating Income Before Depreciation & Interest $ 102,430 $ 129,475 

Depreciation $ ( 78,442) $ ( 77,848) 

Interest $( 3,939) $( 4,303) 
-·----· 

Operating Income $ 20,049 $ 47,324 

2.5 WATER/ENERGY/WASTE AUDITS 

No Water/Energy/Waste Audits have been performed on the pumping facilities or water 
distribution system network. 
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CHAPTER 3 - NEED FOR PROJECT 

3.1 HEALTH, SANITATION AND SECURITY 

3.1.1 Water Distribution System 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Regulatory requirements for public water systems require that operating pressures be neither too 

low nor too high throughout the extent of the distribution system. Optimal domestic service 

pressure is generally within a range of 55 to 70 psi. Average working pressures should not fall 

below 35 psi, and pressures should never be permitted to fall below 20 psi under the most severe 

operating conditions at any location within the system. 

During high demand conditions, inadequate operating pressures have been observed at a number 

of locations within the distribution system network. Most of these areas lie at remote locations 

relative to existing storage and pumping facilities. Several areas are also plagued by undersized 

and unlooped water mains which are incapable of sustaining adequate pressure during periods of 

peak demand. Low pressure conditions are common in higher elevation rural areas southwest of 

Princeton, north of Owensville, and south and west of Haubstadt. There are also two areas 

northwest of the 1-69 and 1-64 interchange which periodically experience low pressure due to 

relatively high elevation and the unlooped nature of the system at those locations. 

These identified areas periodically experience water pressures below those allowed by regulatory 

authorities. Transient low water pressure poses a risk to public health due to the increased potential 

for the intrusion of contaminants into the distribution system. The distribution system contains 

multiple instances of long run dead end water mains. The dead-end lines vary in size from 2-inch 

to 6-inch diameter. In some cases the system demand on dead-end pipe segments is very low; 

therefore, there is little turn over in the mains. The low turnover causes a long residence time and 

the loss of chlorine residual, which in turn leads to poor water quality and the potential for 

biofouling and contamination. This condition is best remedied by extending the dead-end mains to 

provide looping within the system and continual bi-directional flow within the pipe network where 

feasible. 

3.2 AGING INFRASTRUCTURE 

3.2.1 Booster Pumping Station 

The Utility's original pumping station was replaced with the current booster pumping station in 

1996. Therefore, the booster station building has considerable useful life remaining. The current 

pumping equipment, however, is aging and pumping capacities are inadequate to meet projected 

peak demand conditions. The existing high service pumps are 20 years old and are 

underperforming their design capacities due to age and wear. Even at the original design flow rates, 

the pumps are undersized based upon current maximum day demand conditions. 
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The existing pumping installation includes diaphragm type pump control valves which have created 

numerous maintenance issues for the Utility due to a frequent need for parts replacement. The 

chronic maintenance concerns and diminished pumping capacity dictate that the need for pump 

replacement, VFD replacement, and removal of the power consuming pilot control valves. 

3.2.2 Water Distribution System 

The majority (approximately 82%) of the distribution system is approximately 40 years old. PVC 

piping systems can be expected to provide reliable service for a period of70 to 80 years. Therefore, 

there is significant useful life remaining in the existing water distribution system. 

3.3 REASONABLE GROWTH 

This PER is based on a 20-year planning period - 2017 through 2037. 

The Indiana Business Research Center (IBRC), Indiana University Kelley School of Business 

operates a research division providing population projections on countywide and citywide basis. 

This information is available on Statslndiana. The last available year for Gibson County and City 

of Princeton projected populations is 2015. During the five (5) year period, the IBRC projected 

growth for Gibson County was 0.8% or 0.16% per year. The projected Princeton population 

projection is 8,626, a decrease of -0.2%. 

The IBRC's Gibson County annual growth rate was applied to the County's estimated 2015 

population to estimate the 2037 population, as follows: 

Population 2036 Pop 2015 x (1 + .0016)<FutureYear-PopulationYear) 

33,775 x (l.00162)(2037 - 2015l 

33,775 x (1.00162)22 

33,775 x 1.0358 

34,984 persons 

This value was used for the Gibson County 2037 population. The 2037 population is an increase 

of 1,209 people or 3.6%. 

From the U.S. 2010 Census, Gibson County had 12,987 households and the average number of 

people per household was 2.5. The incorporated areas, cities and towns, in Gibson County had a 

total of 7,575 households. Therefore, the rural County encompasses approximately 5,412 

households. 

3.3.1 Existing Water Demands 

Based on pumping records supplied by Gibson Water, the Year 2016 total water demand was 502.6 

million gallons (Mgal.). This in an increase of 6.7% over the 2015 total water demand. Table 5 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. Page 14 of53 September, 2017 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

presents a summary of the 2016 water use by customer type. The number of customers per type 

varied over the year; the Customer Count in Table 5 is the 2016 average. 

Table 5 

Breakdown of 2016 Water Demands 
.------ ---~-~---- ------.-- ---

Annual 
Customer 

Average Use Per 
Customer Type \Yater Demand 

Count 
Customer 

(MGD) ( Gal./Ct1st/Day) 
-· 

Residential 80.922 1,615 137 

Commercial 33.196 96 947 

Industrial (Toyota) 255.596 1 700,263 

Industrial (Other) 43.936 4 30,093 

Public Authority 0.004 1 11 

Educational 1.362 3 1,244 

Agricultural 6.088 21 794 

Resale 45.412 1 124,416 

Total 466.517 1,742 

Gibson Water's sole purchase and resale customer is the Town of Haubstadt, with an average water 

consumption of 124,416 gal. per day (gpd). The largest industrial customer is the Toyota 

manufacturing plant. The second largest industrial customer is the Duke Energy power plant. 

Table 6 presents a summary of the 2014 through 2016 booster pumping station metered flow data. 

The "Total" value represents the total water pumped for the year. The "Average" value is the 

average day pumping value. The "Maximum" value is the greatest single day pumping amount for 

the year. The "minimum" value is the lowest single day pumping amount for the year. 

In 2016, the Booster Station pumped 502.6 Mgal. or an average of 1.38 MGD (approximately 960 

gpm). In 2016, Gibson Water billed 466.52 Mgal. Therefore, in 2016, lost water was 36.09 Mgal. 

or 7.2%. This is an excellent lost water percentage for a system the size of Gibson Water's. 
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Summary of Booster Station Pumping 
---- -·-···----------··- ···---·· ·-

Year 
Total Average Maximum l\fax:Avg 

(Mgal.) (MGD) (MGD) Peaking l~actor 

2014 467.59 1.28 2.48 1.94 

2015 471.15 1.29 2.71 2.10 

2016 502.60 1.37 2.98 2.17 

It is important to note that over the past two years, Gibson Water, Inc. has occasionally experienced 
Maximum Day Demand conditions which exceed the volume limitations of the water purchase 

Agreement with the City of Evansville. This may not be apparent to the City since the monthly 

pumping averages remain within the terms of the agreement. Casual discussion with Evansville 
Water representatives have indicated that excessive consumption by Gibson Water is not a concern 

and additional water is available if needed. 

3.3.2 Projected Water Demands 

The projected future residential water demands for Gibson Water are based upon the Utility's 

current average daily water consumption and the projection of 3.6% growth in the customer and 

population base over the course of the 20-year planning period. The above table indicates that the 
maximum day water demand exceeds the average day demand by a factor of roughly 2.17. From 

historical records, seasonal variation in water consumption is also apparent. Water usage during 
the summer months tends to be 30 - 35% higher than the annual average. This is not uncommon 

for a regional utility serving a diverse customer base which includes farming and large 

manufacturing operations. 

The most significant impact on future water consumption is expected to be created by the Toyota 

Motor facility, which is planning a $600 million investment in the assembly plant in Princeton. 
The expansion will add 400 jobs, or an increase of 7.8% in the current labor force of 5,100 

employees. 

In 2016, the average daily water consumption at the Toyota facility was 698,350 gallons. 

Maximum demand was 934,500 gallons per day. With the planned labor force expansion, it is 
prudent to expect a roughly 8% increase in the average day and maximum day demand figures for 

industrial water use. 

To project the Utility's Average Day water Demand (ADD) for plan year 2037, an increase of 8% 

has been added to the current ADD for industrial water consumption. 3.6% has been added for 
residential, commercial, wholesale, and all other customer categories. 
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To project plan year 2037 Maximum Day Demand (MDD) conditions, a peaking factor of 2.15 
times the Average Day Demand was used. This approach is consistent with historical trends and 
is appropriate for the evaluation of the Gibson Water Inc. public water supply system. Projected 
average and maximum day water demands for plan year 2037 are presented in Table No. 7, 
including a breakdown based upon customer use category. 

Table 7 

Projected Water Demands, Year 2037 

2017 Water Demand 
Projected Water Demand, 

Plan Year 2037 

Usage Category Average Maximum Average Maximum 
Day Demand Day Demand Day Demand Day Demand 

(Gallons) (Gallons) (Gallons) .•...• (Gallons) 

Residential 221,704 443,408 229,685 459,371 

Commercial 90,948 181,896 94,222 188,444 

Industrial 820,636 1,641,272 886,287 1,772,574 

Public Auth. 11 22 11 23 

Educational 3,732 7,464 3,866 7,733 

Agricultural 16,679 33,358 17,279 34,559 

Resale 124,416 248,832 128,895 257,790 

Total (gpd): 1,278,126 2,556,252 1,360,247 2,924,530 
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The primary purpose of this Engineering Study is to identify the distribution system improvements 

needed to eliminate transient low pressure conditions in critical portions of the system during 

periods of high demand. A hydraulic model was created to evaluate the performance of the system 

and to determine the requirements for water main extensions or system reinforcements needed to 

improve system performance. The system hydraulic model was also used to evaluate booster station 

performance and to identify the pumping upgrades needed to meet projected peak day demands for 

design year 203 7. 

4.1.1 System Hydraulic Modeling 

To facilitate the analysis of the Gibson Water system, a software package entitled "WaterCad®" 

was used. The program has been specifically designed and developed to model flows and operating 

pressures in water distribution system networks and other pressure pipe systems. 

Water system modeling involves the creation of a numerical database representing all of the major 

physical components of the system. The final model includes pipes, pumps, storage tanks, control 

devices, and node references which contain elevation and customer demand information. 

Following completion of data entry, the Gibson Water model was used to evaluate system 

performance under a variety of operating conditions. For this study, Average Day, Maximum Day, 

and Peak Hour flow demands were analyzed. 

The model uses an iterative technique to balance and solve for unknown vmiables. Steady State 

simulations were performed for the various demand conditions to determine the resulting hydraulic 

grade elevations, flow velocities, and operating pressures throughout the system. The modeling 

results are a valuable tool to determine whether system hydraulics and capacity are adequate to 

meet daily demands. 

Again, three base models were developed to analyze various flow demand conditions which are 

likely to exist during different periods of the day. The modeled conditions are based upon steady 

state simulations, meaning the results are indicative of the system operating conditions at a given 

point in time and under a specific flow demand. The following demand conditions were evaluated: 

1. Average Day Demand 

2. Maximum Day Demand 

3. Peak Hourly Demand 

Upon completion of data entry into the computer model, an initial run was performed and the results 

were compared with information provided by Gibson Water, Inc. Minor adjustments were made 

to pipe roughness coefficients and node demand variables to calibrate the model. We believe the 
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adjusted model closely reflects the actual operating conditions which are routinely experienced 

within the existing distribution system. 

4.1.2 Discussion of Modeling Results 

When interpreting the modeling results, we look for specific indicators of potential problems such 

as areas of low operating pressure, or sections of piping where flow velocity and corresponding 

headlosses may be excessively high. Inadequate system carrying capacity may be indicated if low 

pressures occur in an area during periods of peak water use while pressures are satisfactory during 

periods of low demand. 

The tabulated junction node results for Average Day Demand and Peak Hourly Demand Conditions 

are included in Appendix K of this report. Four Tables presenting distribution system modeling 

results have been provided as follows: 

Table K-1: Existing Distribution System Under Average Day Demand Conditions 

Table K-2: Existing Distribution System Under Peak Hourly Demand Conditions 

Table K-3: System w/ Recommended Improvements, Average Day Demand 

Table K-4: System w/ Recommended Improvements, Peak Hourly Demand 

Under Average Day Demand conditions, the vast majority of the existing distribution system is 

capable of sustaining operating pressures above the recommended minimum standard of 35 psi. In 

several areas, however, operating pressures fall significantly during Peak Hourly Demand 

Conditions. At those locations, the pressure deficiencies are due to high ground elevations, service 

from undersized and/or dead-end water mains, or a combination of those factors. 

Table K-2 in Appendix K provides the greatest insight regarding specific locations within the 

system where performance is inadequate during periods of high demand. Junction Nodes 

displaying operating pressures of less than 25 psi have been provided with bold text and shaded 

highlighting in the Table. Figure Kin that Appendix provides a map which identifies the specific 

areas of low pressure within the existing distribution system during Peak Hourly Demand 

conditions. In many cases, the resultant operating pressures during high use periods fall below the 

minimum allowable regulatory standard of 20 psi. 

Multiple alternatives were modeled to determine the distribution system improvements which most 

benefited system operating pressures, carrying capacity and flow patterns. Following modeling, 

project cost estimates were developed for the alternatives to determine which alternatives offered 

the greatest economic return. 
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The "No Action" Alternative assumes no improvements are made to Gibson Water's distribution 

system. Without improvements, problems such as stagnant water, degradation of water quality, 

and poor operating pressure during periods of high demand will remain. Additionally, areas of 

potential development may not be able to be adequately served. 

MEI determined Alternative 1, the "No Action" alternative, does not meet Gibson Water's long 

tern goals and was eliminated from consideration. 

4.3 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 

4.3.1 Alternative 2 - County Road 225 W Water Main Extension 

Alternative 2 includes the installation of a new 6-inch or 8-inch water main on County Road 225 

W from CR 950 to State Route 168. The new water line would connect to an existing 8-inch main 

on CR 950 and with a 6-inch main at the intersection of CR 225 Wand SR 168. The approximate 

pipe length of Alternative 2 is 16, 17 5 feet. The location and alignment of Alternative 2 is shown 

on Figure 4 (Appendix A). 

Alternative 2 completes the "looping" of the existing 8-inch diameter water line on CR 150 Wand 

the existing 6-inch diameter pipe on CR 225 W. The purpose of Alternative 2 is to eliminate two 

long dead end mains in the areas west of Fort Branch and Haubstadt. This extension will greatly 

improve system carrying capacity to the southern portion of the distribution system. Peak demand 

conditions presently create low pressure conditions in areas west and south of Haubstadt. 

Additionally, Alternative 2 will improve water quality and help to serve future development in the 

area. Without this improvement, any additional demand due to customer growth would 

compromise system performance. 

4.3.2 Alternative 3 - State Route 68 Water Main 

Alternative 3 replaces an existing 4-inch water main on SR 68 with a new 8-inch diameter main. 

The new water main connects an existing 8-inch pipe at the intersection of SR 68 and CR 350 E 

with an existing 3-inch main at the intersection of SR 68 and CR 450 E. The approximate total 

pipe length of Alternative 3 is 5,272 feet. The location and alignment of Alternative 3 is shown on 

Figure 5 (Appendix A). 

The purpose of Alternative 3 is to increase carrying capacity in the southeast portion of the 

distribution system, and improve operating pressure for two high elevation areas northwest of the 

SR 68 and Interstate 69 interchange. Without this improvement, any future growth in this area 

would negatively impact existing customers which are situated at the higher elevations. 
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Alternative 4 would include the installation of a new 8-inch water main along CR 350 W from its 

intersection with CR 400 S to the intersection with CR 250 S. The new pipe would connect to an 

existing 10-inch main on CR 400 S and an existing 3-inch main at the intersection of CR 350 W 

and CR 250 S. The length of Alternative 4 is approximately 8,087 feet. The location and alignment 

of Alternative 4 are shown on Figure 6 (Appendix A). 

The purpose of Alternative 4 is to "loop in" the dead end 3-inch main on CR 350 W. This is one 

of the most compromised portions of the existing distribution system during peak demand 

conditions due to the long length ofunlooped 3" diameter water mains serving the area. Looping 

in this region will also help to eliminate poor water quality due to lack of circulation and increase 

flow capacity and operating pressure north and west of the CR 350 Wand CR 250 S intersection. 

4.3.4 Alternative 5 - County Road 200 S Water Main 

Alternative 5 would provide a new 6-inch water main on CR 200 S to connect the existing 6-inch 

water line on Old SR 65 with an existing 3-inch un-looped main on CR 200 S. The approximate 

total pipe length for Alternative 6 is 3,775 feet. The location and alignment of Alternative 5 are 

shown on Figure 7 (Appendix A). 

The purpose of Alternative 5 is to complete a secondary internal loop initiated with Alternative 4. 

The loop will increase flow capacity and pressures on the northern portion of CR 350 W. 

Additionally, the existing 3-inch pipe on CR 200 S serves a seasonally high-volume farming 

operation. Alternative 5 would provide a second, larger water main to serve the facility and also 

improve system performance in the area during peak demand conditions. 

4.3.5 Alternative 6 - County Roads 350 W and 200 S Water Mains 

Alternative 6 combines Alternative 4 and 5 and provides additional system enhancement by 

replacing the existing 3-inch water lines which would remain under those alternatives. Although 

Alternatives 4 and 5 effectively eliminate the existing 3" dead end lines, the remaining 3" pipe 

segments would still act as a bottleneck during peak demand conditions. The primary purpose of 

Alternative 6 is to remove those bottlenecks. The new pipe on CR 350 W would continue to be 8-

inch and the main on CR 200 S would be 6-inch. Total length of Alternative 6 is approximately 

16,310 feet. Therefore, approximately 4,450 feet of existing 3-inch pipe would be replaced. The 

location and alignment of Alternative 6 are shown on Figure 7 (Appendix A). 

4.3.6 Alternative 7 - State Route 64 Water Main Extension 

Alternative 7 includes the construction of a new 6-inch water main on SR 64 to connect the existing 

8-inch pipe on SR 65 with an existing 3-inch dead end water main on SR 64. The approximate 

total pipe length of Alternative 7 is 2,397 feet. The location and alignment of Alternative 7 are 

shown on Figure 8 (Appendix A). 
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The purpose of Alternative 7 is to complete a perimeter loop in the northwest portion of the 

distribution system. This will greatly improve system carrying capacity in the area and eliminate 

poor water quality in the existing dead end 3-inch water main on State Road 64. 

4.3. 7 Alternative 8 - Parallel Booster Station Supply Main and Booster Station Improvements 

Alternative 8 includes the installation of a parallel 16-inch water main from the Evansville Master 

Meter to the Gibson Water pumping station. To provide redundancy on the discharge side of the 

pumping station, this Alternative also includes a 16" water main to parallel the lone existing 

transmission main from the booster station northward to County Road 1200 South. 

In addition to the redundant transmission mains to reinforce the booster station suction and 

discharge piping, a second 8-inch master meter with vault would be installed at the site of the 

Evansville master meter. The approximate length of new 16-inch pipe is 7,000 ft. The alignment 

requires a 300 foot bored and jacked crossing oflnterstate 64. Additionally, new easement will be 

needed for the alignment. The locations and alignments of Alternative 8 are shown on Figure 9 
(Appendix A). 

The existing booster station pumps do not have adequate capacity to meet current and projected 

Maximum Day Demands. The existing pumps are also fitted with antiquated variable frequency 

drives (VFDs) and inefficient pump control valves. These valves waste energy and are prone to 

mechanical failure. Replacement of all pumps is necessary in order to insure the Utility's ability 

to meet projected maximum day demand conditions. 

The purpose of Alternative 8 is to: 1) Provide the critical redundancy needed to insure that the 

supply source from Evansville is available at all times to the suction side of the Gibson Water 

pumping station. This supply source is the backbone of the Gibson Water system. A failure of the 

existing supply main would leave the Utility without a source supply until the necessary repairs 

can be made. 2) The parallel supply line would support an increase in the capacity of the booster 

station by reducing headloss on the suction side of the high service pumps. 

Currently, Gibson Water's sole supply source is the existing 16-inch water main from the 

Evansville Water Company. Gibson Water has a total of 2.1 Mgal. in elevated water storage, or 

approximately 1.6 days during average demand, and less than one day of storage during peak 

demand conditions. Therefore, a second, redundant supply line is considered a critical need. 3) 

An increase in pumping capacity is essential to insure Gibson Water's ability to meet future 

maximum daily demands. To improve energy efficiency, pump control valves should be replaced 

with conventional check valves and the antiquated variable frequency drives should be replaced 

with modem, more efficient equipment. 
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Alternative 9 assumes Alternatives 2, 3, 6, 7, and 8 are installed in the Gibson Water distribution 
system. The use of Alternative 6 in lieu of Alternatives 4 and 5 is considered much more desirable 

because it replaces the short lengths of existing 3-inch diameter water mains and the potential 

bottlenecks they create. 

4.4 DESIGN CRITERIA 

Design criteria for all phases of the project will include conventional standards for design and 
construction of public water supply facilities in Indiana. For distribution system upgrades, design 

criteria will include: 

• IDEM design guidelines, which incorporate the "Recommended Standards for Water 

Works" (also known as the "10 States Standards"); 
• Gibson Water design and construction guidelines; 

• Indiana Dept. of Transportation (INDOT) design and construction standards and 

specifications; 

• Indiana Storm Water Quality Manual; and 
• Any applicable design review comments provided by the USDA Rural Development 

program or another applicable funding agency will also be incorporated. 

All pipe shall be of the appropriate material and class for its intended purpose and operating 

pressure. Minimum pressure class shall be 150 psi. Joints and gaskets will be in accordance with 

AWWAClll. 

Valves will be resilient wedge gate valves in accordance with AWWA C515. Joints and gaskets 
will be in accordance with A WWA Cl 11. Valves shall be rated forthe appropriate system pressure. 

Minimum pressure class shall be 200 psi. 

4.5 MAPS 

Figure 1 is a General Location Map showing the location of Gibson County. Figure 2 presents 
the approximate service area of Gibson Water, Inc. water distribution system within the county. 

Figures 4 through 9 present the locations and alignments of the alternatives. All figures are 

located in Appendix A. 

4.6 ENVIRONMENTAL IMP ACTS 

The new water main construction will have no pennanent environmental impacts. Existing 
wetlands, exceptional use streams, state resource waters, or natural or scenic rivers will not be 

impacted. No endangered species or critical habitats will be impacted by the project. Following 
pipe installation, existing grades and surfaces will be restored. 
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Therefore, the work will not impact existing runoff patterns or quantities. Temporary 

environmental impacts will include: noise; dust; erosion; trash; and fluids. Noise impacts will be 

minimized by limiting construction to normal working hours. Additionally, the pipes to be installed 

are small; therefore, equipment sizes will be modest. 

The contractor will be required to maintain the work sites in a neat and workmanlike manner. 

Therefore, trash will be promptly removed and the site kept clean. 

All of the proposed improvement projects consist of water main pipeline construction. Therefore, 

construction will be linear in nature rather than point construction. Appropriate erosion control 

measures shall be placed prior to the start of excavation. Due to the linear nature of the work, 

installation of erosion control measures will progress with the work. Erosion control measures will 

not be removed until an acceptable ground cover is established. 

Points of storm water discharge will shift as construction progresses. Points of storm water 

discharge will be selected along the alignment to take advantage of natural drainage patterns. 

Discharge will only be allowed downstream of erosion control devices. 

4.7 LAND REQUIREMENTS 

The new water main alignments will be along roadways using existing, previously disturbed public 

right-of-way (R/W) or easements which have been granted to and accepted by the Utility. Cross 

country installation will only be required for the installation of the parallel transmission main from 

the Evansville connection point to the Gibson Water pumping station. An existing utility easement 

will be used to accommodate that installation. General orientation of proposed water main routes 

are shown in Figures 4 through 9 (Appendix A). 

River/stream crossings will be avoided where possible. If required, minor crossings will be 

completed using horizontal directional drilling methods to minimize disturbance to streambeds and 

floodway areas. Additional RIW may be required to allow a trenchless crossing. The amount of 

new R/W required for the water mains is expected to be very small. 

4.8 POTENTIAL CONSTRUCTION IMPACTS 

The new water mains will be installed along roads, outside of pavement, in existing R/W or 

dedicated utility easement adjacent and contiguous to the roadway R/W. Therefore, the greatest 

associated construction issues will be temporary traffic control, stringing of pipe materials and 

erosion control. Erosion and traffic control issues will be mitigated as pipe construction progresses. 

The construction sites are primarily along minor county roads which are lightly traveled; therefore 

traffic impacts will be negligible. Traffic control measures, including flagging, street closures and 

detours, will be used to minimize traffic disruptions. Pipe material will be strung along the 

alignment, outside the R/W, to minimize material transport. 
Revised 10120117 
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However, stockpiles of bedding material should be strategically located along the route. Transport 

to the installation site will be required. 

Erosion control measures will be used along the alignment to prevent silt migration. Erosion 

control devices will be installed prior to any excavation and will remain in place until the new 

ground cover is established. 

Worker and material delivery vehicles will temporarily increase traffic along the alignment. 

Connecting the new transmission main to the existing pumping station will not affect the operation 
of the existing high ~ervice pumps. Therefore, no service interruption of the booster station will be 

required. 

4.9 SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS 

4.9.1 Water and Energy Efficiency 

The design of the proposed new water mains will incorporate piping materials with favorable 
friction coefficients to minimize power consumption. The addition of a parallel water main to 

provide redundancy for the transmission of water from Evansville to the Utility's booster station 
will improve the available delivery pressure on the suction side of the pumps, helping to lower 

power consumption. 

4.9.2 Green Infrastructure 

Properly designed, constructed, and maintained green infrastructure practices will be used to 

provide the greatest benefit to water resources and the community. Energy efficient variable 
frequency drives will be used for high service pumping equipment, and the existing power 

consuming diaphragm type pump control valve will be eliminated. Best management practices 
(BMPs) will be selected, sized and designed for the new development site(s). 

4.9.3 Other 

As noted in paragraph 2.3.1, much of the distribution system is 40 years old. Construction practices 
of the period were not as stringent as current practices. Additionally, materials and manufacturing 

have improved. Therefore, pipes installed during that era tend to have more leakage than modern 

piping materials. 

4.10 COST ESTIMATES 

Preliminary project costs were developed for each alternative except Alternative 1 - "No Action" 

Alternative. Where possible, construction bid prices from similar project and equipment supplier 
quotes were used to derive the estimated costs for the various alternatives. The project costs 

include: 
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1) An 8.3% allowance for design and construction engineering services; 

2) Construction inspection based on an installation rate of 300 ft. of pipe per day; 

3) A 3.5% allowance of construction costs for legal/financial assistance; 

4) A 1.25% allowance of construction costs for Gibson Water administration costs; and 

5) a 10% contingency for unknown design and construction related issues. 

For all estimates, MEI assumed: 

> All new water mains would be installed in existing road R/W or utility easement outside 

of pavement limits; 

> All water mains will be properly bedded in granular material per manufacturer 

recommendations; 

> Pipes less than 12-inch diameter will be AWWA C900 PVC pipe, pipes greater than 12-

inch diameter will be DI pipe; 

> Isolation valves will be installed at 1,500 foot intervals maximum; 

> All valves will be resilient wedge gate valves; and 

> Minimum depth of cover for water mains is 42 inches per IAC 327, Article 8. 

> Pipe will be backfilled with suitable granular material in roadway areas and where pipe is 

installed within 5' of a paved surface or other area subject to vehicular traffic. 

Table 8 presents a summary of the estimated project construction costs for the individual 

Alternatives. Detailed cost estimates for each alternative are included in Appendix F. 
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ni: ... cription 

Construction Costs 

Water Main Extensions: 

6"Dia. 

Alt.2 
CR225W 

Water Main 

Alt.3 
SR68 

Water Main 

Alt.4 
CR350W 

\\'atcr Ma.in 

-f-----·-·----1------------···-··--- , _____ _ 

8"Dia. 

16" Dia. 
·-···------ ----!--- __ $404,380 _____ c._$_13_5'-,0_0_0-1---_ $204,000 

Hydrant with Gate Valve and Box $4,000 

r--··-· 
All.5 

ca 2oos 
Water Main 

$90,420 

Master Meter and Vault ----·-----1------·----+-----
Metered Service Connections $10,800 

~-~_?.-~~~L ______________ ____,, __ $10,000 ____ . ___ ____, _______ ,___ __ 

Booster Station lmprovements 

__ Road Cr_c>ssing_s_: ---· 

Gravel (Open Cut)_. ____ -----+------·--+-------$_14~,0_0_01 ___ _ 

Paved (Jack & Bored) $59,500 

Paved Co. Rd. or Driveway 

Isolation Valves 

$25,000 -----+----$24,500 ---- -------+-----

_System C_~~~~~~-~?~ 
Traffic Control 

Erosion Control 
Restoration ----------------· 
Testing 

$7,000 $5,600 $5,600 

__ _____c$_6'-,o_oo_+-____ $6,400 $2,800 

$3,000 $3,000 $2,000 

$10,000 $5,500 $2,500 

$5,000 - _li20,000 ~ $2,500 

$16,180 $2,700 $6,000 

$12,000 

$2,000 

$2,800 

$1,500 

$2,500 

$2,000 

$8,000 

Mobilization $16,400 $9,300_ $19,900 $10,20~--i------_;;_;:__:.:__c-'--l ___ _..:..:_= 
Bonds & Insurance $5,000 $2,600 $3,300 $1,400 

$270,100 Constmction Total $521,760 $268,500 
-----+-------~j_...._--"-----'----'·----

$131,920 

__10% Coll_"_ti:u.:_ti_o_n Continge_n_cy______ _ _ ________!32_00 __ .. $_2_6'-,9_0_0+--­ $27,000 $13,200 

Total Probable Construction Cost $573,960 $295,400 $297,100 $145,120 
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Alt. 6 Alt.8 
Combination of Alt.7 Parallel Booster 
Alt. 4&5, plus SR64 Transmission 
elimination of Water Main Mains, plus Pump 

J'' n~~ins _ __ .. 1Jl'l:rades -

·-··----·---i---------.----··-

···--------
$148,500 $97,900 

$27.(),()()0 ·--------
$469,000 

$4,000 

____ $55,500 ·-
$11,700 

$12,0QO 
·---·-"·--
$192,000 

·--·-- ··------

·---·--·-----~-------
$156,000 

$45,000 $32,500 $5_,(l()()__ 

$10,500 $1,000 $24,400 

$~,(jQO $4,800 --- $30,000 __ -
$2,500 $1,500- $2,000 

$5,000 $2,500 $5,000 

$5,000 $5,ooo_ $5,000 

$17,550 $2,230 ~---~ao-

$21,300 ___ $6,000 $38,000 
!---·····---------

$7,350 $1,500 $9,500 

$562,000 $158,930 ~----$_9~~.400 
-~ 

$56,200 $15,900 - --······· $99,800 --
$618,200 $174,830 $1,098,200 
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CHAPTER 5-SELECTION OF AN ALTERNATIVE 

A cost benefit analysis was completed to compare the present cost of project alternatives for the 

recommended improvements project. The net present worth analysis is used to convert all cash flows to 

present day dollars. 

5.1 LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

A life cycle cost analysis was completed for each Alternative. 

The Scenario Energy Cost feature of the distribution system's WaterCAD hydraulic model was 

used to calculate the total power consumed under each Alternative. The total power consumed was 

converted into an energy cost using Duke Energy's Low Load Factor Service rates (Appendix H). 

No peak demand factor was used for the calculations. 

The O&M expenses are expected to be the same for all Alternatives except the power used for 

pumping. MEI used an expected useful life of 7 5 years for the water mains. If plastic pipe is used, 

the industry claims a useful life of 100 years; so, the used life is conservative. Concrete structures 

were also assumed to have a useful life of75 years. 

Various cost considerations for the life cycle cost analysis are as follows: 

5.1.1 Construction Cost 

Construction costs include the initial capital investment required to purchase and install the 

facilities and all related equipment. The costs are based on 2017 dollar values. 

5.1.2 Operation and Maintenance Costs 

Table 9 presents projected post-construction annual operation and maintenance (O&M) costs. No 

significant change in operating personnel is required based on the distribution system or booster 

station improvements. Additionally, it is assumed water demands will increase moderately over 

the course of the planning period. Costs for these items are taken from the table of Pro Forma 

Annual Operation and Maintenance Expenses as presented in the Accountants' Rate Study and 

Compilation Report prepared in January, 2018. 

Additional insurance coverage must also be provided for the related improvements. The proposed 

improvements add approximately 10.6 miles, or 5.8%, of new pipe to the system. Future insurance 

payments were based on a per linear foot of pipe basis. 

The pumping electrical costs are based on Alternative 9 which combines the various individual 

alternatives. 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

Table 9 
Projected Annual 0 & M Expenses 

---·-----
Item 

Salaries and Wages 

Employee Benefits - PERF 

Purchased Power 
Pumping 
Other Power Requirements 

Insurance 

Contractual Services 

Materials and Supplies 

Transportation 

Tank Maintenance and Short Lived Assets Reserve 

Bad Debt Expense 

Cost of Water 

Miscellaneous 

TOTAL: 

5.1.3 Analysis Period and Depreciation 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

--
Cost 

$ 337,318 

$ 138,619 

$ 33,000 
$ 7,876 

$ 25,928 

$ 43,470 

$ 29,564 

$ 12,066 

$ 154,341 

$ 795 

$ 1,063,315 

$ 27,109 

$ 1,873,401 

The present worth analysis is based on a 20-year period. Salvage value is based on straight line 

depreciation, since economic benefits from the capital investments are expected to be realized 
evenly over their useful life. 

5.1.4 Present Worth Analysis Method 

The total present worth of an alternative is determined by summing the initial capital investment 
cost, present worth of operation, maintenance and equipment replacement costs, and then 

subtracting the present worth salvage value. The project period is 20 years and the discount rate is 

0.5%. 

The present value factor (P) is dete1mined by: 

P=(l/(l+r) 0
) 

Where: r =the discount rate, in this case 0.5% 

n = the project term, 20 years 

Employing the above figures, the present worth (P) of the salvage value at the end of 20 years is 
calculated by multiplying its value by 0.9051. 
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Present worth of annual operation, maintenance, and equipment replacement costs is calculated by 

multiplying its value by: 

[( 1 +i)n- 1]-;- [i(l + i)n] = 18.987 

Table 10 on the following page presents a side-by-side comparison of Life Cycle Cost Analyses 
(LCCA) of the Alternatives. The LCCA for the Alternatives cannot be reliably compared to each 

other as each Alternative is a separate construction project. To be effective, an LCCA must 
compare different versions of the same alternative. Additionally, the LCCA for Alternative 19 

combines various Alternatives. Appendix G contains a breakdown of the LCCA calculations. 
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Life Cycle Cost Analysis Summary 

Cost Summary Alt.2 Alt.3 Alt.4 Alt.5 Alt.6 j Alt. 7 Alt.8 
-

Alt.9 

a. Construction Cost $521,760 $268,500 $270,100 $131,920 $562,000 $158,930 $998,400 $2,509,590 

b. 10% Const. Contingency $52,200 $26,900 $27,000 $13,200 $56,200 $15,900 $99,800 $251,000 

c. 
Non-Construction Costs @ 

$140,620 $72,373 $72,790 $35,554 $151,459 $42,833 $269,059 $676,345 
24.5% 

d. Total Cap. Cost (a+b+c) $714,580 $367,773 $369,890 $180,674 $769,659 $217,663 $1,367,259 $3,436,935 

e. Annual O&M Cost $1,873,401 $1,873,401 $1,873,401 $1,873,401 $1,873,401 $1,873,401 $1,873,401 $1,873,401 

f. Replacement Cost (SLA} $8,700 $3,000 $4,400 $2,000 $8,300 $1,100 $6,700 $27,800 

g. Salvage Value $467,500 $158,600 $239,600 $106,100 $445,000 $58,100 $253,700 $1,365,600 

h. Total Capital Costs $714,580 $367,773 $369,890 $180,674 $769,659 $217,663 $1,367,259 $3,814,500 

i. 
O&M Present Worth (Factor= 

$25,791,371 $25,791,371 $25,791,371 $25,791,371 $25,791,371 $25,791,371 $25,791,371 $25,791,371 
18.987) 

j. 
Replalcement Present Worth 

$165,187 $56,961 $83,543 $37,974 $157,592 $20,886 $127,213 $527,839 
(Factor= 18.987) 

k. 
Salvage Present Worth (Factor 

$423,134 $143,549 $216,862 $96,031 $402,770 $52,586 $229,624 $1,236,005 
= 0.9051) 

-· ... 
----~·-~-

Total Present \Yo1;th $26,248,004 $26,072,556 $26,027,942 $25,913,988 $26,315,852 $25,977,3341 $27,0SG,219 $28,897,705 

----.. ---· 
, _____ .. 

Note: Alternative 9 Includes Alts. 2, 3, 6, 7 and 8. Alternative 6 is recommended in lieu of combined Alts. 4 and 5. 
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A hydraulic model of the Gibson Water, Inc. distribution system was created using Bentley 

Systems' W aterCad software program. This program links a hydraulic modeling engine with a 

scaled map of the system generated with AutoCad. Modeling input variables include pipe diameter, 

pipe length, friction factors, pipe connectivity, storage tank locations and overflow elevations, 

pump curves, customer locations and customer demands. Pipe friction "C" factors of 130 to 140 

were used throughout the system for existing water main piping. A friction factor of C = 140 was 

used for new piping. 

Customer demands for typical residential users were based upon data presented in Chapter 3. High 

volume customers were identified and demand nodes were provided in the model to properly reflect 

the hydraulic impact of those customers on the system. Information regarding current system 

operation, pump on-off set points, water sales records, pump discharge rates, and operating ranges 

for elevated tanks has been gathered and entered into the hydraulic model. 

5.2.1 Demand 

The primary objective of a public water supply system is to furnish a safe, adequate, and high 

quality supply of water to meet the demands of its customers. To properly meet this goal, water 

demands must be accurately projected to insure that all components of the system are adequate. 

Facilities must be properly planned, designed, financed, and constructed prior to their imminent 

need. 

For this study, the terms used to define typically daily usage demands are: Average Day, Maximum 

Day, and Peak Hour. 

Average Daily Flow uses the yearly total volume of water distributed divided by the number of 

days in the year. For residential customers, the average daily flow used for this study is 0.4 gallons 

per minute per service connection. 

Maximum Daily Flow is the maximum volume of water distributed in any 24 hour period during 

the year. This flow condition typically occurs during hot summer months when water use is the 

greatest due to the use of swimming pools and watering of livestock, gardens and lawns. The ratio 

of maximum day to average day demand is assumed to be 1.5 for the Gibson Water system. The 

calculated Maximum Day Demand is then 0.6 gallons per minute per residential service connection. 

Peak Hourly Flow is the maximum volume of water distributed during any 60 minute period of the 

year. This condition usually occurs again during summer months and in the morning hours when 

many customers are simultaneously using water for showering, or in the evening when homeowners 

are returning from work and simultaneously using water for meal preparation, laundry and other 

activities. A typical peak hour to maximum day factor of 1.75 was used in the hydraulic model, 

resulting in a peak hourly demand rate of 1.05 gpm per residential service connection. For large 
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industrial customers such as Toyota which employ multiple work shifts, modeled demands entered 

into the model are based upon customer meter records, since a large fluctuation in consumption 

during the day is less likely. 

5.2.2 Existing System 

The existing distribution system was modeled under the described demand conditions to determine 

the recommended locations for needed improvements and their priorities. The existing system was 

analyzed at average day, maximum day, and peak hour flow demand conditions. Projected peak 

hour demands based upon year 2037 projections create the most severe operating conditions. The 

"Low Pressure" column presents modeled operating pressures for the existing piping network under 

Peak Hour conditions assuming no improvements to the system are made. 

It should be noted that the vast majority of the system experiences adequate operating pressures, 

within a range of 50 to 80 psi, even under peak hourly demand conditions. Inadequate pressures 

occur during high demand conditions at locations of high ground elevation in areas remote from 

existing storage facilities. Dead end mains and poor looping of the system in some areas also create 

pressure problems due to high pipeline headloss gradients. 

Modeling results for the existing system are included in Appendix K. Average Day Demand 

conditions are presented in Table K-1. Peak Hour Demand conditions are shown in Table K-2. 

The following table summarizes typical average pressures and low pressures experienced in the 

most critical portions of the system during current average day and peak hour demand conditions. 

The results are based upon steady state simulations with each elevated tank at a working elevation 

10' below overflow. 
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Hydraulic Analysis - Existing System without Improvements 
-- ---·------------·---- ---· ---

Node 
General Location 

Average Pressure Low Pressure 
Reference (psi) (psi) 

Node J-113 State Road 68, west of County Rd. 450E 34.6 21.0 

Node J-127 County Rd. 1250S at 150W 39.4 16.1 

Node J-129 County Rd. l 300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 41.8 14.2 

Node J-130 County Rd. 1300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 31.3 10.l 

Node J-131 County Rd. l 300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 32.2 10.5 

Node J-132 County Rd. 1300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 43.9 16.2 

Node J-133 County Rd. l 300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 49.4 21.6 

Node J-135 County Rd. 1200S west of C.R. 40W 43.l 22.7 

Node J-139 County Rd. 1200S east of C.R. 150W 39.7 19.3 

Node J-376 County Rd. 350W near C.R. 75S 50.4 22.8 

Node J-381 County Rd. 65S east of C.R. 325W 50.9 22.8 

Node J-382 County Rd. 350W north of C.R. 200S 31.8 13.l 

Node J-383 County Rd. 350W at 200S 43.4 24.9 

Node J-384 County Rd. 200S west of C.R. 350W 23.9 9.0 

Node J-385 County Rd. 350W south of C.R. 200S 42.6 23.2 

Node J-386 County Rd. 350W south of C.R. 200S 33.0 13.7 

Node J-407 County Rd. lOOOS at C.R. 250W 40.2 19.l 

Node J-408 County Rd. 1 OOOS at Clearview Drive 41.0 19.8 

Node J-409 County Rd. 250W south of C.R. 1 OOOS 38.1 16.9 

Node J-410 County Rd. 250W south of C.R. lOOOS 43.7 22.5 

Node J-411 County Rd. 1050S near State Rd. 68 40.7 19.5 

Node J-413 West end of system along S.R. 68 45.4 24.3 

Node J-425 County Rd. lOOOS at Joy Lane 41.0 19.8 

Node J-426 County Rd. lOOOS east of C.R. 250W 41.5 20.2 

Node J-428 North end of Joy Lane 44.0 22.8 

Node J-431 County Rd. 1200S at C.R. 40W 44.8 24.3 

Results of the hydraulic analysis of the existing distribution system show a minimum system 

pressure of approximately 24 psi under Average Day Demand Conditions at Junction Node J-384 
on County Road 200 South, west of County Road 350 West. Six of the junction locations in the 

above table exhibited operating pressures below the recommended minimum average of 35 psi 
during average demand conditions. 
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During a peak hourly demand condition, 15 locations show low system pressures below the 

minimum regulatory standard of20 psi. The Ten States Standard for Water Works requires that 20 

psi be maintained at all points in the distribution system under all flow demand conditions. A 

graphic presentation of the peak demand low pressure areas is provided on the map included in 

AppendixK. 

5.2.3 Existing System with Improvements 

Chapter 4 lists the recommended improvements needed to improve the performance of the Utility's 

water distribution system network. None of the individual improvements is adequate on its own to 

meet year 2037 projected demands. Low pressure areas already exist in the north, south, and 

southeast portions of the system. 

Due to the sprawling, expansive nature of the existing service area, the following Alternatives are 

all needed to provide acceptable operating pressure throughout the distribution system. Figures 4 

through 11 (Appendix A) show the locations of the recommended system improvements. 

Alternative 2 - County Road 225 W Water Line 

Alternative 2 will provide a vital link in the system to connect the north and south portions 

of the piping network west of U.S. Highway 41. Under present conditions, large areas west 

of U.S. 41 must endure service interruptions when a break occurs in an existing primary 

feeder. This water main extension will create connectivity between two large service areas, 

providing redundancy and greatly improved carrying capacity within the overall piping 

network. 

Alternative 3 - State Route 68 Water Line 

The purpose of Alternative 3 is to increase flow potential to the area around the new SR 68 

and 1-69 interchange. The improved carrying capacity will eliminate low pressure 

conditions during high demand periods and support future development activity near the 

interchange. 

Alternative 6 - County Roads 350 Wand 200 S Water Lines 

Alternative 6 is recommended as the preferred option over the implementation of 

Alternatives 4 and 5. Alternative 6 will create a large diameter loop in the CR 350 Wand 

200 S area and eliminates the 3-inch diameter bottlenecks which would remain if 

Alternatives 4 and 5 are constructed. The purpose of Alternative 6 is to reinforce the 

system in the northern portion of the service area west of Princeton. Alternative 6 provides 

system looping to increase flow capacity and operating pressure for customers in this high 

elevation area. The looped system will also improve water quality by eliminating two dead 

end 3-inch water mains. 
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Under Alternative 7, a 6-inch water main is recommended for construction along S.R. 64 

to connect an 8-inch water main on S.R. 65 with an existing 3-inch dead-end main S.R. 64. 

The new pipe completes an additional loop in the area west of Princeton. The purpose of 

Alternative 7 is to provide bi-directional flow, increased carrying capacity, and elimination 

of water quality degradation in the dead end 3-inch main. 

Alternative 8 - Parallel Booster Station Supply Main plus Booster Pump Replacement 

Alternative 8 provides for the installation of a parallel 16-inch diameter supply 

transmission main from the Evansville connection point and mater meter to the Utility's 

existing High Service Pumping Station. Alternative 8 also includes the installation of a 

second 8-inch diameter compound master meter and metering vault. The purpose of the 

new transmission main and master meter is to provide Gibson Water with redundancy in 

the critical transmission main should a rupture or failure occur in the existing supply main. 

Both transmission mains will be used in normal operation. The parallel transmission main 

will also reduce headloss to the booster station, supporting an increase in pumping capacity. 

Alternative 8 also includes the replacement of all three high service pumps at the existing 

booster station. As presented in Chapter 4, the existing pumps are not adequately sized to 

meet peak projected demands for the year 2037. Declining performance over the past 

several years has compromised the ability of the pumps to meet even the current maximum 

day flow demands. 

The replacement pumps should be designed to meet a projected maximum day demand of 

3.0 MGD for plan year 2037. As an additional margin of safety, it is recommended that 

the pumps be designed to meet the maximum day demand condition in an 18 hour pumping 

period. The recommended minimum firm capacity (pumping capacity with largest unit out 

of service) is therefore 2,775 gpm. Friction loss increases and pumping efficiency 

decreases with multiple pumps operating. The desired pumping condition can be met with 

one large pump and two smaller pumps, or with three equally sized pumps. The final 

determination will be made during the design phase, when additional hydraulic modeling 

will be performed to determine the most efficient pumping arrangement. New variable 

frequency drives should be provided for the pumps, and the power wasting pump control 

valves should be removed and replaced with conventional check valves. 

Table 12 contains the results of the hydraulic analysis of the system with the inclusion of all 

recommended improvements. 
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Table 12 

Hydraulic Analysis with Recommended System Improvements 
-· -----------·-·· 

Node 
General Location 

Average Pressure Low Pressure 
Reference (psi) (psi) 

·- --·-- -· -
Node J-113 State Road 68, west of County Rd. 450E 45.2 41.9 

Node J-127 County Rd. l 250S at l 50W 46.5 30.2 

Node J-129 County Rd. 1300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 49.0 28.3 

Node J-130 County Rd. l 300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 38.5 21.3 

Node J-131 County Rd. 1300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 39.4 22.1 

Node J-132 County Rd. l 300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 51.1 30.3 

Node J-133 County Rd. l 300S west of Scottsdale Dr. 56.3 35.7 

Node J-135 County Rd. 1200S west of C.R. 40W 50.3 36.7 

Node J-139 County Rd. 1200S east of C.R. 150W 47.7 35.1 

Node J-376 County Rd. 350W near C.R. 75S 70.4 56.6 

Node J-381 County Rd. 65S east of C.R. 325W 70.9 52.2 

Node J-382 County Rd. 350W north of C.R. 200S 68.6 57.4 

Node J-383 County Rd. 350W at 200S 83.2 73.5 

Node J-384 County Rd. 200S west of C.R. 350W 63.1 52.9 

Node J-385 County Rd. 350W south of C.R. 200S 82.5 73.0 

Node J-386 County Rd. 350W south of C.R. 200S 73.0 63.5 

Node J-407 County Rd. 1 OOOS at C.R. 250W 49.0 36.3 

Node J-408 County Rd. lOOOS at Clearview Drive 49.8 37.l 

Node J-409 County Rd. 250W south of C.R. 1 OOOS 46.8 34.2 

Node J-410 County Rd. 250W south of C.R. 1 OOOS 52.4 39.8 

Node J-411 County Rd. 1050S near State Rd. 68 49.4 36.8 

Node J-413 West end of system along S.R. 68 54.2 41.5 

Node J-425 County Rd. 1 OOOS at Joy Lane 49.8 37.l 

Node J-426 County Rd. lOOOS east of C.R. 250W 50.2 37.5 

Node J-428 North end of Joy Lane 52.8 40.0 

Node J-431 County Rd. 1200S at C.R. 40W 51.9 38.3 

With the improvements in place, all junction nodes meet the minimum average working pressure 

standard of 35 psi. More importantly, all nodes meet the regulatory standard of a 20 psi minimum 

pressure during peak hourly demand conditions. 
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Alternatives 2, 3, 7, and 8 do not have different options to be compared against. Therefore, a 

selection matrix for these alternatives was unnecessary. Alternative 6 serves as an option to 

combined Alternatives 4 and 5. Table 13 presents the Selection Matrix developed to evaluate the 

use of Alternatives 6 in lieu of combined Alternatives 4 and 5. Criteria were evaluated and assigned 

a value of 1 or 2, with 1 being most favorable. The values were then totaled and the Alternative 

with the lowest total is considered the preferred option. 

Table 13 
Selection Matrix 

Criteria 
Alternatives 

4&5 --
Initial Cost 1 

Overall System Impact 2 

Construction Impacts 1 

Small Dia. Pipe Replaced 2 

System Performance 2 

Total 8 

5.4 NON-MONETARY FACTORS 

Alternative' 
6 

2 

1 
1 

1 
1 

6 

Non-monetary factors are those aspects of construction and system operation which cannot readily 

be assigned a monetary value. These factors include: traffic impacts; construction noise; removal 

of trees and shrubs; impacts to businesses; impacts to neighborhoods; loss of services; etc. 

5.4.1 Traffic Impacts 

Most of the proposed improvements are in rural areas of the County. Alternatives 2, 6, 7, and 8 are 

examples. The roads where the Alternatives will be installed are sparsely traveled and have a 

relatively small number of homes and businesses. Work will be contained within utility easements. 

Where existing water mains are upsized, the work will be conducted within existing easements. A 

travel lane will be maintained during construction. Because there is very little traffic, no rigorous 

form of traffic control is anticipated, and vehicles will be addressed as needed. 

Alternatives 3 and 7 include water main piping to be installed adjacent to the rights of way of State 

Roads 68 and 64, respectively. SR 68 and 64, in the project areas, are two lane paved roads. A 

travel lane will be maintained during construction and INDOT approved traffic control measures 

will be utilized as needed. 

Except during construction, traffic will not be significantly increased. Construction traffic will 
include: material delivery; worker's cars and trucks; equipment; and spoil removal. Material 

delivery will be spread over the project and not significantly increase traffic. Equipment will be 
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delivered to the site and stay until the work is complete. Traffic impacts due to the proposed 

projects are not expected to be significant. 

5.4.2 Construction Noise 

As noted in paragraph 5.4.1, Alternatives 2, 6, 7 and 8 are in remote areas with few houses or 
businesses. Therefore, in these areas, construction noise will not pose a significant problem. 

Alternative 3 is in more a developed area; however, structures are still widely spaced. Noise 

impacts will be minimized by the distance to residences. The proposed pipes are small diameter; 
therefore, only smaller equipment will be used. This will help minimize construction noise. 

Impacts from construction noise are expected to be minimal and construction activities will be 

limited to normal daytime working hours. 

5.4.3 Removal of Trees and Shrubs 

To the greatest extent possible, all pipe installation will be performed within private utility 
easements. Most of the areas consist of farmland and the loss of trees is expected to be minimal. 

The installation of isolation valves and flushing hydrants will be minimally invasive, making use 

of field lines, fence lines, and field access drives. Farming of the land above the water mains should 
not be adversely affected. During design, significant trees will be identified and appropriate 

measures included in the design to preserve the trees. Disturbed ground will be restored to 
preconstruction grades using like materials. 

Only Alternative 3 has significant vegetation along the roads. The removal of trees and shrubs is 
not expected to be a concern during construction. 

5.4.4 Impacts to Businesses 

Again, most Alternatives are located in remote areas of the County. No businesses are present in 

the project areas. While along a paved road, the project sites for Alternatives 3 and 7 also do not 
have any businesses other than rural farming operations. 

In addition to residences, there are several businesses within the SR 64 project area. Steps will be 
taken during construction to maintain access to parking lots and entrances. At the end of each day's 

work, trenches around businesses will be filled or covered with plates to provide access. 

Construction impacts to businesses for the proposed projects are expected to be minimal or non­

existent. 
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5.4.5 Service Interruptions 

Except for Alternative 3 and a portion of Alternative 6, all proposed pipes will be installed in areas 

without service. Connections to existing pipes will be by "wet taps" to active pipes. Therefore, 

there will be no loss of service. 

Alternative 6 entails paralleling some existing small diameter pipe. The existing pipe along CR 

350 W serves a small number of customers. The 3-inch main in CR 200 S serves a turkey farm 

which is a high volume water user. Construction in these areas will be scheduled to avoid taking 

the existing pipe out of service until the new pipe is installed, tested, disinfected and placed into 

operation. At this point the existing services will be transferred to the new pipe. A short period of 

service disruption will be required. The service interruption will be coordinated with the farmer 

and homeowners. Once the transfer has occurred, the existing pipe will be abandoned. 

Alternative 3 replaces existing 4-inch pipe with a new 8-inch water main. The new main will be 

installed, tested, disinfected and placed into service before services are transferred to the new pipe. 

A short loss of service will be required during the transfer. All loss of services will be coordinated 

with the property owners. 

Loss of water service during construction is expected to be minimal. 

5.4.6 Community Impacts 

As noted, Alternatives 2, 6, 7 and 8 are located in remote areas of the County. Therefore, in these 

locations there are no densely populated areas to disrupt. 

The project area for Alternative 3 has widely spaced residences. The proposed projects consist of 

pipe installation and are therefore linear in nature. Disruptions in any given area will be short lived. 

The greatest disruption will be created by trench excavation and material stockpiling. Pipe will be 

stored along the alignment for quick access. Additionally, stockpiles of granular backfill material 

will be stored along the alignment. All materials will be temporarily stored within easement or 

public R/W unless previous arrangements have been made with the property owner. Stockpiles 

will be depleted quickly as installation progresses. Disturbed areas will be restored immediately 

following testing. All community disruptions will be temporary. 

Booster pump replacement, VFD and check valve replacement, and SCADA system improvements 

will be performed in a manner which allows at least one of the Utility's high capacity pumps to 

remain in service at all times during the course of construction. No loss of service is anticipated. 
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CHAPTER 6 - PROPOSED PROJECT 

6.1 PROJECT DESIGN 

The proposed project consists of six (6) elements: 

i. Alternative 2 - County Road 225 W Water Main Extension; 

ii. Alternative 3 - State Route 68 Water Main Extension; 

iii. Alternative 6 - County Roads 350 Wand 200 S Water Mains; 

1v. Alternative 7 - State Road 64 Water Main Extension; 

v. Alternative 8 - Parallel Booster Station Transmission Main plus Booster Pump 

Replacements. 

Restrained joint pipe will be used at all fittings and valves. Pipe will be bedded per manufacturer 

recommendations, generally in granular material up to 1 foot above the pipe crown. Within traffic 

areas, the trench will be backfilled to grade with granular material per INDOT requirements. 

In addition, Alternative 8 will include a second Master Meter with an 8-inch diameter compound 

meter. Alternative 8 also includes a bored and jacked crossing ofl-64. The crossing will consist 

of a 16" D .I. carrier pipe installed within a 24" diameter welded steel casing pipe. 

Figure 10 (Appendix A) presents the location of the proposed projects within the service area. 

6.1.1 Alternative 2 - County Road 225 W Water Main Extension 

Alternative 2 includes the installation of a new 8-inch water main on County Road (CR) 225 W 

from CR 950 to State Route (SR) 168. The new water line will connect an existing 8-inch pipe on 

CR 905 with a 6-inch pipe at the intersection of CR 225 W and SR 168. The Alternative 2 

approximate total pipe length is 16, 175 feet. The location and alignment of Alternative 2 is shown 

on Figure 4 (Appendix A). 

6.1.2 Alternative 3 - State Road 68 Water Main 

Alternative 3 replaces an existing 4-inch pipe on SR 68 with a new 8-inch water line. The new 

water main connects an existing 8-inch pipe at the intersection of SR 68 and CR 350 E with an 

existing 3-inch pipe at the intersection of SR 68 and CR 450 E. The approximate total pipe length 

of Alternative 3 is 5,272 feet. The location and alignment of Alternative 3 is shown on Figure 5 
(Appendix A). 

6.1.3 Alternative 6 - County Roads 350 Wand 200 S Water Mains 

Alternative 6 provides for the installation of a new 8-inch main on CR 350 W, a new 6-inch main 

on CR 200 S and replaces the existing dead-end 3-inch mains on both of those roads. Total pipe 

length for Alternative 6 is approximately 16,310 feet. Approximately 4,450 feet of existing 3-inch 
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pipe would be replaced. The location and alignment of Alternative 6 is shown on Figure 7 

(Appendix A). 

6.1.4 Alternative 7 - State Road 64 Water Main Extension 

Alternative 7 includes the construction of a new 6-inch ~ater main on SR 64 to connect the existing 

8-inch pipe on SR 65 with an existing 3-inch dead end water main on SR 64. The approximate 

total pipe length of Alternative 7 is 2,397 feet. The location and alignment of Alternative 8 is 

shown on Figure 8 (Appendix A). 

6.1.5 Alternative 8 - Parallel Booster Station Transmission Main plus Booster Pump Replacement 

Alternative 8 provides for the construction of a parallel ,16-inch transmission main from the 

Evansville Master Meter to the Gibson Water High Service Booster Station. In addition, a new 8-

inch master meter with vault will be installed near the location of the existing master meter. The 

transmission main should also be extended northward along County Road SOE from the Booster 

Station to County Road 1200S. This will provide needed redundancy and improve pump 

performance and efficiency during normal operating conditions. The approximate length of new 

16-inch pipe is 7,000 ft. The alignment requires a 300 foot bored and jacked crossing ofl-64. 

Additionally, new easement may be required for the alignment. The location and alignment of 

Alternative 8 are shown on Figure 9 (Appendix A). 

Alternative 8 also includes the replacement of all three high service pumps at the existing booster 

station. The new pumps will be provided with variable frequency drives to maximize efficiency 

and ramp the pumps up and down slowly to prevent pipeline surges. Existing problematic pump 

control valves will be removed and replaced with conventional swing type check valves. 

6.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Table 14 presents a preliminary timeline and estimated milestone dates for the recommended 

project. 
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Project Schedule and Milestone Dates 

Task Description •• mmmm -, Est. Completion Date 

~l~~;::E:~~~iE:;_~~~~--=t?::~;~i: ... 
Umbaugh presents rate report to Board ! November, 2017 

-·--·-------·-·--------·-····---------···-····------··- ··-···-------------···- ·-----------r------·-·--···---------·· 

USDA-RD Approves PER and Environmental Report I December, 2017 
------------- ---------------------.. ·-------··-----~------·--------~---__j__------·-···----------~-·-·· 

Petition and Case-in-Chief Evidence filed with IURC 

Begins 10 month period for the IURC to issue and order 

Test year not more than 4 months old 

USDA-RD Issues a "Letter of Conditions" 

December, 2017 

January, 2018 

Authorize Engineer to proc~ed with project design ! _. ~e~ru~ry, 2018 

Submit ~l~~~~~~~-Cons~~~t~()Jl~~~i~~Elica_ti<J~~o ID~~--------J ___ _.Jll_n~,-~~1~------
Eas~~:'1t Acq_~i-~ion ---------·---·--- ________________ J ___ _!ll_l~2018 ___ _ 

IDEM Issues Construction Penn it i August, 2018 
-·····-----------··-----------·------· ·--------··---------- . -··------·------+------------------·---

Advertise for Bids i September, 2018 
Re~~-i~~-Bids ------------------·-----·-----------·-·---------r-----O~tober, 201S __ _ 

·---~--·-·-----·---····----------· ---------------------·-·-----------------1------------·------··-

0rder received from the IURC i November, 2018 
~--···--·-----------·--·---- .... --------··------- ... ---------·------------~- - -·-··--·------------

USDA-RD Loan Closing I November, 2018 
·------------···-------- -----------·-··-··----- .. ---------·----------------------·· -----+-------------·-------- -

Award Construction Contracts and Notice to Proceed j November, 2018 
~---·---~-- -·-·----------····-·----·-··-··-----------··-····----------------··------T--- ·-· ---- -----

New rates first billed 
1 

December, 2018 
----------·---------------··----------- --------·-··-·------------ .. -. -------------------------1----------. --------
Substantial Completion of Construction l August, 2019 

-----···--·---------- .. -- -------- -·----·------- - ------------·-·----------!--------·-· --·-·--··-------·----
Final Inspection I September, 2019 

Substantial Completion and Final Inspection dates are based on the inclusion of all recommended 
system improvements. MEI expects individual water main projects to be completed sequentially, 
although a large contractor employing multiple crews may work on separate water main 
extensions simultaneously. Therefore, multiple Substantial Completion and Final Inspections 
may be performed during the construction. As individual projects are completed the mains will 
be tested and placed into service. Project documents will leave the order of construction of the 
projects to the discretion of the Contractor. 

6.3 PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

A PWS (Public Water Supply) Construction Permit application will be required by the Indiana 

Department of Environmental Management (IDEM) for the construction of the major project 
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components. MEI anticipates a single construction permit will be issued rather than individual 

permits for each portion of the project. 

No major stream crossings are required by any of the pipelines. The minor crossings will be 

accomplished by trenchless methods with the existing roadway R/W. Therefore, no Indiana 

Department of Natural Resources (DNR) or IDEM Section 401 Water Quality Certification are 

required. 

Alternatives 3, 7 and 8 may at points encroach upon or cross the R/W of state roads. INDOT Right 

of Way Permits may therefore be required for these alternatives. Alternatives 2, 6 and 8 may utilize 

County Road right-of-way at some locations. Plans and specifications will be submitted to the 

Gibson County Highway Dept. for review and comment and construction permits will be obtained 

from the agency where necessary. 

Alternative 8 requires a crossing of Interstate-64. A separate INDOT construction permit will be 

obtained for the jacked and bored crossing 

6.4 SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS 

Alternatives 2, 6, and 7 include the installation of pipe in areas without existing water service. This 

provides Gibson Water with potential new customers. Gibson Water, Inc. will be responsible for 

asset management and making sure that its water distribution system remains in good working 

order. The Utility has practiced excellent infrastructure management through the years, providing 

proactive operation and regular maintenance of its storage facilities, distribution system and 

pumping facilities. 

6.4.1 Water and Energy Efficiency 

Alternatives 2, 6, and 7 provide looping of the distribution system and eliminate dead ends. Dead 

ends combined with periodic low flow conditions in the area result in poor water quality. To relieve 

the problem the pipes are flushed regularly and water wasted. The completed loops will mitigate 

problems associated with poor water quality, reducing the flushing requirement and saving water. 

Alternative 8 installs a parallel 16-inch diameter supply transmission main to the Booster Pump 

Station. Modeling shows the parallel transmission main reduces head loss to the station. In the 

model, this helps to support increased pumping capacity due to the higher suction side pressure. In 

actual operation, the increased suction head will allow Gibson Water to reduce pump speed using 

the variable speed drives. The reduced operating speed will lower energy consumption. The 

existing pump control valves waste energy and will be unnecessary once the new pumps and 

variable frequency drives are installed. The energy inefficient valves will be eliminated. 
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Existing grades will be restored following pipe installation. Restorative ground covers will match 

or improve on existing conditions. Therefore, the projects will not increase runoff volume or 

change drainage patterns. Properly designed and maintained erosion control measures will be 

installed to stop runoff and sediment from leaving the project site. As the water projects are linear 

in nature, erosion control measures will be moved with construction. Measures will not be removed 

before suitable ground cover restoration is established. 

6.4.3 Other 

Alternative 8 provides Gibson Water with a second source supply transmission main to the Booster 

Pump Station. Gibson Water currently has only one supply line. If the main breaks or if other 

repairs are needed, Gibson Water is effectively without a supply source. The elevated tanks, when 

full, provide only 1.5 days of storage at average demand, assuming no fire flow usage. 

6.5 TOTAL PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 

Table 15 provides an itemized estimate of project costs based upon a 12-month construction period. 

This preliminary estimate includes costs for construction, a 10% construction contingency, and 

estimated non-construction costs associated with engineering fees administrative expenses. All 

construction costs are based on estimated 2017 dollars and reflect current market conditions within 

the public water supply construction industry. 
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Engineer's Opinion of Probable Project Cost 

I tern Description Cost Total Cost 

Probable Construction Costs: 

1. Alternative 2 - County Road 225W Water Main Extension $521,800 

2. Alternative 3 - State Route 68 Water Main Extension $268,500 

3. Alternative 6 - County Roads 350W and 200S Water Mains $562,000 

4. Alternative 7 - State Road 64 Water Line $158,900 

5. Alternative 8 - Parallel Booster Station Transmission Main, Additional 
$998,400 

Master Meter & Vault, Booster Pump and VFD Replacement 

Subtotal, Probable Construction Cost: $2,509,600 

Probable Non-Construction Costs: 

10% Construction Contingency: $250,960 

Engineering: 

Preliminary Engineering Report $25,000 

Environmental Assessment $15,000 

Design, Construction Engineering Services (8.3%) $208,300 

Construction Inspection (9 months) $144,000 

Total Engineering: $392,000 

Land Acquisition, Utility Easements 

Alternative 2 - CR 225W Water Main Extension $32,400 

Alternative 3 - SR 68 Water Main Extension $10,400 

Alternative 6 - CR 350W & 200S Water Main Extension $24,000 

Alternative 7 - SR 64 Water Main Extension $8,600 

Alternative 8 - Parallel Booster Station Transmission Mains $13,200 

Total Land Acquisition, Easement Costs: $88,600 

Easement Document Preparation $7,500 

Easement Negotiation, Procurement $30,000 

Legal and Financial Assistance (ncluding IURC Filing) $265,000 

Archaeological Reconnaissance $15,000 

Crop Damage $21,000 

Subtotal, Probable Non-Construction Costs: $1,070,400 

Total Probable Project Cost: $3,580,000 

Subtotals are rounded to the nearest hundred. 

Note: Projects funded through the USDA Rural Utility Service or the State Revolving Fund program will be subject to American 
Iron and Steel requirements. The term iron and steel products means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined 
or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, 
valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials. 
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As presented in Chapter 2, Table 7, the Utility's annual income is derived almost entirely from 

local metered water sales. In addition to repaying the principal and interest associated with funding 

the recommended water system improvements, a budget must be prepared to account for annual 

operating expenses, replacement of short lived assets, and retirement of existing debt. Appendix 

I contains the latest Gibson Water financial data. 

6.6.1 Income 

Table 16 presents Gibson Water's projected annual operating receipts based upon the 2015 

operating budget and 2016 Billing Report. 

Table 16 
Annual Operating Receipts 

Revenue Source I Annual Receipts I ... ·-

Water Sales $ 1,541,500 

Miscellaneous $ 29,300 

Other $ 7,600 

Total Annual Revenue: $ 1,578,400 

6.6.2 Annual Operating Budget 

The recommended water works improvements will have minimal effect on annual utility operation 

and maintenance expenses. The proposed improvements increase the amount of pipe in the system 

by 56,150 feet, a 5.8% increase. Therefore, the insurance cost was increased proportionally. The 

greatest impact on annual Utility operating expense will be seen in the cost for purchased water, 

due to updated rate tariffs recently adapted by the Evansville Water Utility. Table 17 presents 

estimated annual operating and maintenance expenses for year 2018. 
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·------------------------- ·---·~-. -·~-.-~. ·-~. ·-----

Table 17 

Projected Annual Operation and Maintenance Expenses 

Item Cost 

Salaries and Wages $ 337,318 

Employee Benefits - PERF $ 138,619 

Purchased Power 
Pumping $ 33,000 
Other Power Requirements $ 7,876 

Insurance $ 25,928 

Contractual Services $ 43,470 

Materials and Supplies $ 29,564 

Transportation $ 12,066 

Tank Maintenance and Short Lived Asset Reserve $ 154,341 

Bad Debt Expense $ 795 

Cost of Water $ 1,063,315 

Miscellaneous $ 27,109 

TOTAL: $ 1,873,401 

6. 7 DEBT REPAYMENTS 

Based on Gibson Water's Financial Statements for 2014 and 2015, long term debt will be retired 

in 2017. 

Table 18 on the next page provides an amortization schedule showing the net monthly payments 

required to fund the recommended water works improvements project and assumes all prior 

outstanding debt has been retired. This analysis assumes USDA-Rural Development funding 

through issuance of a 40-year loan with an annual interest rate of 3. 75% (Anticipated USDA-Rural 

Development Market Rate for Water and Environmental Programs at the time of loan 

committment). 

The loan amortization and preliminary rate derivation assumes an across-the-board rate increase 

for all customer classes, including residential, industrial and resale users. Gibson Water utilizes a 

declining block rate schedule. Industrial and resale customers receive a favorable rate because of 

the significantly greater volume of water purchased by those wholesale customers. 
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Industrial and Resale customer monthly rate adjustments were calculated per 1,000 Gal. This was 

done because Gibson Water's existing rate schedule (See Appendix J) is based on a charge per 

1,000 Gallons. The Pro Forma financial figures are based upon unaudited financial information for 

the twelve months ended August 31, 2017, as provided in the January 2018 Rate Study. 

Table 18 

Preliminary Amortization Table and Rate Derivation 

Item Pro Forma 

a Total Cost of Capital Improvements: $3,580,000 

b Loan Term (Years) 40 

c Interest Rate 3.75% 

d Interest During Construction $40,000 

e Total Bond Issue: (a+ d) $3,620,000 

f Gross Monthly Payment: $14,570 

g Annual Debt Service: (fx 12) $174,847 

h Debt Service Reserve: $17,485 

i Long Term Asset Replacement Reserve $126,143 

j Annual O&M (Incl. Short-Lived Asset Reserve): $1,873,401 

k Total Annual Revenue Requirement (g + h + i + j) $2,191,876 

1 Less Interest Income ($229) 

m Less Miscellaneous Income ($7,995) 

n Net Annual Revenue Requirements: $2,183,652 

Pro Forma Water Revenues: 

0 Water Sales $1,830,927 

p Fire Protection $22,680 

q Total Annual Revenues: $1,853,607 

r Additional Revenues Required (n - q) $330,045 

s 
Approximate Across-the-Board Increase in Present Rates and 

17.80% 
Charges (r -7 q): 

t Current Residential Rate for 4,000 Gallons: $31.30 

u Approx. Increase in Monthly Residential Water Bill: $5.58 

v Projected Residential Rate for 4,000 Gallons: $36.88 

w Current Rate per 1,000 Gallons, Industrial and Resale Users $2.66 

x Projected Rate per 1,000 Gallons, Industrial and Resale Users $3.13 
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--~.~.~~-----· ~--··-----------------------· 

6. 7 .1 Reserves 

6.7.1.1 

6.7.1.2 

Gibson Water's revenue primarily comes from monthly rates and is used to fund staffing and 

administrative expenses, capital projects, and the depreciation of capital assets. Existing ratepayers 

and the resale of water through the Haubstadt agreement must support the full cost of providing 

service. Those costs must include an allowance for annual depreciation of assets. Though 

depreciation is not a direct cash expense, Gibson Water should use an allowance for depreciation 

as a resource for partially funding capital re-investment in the system. This is a common way to 

equitably charge current customers for use and decline of the system. It provides a major source 

of capital re-investment, which can be augmented with use of debt financing. 

Short-Lived Asset Reserve 

The majority of Gibson Water's assets are long term such as water mains, storage tanks and 

customer meters. The only short term assets are in the Booster Station and consist of: the high 

service pumps and motors; the pump controls; the system telemetry, master meters and 

vehicles. Table 19 presents a listing of Short-Lived Utility Assets, including the estimated 

replacement period and the annual reserve required to fund replacement of each item. 

Long Term Replacements and Improvements Reserve 

An annual depreciation reserve in the amount of roughly 1.0% of total assets is recommended 

to provide for improvements or replacement of long term assets. 

The 2015 Financial Report reported the Gibson Water total assets were $12,839,500 on 

December 31, 2015. This figure will be used as the basis for depreciation to allow for 

replacement of aging major equipment and other utility assets over time. The recommended 

minimum annual allowance for replacement and improvements to long term capital assets is 

$126,143 as presented in the Pro Forma Annual Revenue Requirements included in the 2018 

Rate Study. 
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Table 19 

Short-Lived Utility Assets Reserve Schedule 

Replacement Total Number Annualized 
Asset Description Period in Estimated of Replacement 

Years Cost Assets Cost 
~-

1,500 GPM High Service Pump Motor 15 $ 10,350 2 $ 1,380 

800 GPM High Service Pump Motors 15 $ 7,000 1 $ 470 

Turbine Type Flow Meters 15 $ 11,000 1 $ 730 

6" Compound Flow Meter 15 $ 13,000 1 $ 870 

8" Compound Flow Meters 15 $ 20,000 1 $ 1,340 

SCADA, Instrumentation 10 $ 100,000 1 $ 10,000 

Tank Repainting Reserve $ 138,600 $138,600 

Equivalent Annual Replacement Cost (Present System): $153,390 

Replacement Total Number Annualized 
Asset Description Period in Estimated of Replacement 

Years Cost Assets Cost 

1,500 GPM High Service Pump Motor 15 $ 10,350 3 $ 2,070 

Turbine Type Flow Meters 15 $ 11,000 2 $ 1,470 

6" Compound Flow Meter 15 $ 13,000 1 $ 870 

8" Compound Flow Meters 15 $ 20,000 1 $ 1,340 

SCADA, Instrumentation 10 $ 100,000 1 $ 10,000 

Tank Repainting Reserve $ 69,300 $138,600 

Equivalent Annual Replacement Cost (Proposed Project): $154,350 

Total annual revenue requirements including the recommended long-term replacement and 
improvements reserve and short-lived asset reserve are presented in Table 20. Short lived assets 

are included in the annual operating and maintenance costs. 

Table 20 

Annual Revenue Requirements for Project Funding 

II Revenue Requirements ·· 1 · ~~o:;= 
I.~~~~" ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-~~~~~~~-~ 

Operation, Maintenance, Salaries (Incl. Short Lived Assets) i $ 1,873,401 
................... ··································································································-·--·-····-·---·-························ ································ ................... ·················· .................................. - ............ -j ........... _,_ ............................................................. . 

Annual Debt Service I $ 174,847 
........... - .................................................................................. -----··-·-'"""""""'"""""""'_,_ ... _ .............. _ .......... _,_, __ ,, .. ,,_ ....... _ ..... - ................................................ __ .... 1·-.. --........... - .... - •• - .. .. 

Debt Service Reserve ! $ 17,485 
Annual Replacement and Improveme~t~R~~e~~ ·-.... -·-·-............. . ............. r .. $ .. i26;i43 . 
Total Annual Revenue Requirement: $ 2,191,876 
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CHAPTER 7 - CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

This PER has been prepared to provide a comprehensive evaluation of Gibson Water's public water supply 

facilities and to present recommendations for system improvements. Water quality and water system 

reliability are critical factors which help to define the quality oflife within a community. All public water 

utilities must strive to provide a safe, reliable and high quality supply of water that is pleasing and affordable 

to its customers. 

The existing water distribution system is plagued by a number of dead end water mains and the lack of 

system looping to provide redundant bidirectional feeds to critical areas. Low system operating pressures 

occur in a number of these areas during peak water demand conditions. Improvement and reinforcement 

of the system is essential to improve carrying capacity and hydraulic gradients, particularly in high elevation 

areas. The following alternatives, expressed as water main extensions, are recommended to insure Gibson 

Water, Inc. 's ability to adequately meet projected maximum daily and peak hourly demand conditions: 

7.1 Alternative 2 - County Road 225 W Water Main Extension 

Alternative 2 is essential to provide connectivity between the northern and southern sections of the 

distribution system west of U.S. Highway 41. Four of the low pressure conditions during peak 

demand lie west of U.S. 41. The County Road 225W water main extension is key to improving 

carrying capacity in this portion of the system. 

7.2 Alternative 3 - State Route 68 Water Main 

Alternative 3 's purpose is to increase system carrying capacity to area northwest of the I-69/SR 68 

interchange. Two locations in this region experience low pressure due to high ground elevation 

relative to the pressure source. Providing adequate water service to the intersection is hindered at 

this time due to the bottleneck created by the existing 4" water main which extends to the area 

along SR 68. We recommend the construction of Alternative 3 as it will greatly improve system 

carrying capacity and will allow Gibson Water to serve future development in the area. 

7.3 Alternative 6 - County Roads 200 Sand 350 W Water Mains 

Alternative 6 is needed to improve service to a high elevation rural area west of Princeton. This 

alternative will also replace existing 3-inch diameter dead end water mains pipes CR 200 Sand 350 

W. The new mains will provide a large diameter loop and bidirectional flow capability to improve 

operating pressure and water quality in the area. This Alternative is the prudent, cost-effective 

approach for eliminating existing 3" bottlenecks and improving overall performance in this portion 

of the distribution system network. 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. Page 52 of 53 September, 2017 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

7.4 Alternative 7 - State Road 64 Water Main Extension 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Alternative 7 is intended to complete a system loop and eliminate poor water quality in the dead­

end water main on SR 64 in the northwest portion of the distribution system. Alternative 7 increases 

carrying capacity in both the 8-inch water main on SR 65 and the 3 inch main on SR 64. The length 

of pipe required is relatively small. We recommend Alternative 7 as a cost effective means of 

improving system performance and eliminating water quality concerns associated with the existing 

3-inch unlooped main. 

7.5 Alternative 8 - Parallel Booster Station Supply Main plus Booster Pump Replacement 

The purpose of Alternative 8 is to provide a redundant transmission main to convey water from the 

connection point with Evansville to the Gibson Water Booster Station. The Alternative also 

provides critical redundancy by paralleling the lone transmission main from the Booster Station to 

the 20" primary feeder which conveys water to the 1.5 million gallon tank east of Toyota 

Manufacturing. Reliability of the supply source is essential to minimize outages and possible 

intenuptions in water service. 

Redundancy is the best means of maintaining normal supply should a breakdown or failure occur 

in one transmission main. The new supply main should also be provided with a dedicated Master 

Meter and vault. In normal operation, the second transmission main will help to reduce friction 

losses in the flow of water to and from the Booster Station. The increased suction pressure will 

allow Gibson Water to slightly increase pump output and/or reduce pump operating speed, thereby 

saving energy and reducing pumping costs. 

Alternative 8 also includes upgrades to the Utility's high service pumping equipment to insure the 

ability of the system to meed projected maximum day demand conditions for plan year 2037. 
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Appendix A - Figures 

General Location Map 

Gibson Water Inc. Service Area 

Map of Existing Water Distribution System 

Alternative 2: County Road 225W Water Main Extension 

Alternative 3: State Route 68 Water Main 

Alternatives 4 & 5: County Road 350W and 200S Water Main Extensions 

Alternative 6: Combined County Road 350W and County Road 200S Water Mains 

Alternative 7: State Road 64 Water Main Extension 

Alternative 8: Parallel Booster Station Transmission Main & Booster Pump Replacement 

Proposed Project, General Location Map 
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02/I 1/2016 
Indiana County Endangeredi Threatened and 1la1·e Species List 

County: Gibson 

Species Name· 

Crustacean: Mahlcostraca, Crayfish 
Orconectes indianensis 

Ctustliccan: Mahlcqstrnca, Isopods 
Ca~cid9tea beattyi 

Moilusk: Bivalvi:i. (Mussels) 
Cumberlandia monodonta 
Cyprogenia stegarla 
.Epiobtasma flexuosa 
Epiobfasma propinqua 
Epiobtasma torulosa torulosa 
l:plOblasma triquetra 
Fu.sconaia .subrotunda 
LampsiliS' abrup~ 
Larnpsilis.oVata 
ligumia recta 
Obovaria retusa 
Obovaria subrotunda 
Plethobasus cicatricasus 
Plethobasus cooperianus 
Plethobasus cyphyus 
Pleurobema c!ava 
Pl~urobema cordab.i.tTl: 
Plel,lrobema plenum 
Pleurobema pyrqmld(ltum 
Potamilus capax 
Ptychobranc::hus·.fa$9iolaris 
Quadrula cylindrica cylind.ric;:a 

lnsect:.Ephenteropteta·(l\iayflies) 
Homoeoneuria ammophlla 
Pseudiron c;entralis 

Insect: Lepldoptera (Butterfly) 
Euphyes dukesi 

J,l'ish 
Etheostoma sqiJamiceps 

Amphibian 
Acris blanctiardi' 

Reptile 
Kinosternon subrubrum sl.ibrubrum 
Nerodia erythrqgaster neglecta 

Indiana Na1ural lierhoge Data Cenler 
Division of Nature Preserve$ 
lndia.na Departmen1 of Nii1ural Resources 
This data is l)Ol the. rcs\111 of coniprchi:li$ive county 
surveys. 

Common Name FED 

lndiana Crayfish 

An I$opod 

Spectac::lecase C 
Eastern Fanshelf Pearlymussel LE 
Lcaf$hell 

Tennessee Riffleslwll 
Tubercled Blosso1ii ·LE 

Snuffbox LE 
Longsolid 
Pink Mucket ·LE 
Pocketbook-
Black San~shell 

Ring Pmk 
Roilnd I:Ifokorynut 
White Wartyback 
Orangefoot Ph11pleback 

Sheepnose 

Clubshell 
Ohi9· Pigtoe 
Rough ·Pigtoc 
Pyramid figtoe 
.Fat Pocketbook 
KidrteySbell 
Rabbitsfoot 

A Sand~filtering Mayfly 
A Mayfly 

Scarce Swamp Skipper 

Spottail Darter 

No11hern Cricket Frog 

Eastern Mud Turtle 
Copperbelly Water Snake 

LE 

LE 
LE 
LE 
LE 

LE 

LE 

LT 

PS:LT 

SR 

$X: 
SE 
sx 
sx 
SE 
SE 
-SE 
SE 

sx 
SE 
SE 

SE 
SE 

SE 

SSC 
SE 

SE 

SE 
SSC 

SE 

SE 
SE 

ST 

03 

03 
GlQ 
ox 
GX 
G2T~ 

'<33 
03 
02 
GS 
0405 
Gl 
·64 
'Gl 
Gl 
03 
·GlG2 
G4 
Gl 
G2G3 
02 
0405 
G3G4T~ 

G4 
GS 

G3 

G4G5 

SSC GS 

SE 

SE 

G5T5 
G5T3 

Fed: LE = Endangered: LT= Threalened; C = candidate; PDL ~proposed for delisting 

SRANi< 

.Sl 

sx 
Sl 
$X 
s~ sx 
Sl 
sx 
sx 
·s2. 

Si 
sx 
Sl 
s-x 
sx 
Sl 
St 
Si· 
$1 

sx 
Sl 

.S2 
Sl 

SI 
St 

SIS2 

S2S3 

S4 

State: SE =stale endangered; ST=- stale threatened; SR= slate: rare; SSC =state species of speeial concern; 
SX =stale exli!paled; SO =slate significt!DI; WL-watch lisl 

GRANK: Global Heritage Ronk: GI = critically imperiled globally; 02 = imperiled globally; GJ = rarc or uncommon 
globally; 04 "'widespread nnd abundant globally but with long term concems; 05 =widespread and obimdilnl 
globally; G? ~unranked; GX =extinct; Q = u11cc11aii1 rank; T = taxonomic subuni1 rank 

SRANK: Stale Herlroge Rank: SI = critically imperiled in state; S2 .., imperiled in slate; S3 =·rare or \lllCummon in state; 
04 = widesprcild and abundant in stale but with long 1erm concern; SO= slale signilicant; SH "' hislorical in 
state: SX = slate extirpntcd; B • brewing stalus; S? = unranked; SNR = 11nra1\ked; SNA = nonbreeding status 
unranked 
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02/11/2016 

Indiana County EndangeredfThreatened and Ra1·e Species List 
County: Gibson 

Species Name 

Qpheodrys aes\ivus 
Pseudernys cont:inria concihna 
Terrapene carollna Carolina 

Bird 
Acclplter striatus 
Arnmodrarnus henslowii 
Botaµrus lentiglnosus. 
Buteo lil'le.atus · 
Circus cyaneU$· 
Cistothorus platensls 
Dendroica. cerulea 
Falco peregrinus. 
Hallaeetus leucocephalus · 
lxobrychu:;; exilis 
Lanius ludovlcianus 
Mniotilta varia 
Nyctanassa··violacea 
· Nyctioorai< nycticorax 
Phalaropus tricolor 
Ralh.1s elegans 
Sternula antillarum athalassos 
'fhryonianes bewickli 
Tytoalba 
Verrnlvota chrysoptera 

Mammal 
Lasiurus borealis 

MU$lel~ nivalis 
Myotis lucifugus 
MyoUs· septentrlonalis 
Myolis sodalis 
Nyc:tlceiushumeralis 
Perimyotis subflavus 
Sylvilagus aquatlcus 
TaX:idea taxus 

Vascular Plant 
Ac~lypha dearnii 
Armoracia aquatica 
Azolla t:arolinlana 
. Ccilycocarpurn lyonli 

Carex socialis 

Indiana Nahltal Heri1age Data Center 
Division of Nature Preserves 
lndiana Department of Natural Resources 
This data is not the result of comprehensive county 
snrveys. 

Common Narne 

Rough Green Snake 
Eastern River Cooter 
Eastern Box TuLtle 

·Sharp-shinned Hawk: 
Henslow1s Sparrow 
Americ!lti Bittern 
Red-sho,ddered' Hawk 
Northern Harrier 
Sedge Wren 
Cerulean Warbler 
Peregrine Falcon 
Bald Eagle 
Least Bittern 
Loggerhead Shrike 

Black-and-white Warbler 
Yellow-crowned Night-heron 
Black-crowned Night-heron 
Wilson's Philb1Cope 
Kh1gRail 
Juterior Least tern 

' ' 

Bewick's Wren 
Bani Owl 
Golden-winged Warbier-

Eastern Red Bat· 

Least Wensel 

Little Brown Bat 
Noi'them Myotis 
I1idiana Bat ot Social Myotis 
Evening Bat 
E!lstem Pipistrelle 
Swamp Rabbi.t 
American Badger 

Mercury 
Lake Cress 
Carolina Mosq~tito:.fem 

Cup-seed 
Social Sedge 

FED 

No Status 

LE 

LE 

STATJ!: CRANK 

SSC G~ 

SE G5'f S 
SSC G5T:S 

ss(j 05 

SE G4 
SB 04 
SSC 05 
SB- GS 

SE (}$ 

SE G4 
sso G4 

SSC. ·o:s 
SE GS 
SE 04 
SSC GS 
SB GS 

SE 05 
SSC GS 

SE G4 
.SE G4T2Q 

GS 

SF. GS 
SE 04 

SSC GS 
SSC 05 

SSC 03 

SSC 0103 

SE 02 
SE GS 
SSC G3 
SE 05 
SSC GS 

SR Q4? 
SE 04? 

ST GS 

ST GS 

SR 04 

Fed: LB= Endangered; LT·= Threatened; C = candida1e; PDL =proposed for de listing 

SRANK 

SJ 

SI 
S3 

$28 
S3B 

S2B 
S3 
$2 
·s3B 
S3B 
S2B' 
$2 

S3B 
S3B 

S1S2B 

S2B 
SIB 
SHD 
SlB 
SIB 
sm 
S2 
SlB 

S4 

S2? 
S2 
S2S3 
SI 
SI 
8283 
SI 

S2 

S2 
SI 
S2 
S2 
S2 

Stale: SE - state cmluogered; ST= slate Umotened; SR -stolefnCC; SSC s state spei:les of special coucem; 
SX =state ex1irpated; SG = state signilic:mt; WL =watch list · 

GRANK: Global Heritage Ronk: GI = criti~ully imperiled globally; G2 - imperiled glObolly; 03 = mre 0r uncommoo 
globally; 04 ,,; widespreild and abunilanl globally but with lo11g tcnn concerns; GS = widespread and abundant 
globally; G? = unranked; GX = extinct; Q = uncertain rank; T = taxonomic subunit ronk 

SRANK: Stale Heritage Rank: SI = critically imperiled in stale; 82 = imperiled in stale; S3 =ran: or uncommon in slate; 
04 =widespread und abundant in state but with long term coocem; SG = s1ate significnnt; SH= historical in 
state; SX = slate extirpated; B = breeding status~ S? ~ unmnkcd; SNR = unranked; SNA = 11onb1ccding status 
unmnked 
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0211112016 
Indiana' County Endangeted, Threatened and Rare Species List 

County: Gibson 

Species N.amc Common Name FED STATE GRANK SRA.NI{ 

Carex straminea Straw Sedge ST GS $2 
Catalpa speclosa Nortbert1 Catalpa SR G4?· 82 
Chelone obliqua var. specios:a ltose Turtlehead WL G4T3 $3 

Clematis pltcheri Pitcher Leather~flr;iwer SR 0405 s2 
Crataegus grandis Grand Hawthorn SE G3GSQ $1 
Crataegus viridis , Green' HawthO,tii ST Gs 82 

Cypert.is pseudovegetus ~iteen Flatsedge SR 05 $2 
Didiplis diandra Wnter-putslane SE GS 82 
Diodia virglniana Buttonweed WL GS $2 
Gleditsia aquatica Water-locust SE 05 Sl 
HiQiscus inoscheutos ssp. h:!siocarpos Hairy-fruited Hibi&cus. s:a G5T4 $1 
lresine rhizomatosa El!stern Bloocll¢lif SR 05 $2 
Juglans cinerea autterm1t WL 04 $3 
Unum strlatum Ridged Yeiiow Flax WL G5 SJ 
Ludwigia · decurreils Prhi1rose Willqw WL GS $2 
Orobanche riparia Botto1ill;nid ,Brootilrl!pe S'E G4? 82. 

Platanthera flava var. flava Southeri1 n.ein Orchid· SE G41r4?Q $1 

Potamogeton puslllu~ Sleuder PoMweed · WL GS S2 
Sparganillril androcladum )31,'am:hii)g But-reed ST 0405 S2 

Strophostyles lelosperma Sli&k-see<l Wild-bean ST GS $2 
Stytax americanus •. An1ericail SrtowbeU WL 05 S3 
Taxodiuril distk:huril aald Cypt¢s,.'I • ST 05; S2 
rrachelospermum difforme Climbing Oogbanc Sil 0405 S2 

Vitis pahnafa C;it\lird Gr11pe· SR 04 $2 

High Qµality N11tural Conununity 
SJ Forest - floodplain wet-mesic Wc:t-mesid'loodplain Forest SG G~? 

For~sl - upland dry-mesic Dry-mesic Upland Forest SG 04 S4 
Forest - upland mesic Mesic Vpl1,1nd Forest SG G3? $3 

Wetland - swamp shrub Slllllb Swari:ip SG GU S2 

Other Significant Element 
Geomorphic - Nongiacial Erosional Feature - Water Fall ai1d Casciide GNR SNR 
Water Fall and Cascade 

h111inna Noturol Heritage Data Ceutcr 
Division of Nature Preserves 
litdiano Department of NalW11l Resources 
This doto is not the result of comprehensive county 
surveys. 

Fed: LE= E11dnngered; LT"' Threatened; C= candidate; fDL =proposed rot delisting 
State: SE - state endungered; ST 2 state tbreutcned; SR - stnte rare; SSC = state species or special coocem; 

SX = slale extirpated; SO = state signilicanl; WL ~ walcb !isl 
GRANK: Qlobnl Heritage Ronk: GI " critically im11eriled globally; G2 = imperiled globally; GJ = rare or unco11u11on 

globally; 04 = wliiesprcud and abundant giobnll)' but with long tc1m conccm.<i; 05 =widespread and a1>un1lant 
globally; 07 =unranked; GX ~ extinct; Q ~uncertain rank; T ~taxonomic subunii tank 

SRANK: Stoic 1 lcrituge Rank: SI = criti~nlly imperiled in slate; S2 - imperiled in slate; S3 ,. rore or u11commo11 in stale; 
04 =widespread and abundant in ~tale but with long 1enn concern; SO= state significant; SH = historical iii 
state; SX =stole exlhpatcd; B =breeding stat11s; S? =unranked; SNR ~ unr~nkcil; SNA"" 11onbreedi1ig status 
unranked 
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Public Water Supply Improvements 
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* 

State Natural and Scenic River Segments 
(Source: Indiana Department of Natural Resources, 1994, Rev. 1996) 

River Counties 

BIG PINE CREEK* Warren 
(10.0 miles) 
(Studied 1980) 

BIG WALNUT CREEK Putnam 
(10.6 miles) 

BLUE RIVER Crawford, 
(45.5 miles) Harrison, 
(Designated 1978) Washington 

CEDAR CREEK Allen, Dekalb 
(13.7 miles) 
(Designated 1976) 

SAND CREEK* Decatur, 
(12.1 miles) Jennings 

S. BR. ELKHART* Noble 
RIVER 
(13.6 miles) 
(Studied 1982) 

SUGAR CREEK* Montgomery, 
(50.1 miles) Parke 
(Studied 1977**) 

TIPPECANOE RIVER* Kosciusko, 
(15.9 miles) Marshall 

WHITEWATER RIVER* Franklin 
(28.4 miles) 
(Studied 1979) 

WILDCAT CREEK Carroll, 
(48.5 miles) Tippecanoe 
(Designated 1980) 

Quad Maps 

Williamsport, 
Pine Village 

North Salem, 
Roachdale 

Fredericksburg, 
Milltown, 
Corydon, W., 
Leavenworth 

Garrett, Auburn, 
Huntertown 

Butlerville, Westport 

Albion, Ligonier, 
Merriam 

Montezuma, Alamo 
Kingman, Wallace 
New Market, 
Crawfordsville 

Mentone, Bourbon 
Atwood, Burket 

Metamora, Brookville, 
Whitecomb, 
Cedar Grove 

Lafayette E., Pyrmont, 
Rossville, Burlington 

Boundaries 

Rocky Ford (r.m. 13.8) to 
CR 131 (r.m. 3.75) 

Hendricks-Putnam Co. Line 
(r.m. 43.7) to SR 36 
(r.m. 33.1) 

US 150 in Fredericksburg 
(r.m. 57.0) to SR 462 
(r.m. 11.5) 

DeKalb CR 68 (r.m. 13.7) to 
St. Josheph River (r.m. 0.0) 

Westport Covered Bridge 
(r.m. 33.2) to Brewersville 
Rd. (r.m. 21.1) 

CR 100N (r.m. 14.2) to US 6 
(r.m. 0.6) 

Darlington Covered Bridge 
(r.m. 50.1) to Wabash 
River (r.m. 0.0) 

Kosciusko CR 700W (r.m. 
139.9) to the mouth of 
Moores Ditch (r.m. 123.0) 

Laurel Feeder Dam (r.m. 45.4) 
to New Trenton Bridge 
(r.m. 17.1) 

SR 29 (r.m. 43.1 to 
Eisenhower Rd. (r.m. 4.8) 
and on the South Fork, 
SR 38 (r.m. 10.2) to the 
North Fork, (r.m. 0.0) 

These stream segments qualify for classification as a State Natural & Scenic River Segment. 
However, they have not yet been officially classified as such. 

** The Montgomery County segment has recently been re-studied. 

Last Print/Revision Date: October 13, 1996 



INDIANA NATURAL AND SCENIC RIVERS LIST 

A detailed river segment list and map are attached to the following river summaries. 

BIG PINE CREEK 
A 10 1/2-mile segment of Big Pine Creek in Warren County (from Rocky Ford, near Rainsville, downstream to 

County Road 131) qualifies for State Natural and Scenic River designation. 
Big Pine Creek is Indiana's premier whitewater creek during high spring water levels and is popular with 

canoeists and kayakers from Indiana and Illinois. Due to unreliable water levels for canoeing throughout warm weather, 
commercial canoes are not available for use on the creek. 

The Department of Environmental Management has designated the Big Pine Creek segment and some of its 
headwaters "for exceptional use" due to outstanding quality. 

BIG WALNUT CREEK 
Slightly more than 10 1/2 miles of Big Walnut Creek in Putnam County (from the county line to the SR 36 

bridge) rate as natural as any segment on the DNR's Natural and Scenic Rivers list. The lower part of the segment flows 
by two state dedicated nature preserves (Hall's Woods and Big Walnut) which the DNR and The Nature Conservancy 
have cooperated to acquire from a willing seller. 

Big Walnut Creek is lightly used by fishermen and canoeists. Commercial canoes are not available for use on the 
State Natural and Scenic River segment due to unreliable water levels throughout warm weather. 

BLUE RIVER 
The State Natural and Scenic River segment of Blue River designated in 1978 begins at river mile 57 

(Fredericksburg) and runs to river mile 11 1/2 Gust upstream of the SR 462 bridge). The DNR owns much of the lower 25 
miles of the river corridor and manages its property to enhance the natural integrity of the river. The lower 5 1/2 miles of 
the river itself are part of the Cannelton Pool of the Ohio River. 

The major canoe livery using the river provides about 15,000 canoe trips on the river annually, primarily between 
river mile 40 (Totten Ford Bridge) and river mile 20 (Rothrock Mill Public Access Site, the DNR's only access site in the 
State Natural and Scenic River segment). The river is also popular for fishing. 

The state authorized Blue River Commission has zoning jurisdiction over the State Natural and Scenic River 
segment and has worked with the DNR in the conservation of the river since 1978. During that time the DNR, with some 
assistance from The Nature Conservancy, has also acquired nearly 6 miles ofriverbank lands from willing sellers in the 
lower Natural and Scenic River segment. This will further assure protection of the natural integrity of Blue River. 

The DEM has designated the State Natural and Scenic River segment of Blue River as "an outstanding state 
resource" to prevent water quality degradation and has designated the segment and much of its headwaters "for 
exceptional use" due to exceptional quality. 

CEDAR CREEK 
Cedar Creek, 13.7 miles from DeKalb County Road 68 to the confluence with the St. Joseph River in Allen County was 
designated a State Natural and Scenic River in 1976. The Nature Conservancy has acquired one conservation easement 
along the creek. Part of the Izaak Walton League's property along the creek has been designated by the state as 
Rodenbeck Nature Preserve. 

The Allen County Parks and Recreation Board has acquired and developed two public access sites along the creek 
using Land and Water Conservation Funds administered by the DNR. Cedar Creek is used by fishermen and canoeists. 

The Cedar Creek Wildlife Project, Fort Wayne Chapter of the Izaak Walton League, and the Cedar Creek 
Preservation Foundation work with the DNR in the conservation of Cedar Creek. 

The DEM has designated the State Natural and Scenic River segment of Cedar Creek as "an outstanding state 
resource" to prevent water quality degradation. 

SANDCREEK 
A 12.1-mile segment of Sand Creek, from the Westpost Covered Bridge in Jennings County (river mile 33.2) to 

Brewersville Road in Decatur County (river mile 21.1) qualifies as a State Natural and Scenic River. Sand Creek is 
notable for its karst corridor. 

It is lightly used by fishermen and canoeists. Commercial canoes are not available for use on the segment due to 
unreliable water levels throughout warm weather. 



SOUTH BRANCH OF ELKHART RIVER 
Nearly 14 miles of the South Branch of the Elkhart River, between Noble County Road 100 North and the U.S. 6 

bridge, qualifies as a State Natural and Scenic River. It flows through the largest contiguous wetlands remaining in the 
state, including the DNR's Mallard Roost Wetlands Conservation Area. In the upstream portion of the segment, the river 
flows through the state designated Bender Woods Nature Preserve, owned by Acres Inc. 

The South Branch of Elkhart River is used by fishermen and waterfowl hunters, and the DNR has developed four 
public access sites along the river. Commercial canoes are not available for use on the river. 

SUGARCREEK 
Over 50 miles of Sugar Creek, from the Darlington Covered Bridge in Montgomery County downstream to the 

confluence with the Wabash River in Parke County, qualify as a State Natural and Scenic River. The creek flows past a 
community park in Darlington, a city park in Crawfordsville, Pine Hills Nature Preserve (and National Natural 
Landmark), and Shades and Turkey Run State Parks. 

Six public access sites, four acquired and developed by the DNR, are available along the creek. Two major 
commercial canoe liveries provide about 20,000 trips on Sugar Creek annually, primarily between Crawfordsville and 
Turkey Run State Park. The creek is also popular with fishermen. 

The Friends of Sugar Creek works with the DNR the conservation of Sugar Creek and its tributaries. 

TIPPECANOE RIVER 
Almost 16 miles of the Tippecanoe River, from Kosciusko County Road 700 West to the mouth of Moores Ditch 

in Marshall County, qualify as a State Natural and Scenic River. 
The upper part of the segment flows through forested wetlands and is seldom used by recreationists. The lower 

part of the segment is popular with fishermen, and commercial canoes are available. A Kosciusko County Historical 
Society rest park provides river access near Warsaw, and the DNR has developed two public access sites along the 
Tippecanoe River segment. 

WHITEWATER RIVER 
A 28.3-mile segment of the West Fork and Main Stem of the Whitewater River in Franklin County, from the 

Laurel Feeder Dam (river mile 45.4) to the New Trenton Bridge (river mile 17.1.), qualifies as a State Natural and Scenic 
River. The DNR's Whitewater Canal State Historic Site owns land adjacent to the river in several sites between its Laurel 
Feeder Dam Public Access Site and Brookville. Eight miles of the former towpath and an abandoned rail line along the 
canal and near the river are planned for development as a recreational trail. Two major canoe liveries provide about 
20,000 trips on the river annually. The river is also popular with fishermen. 

The Franklin County Area Plan Commission's White-water River Advisory Board has worked with the DNR in 
the conservation of the river since 1979. 

WILDCAT CREEK 
The State Natural and Scenic River segments of Wildcat Creek total 48.5 miles, extending from Burlington to 

Tippecanoe County's Eisenhower Road Bridge on the North Fork, and from Dayton on the South Fork to the confluence 
with the North Fork. The Wildcat was designated in 1980. 

The DNR has developed four access sites, including a Public Fishing Area and a county park along the creek. 
The Tippecanoe County Parks and Recreation Board manages the county park through an agreement with the DNR. 

Recreationists use the creek for canoeing, fishing, and tubing. The only commercial canoe livery along the creek 
provides about 2,000 trips on the creek annually, primarily on the lower several miles of the State Natural and Scenic 
River segment of the North Fork. 

The Wildcat Creek Advisory Group and the Carroll County and Tippecanoe County Area Plan Commissions have 
worked with the DNR in the conservation of the creek since 1980. 
The DEM has designated the State Natural and Scenic River segments of Wildcat Creek as "an outstanding state resource" 
to prevent water quality degradation. 
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Outstanding Rivers: 

The Department has prepared a roster of streams in the State which have particular environmental or 
aesthetic value. The roster was printed as a nonrule policy document in the Indiana Register, Volume 16, 
Number 6, (16 IR 1677) on March 1, 1993 under the title "Natural Resources Commission, Information 
Bulletin #4, Outstanding Rivers List for Indiana". For additional information regarding the roster contact: 

Division of Outdoor Recreation 
Room W271 
402 West Washington Street 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 

Telephone: (317) 232-4070 

The following table is a synopsis of the roster printed in the Indiana Register. In the event of a conflict, 
the information in the Register has primacy. 
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fountain From CR 250 W to its contluence with the Wabash River 

Big Blue River Johnson From its confluence with the Flatrock River to Carthage 
Rush 
Shelby 

Big Creek 
Jefferson 

From the east side of the Jefferson Military Reservation boundary to its 
confluence with Graham Creek 

Big Pine Creek Warren From SR 18 to its confluence with the Wabash River 

Big Walnut Creek Putnam From the Hendricks-Putnam county Line to Greencastle 

Black River 
Posey 

From its confluence with Higginbotham Ditch to its confluence with the Wabash 
River 

Blue River Crawford From its confluence with the Middle Fork Blue River to its confluence with the 
Harrison Ohio River 
Washington 

Buck Creek En From its headwaters to its confluence with the Ohio River 

Cedar Creek Allen From Dekalb County Road 68 to its confluence with the St. Joseph River 
Dekalb 

k ! Montgomery From its headwaters to its confluence the Indian Creek 

Cypress Slough Posey From its confluence with Castlebury Creek to the Southwind Maritime Center 

Deep River Lake From 1 mile south of US 30 to its confluence with the Little Calumet River 
Porter 

Driftwood River I Bartholomew From the Atterbury Fish and Wildlife Area to Columbus 

East Arm Little 
Porter 

From CR 600 E to SR 249 
Calumet River 

East Fork White Bartholomew From Columbus to its confluence with the West Fork White River 
River Daviess 

Dubois 
Jackson 
Lawrence 
Martin 
Pike 

Eel River Miami From South Whitley to Logansport 
Wabash 

Elkhart River t From SR 13 to Island Park in Elkhart 

Fall Creek From US 41 to its confluence with Big Pine Creek 
Warren 
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LaGrange From Nevada Mills to the Indiana-Michigan state line and from the 
Steuben Indiana-Michigan state line to the Indiana-Michigan state line 

Fish Creek Dekalb From the Indiana-Ohio state line to the Indiana-Ohio state line 
; Steuben 

Flatrock River Bartholomew 
Shelby 

From SR 9 to its confluence with the East Fork White River 

Fourteen-Mile Creek 
Clark 

From its confluence with the East Fork and the West Fork to its 
confluence with the Ohio River 

Graham Creek Jefferson From New Marion to its confluence with Big Creek 
Jennings 
Ripley 

ian Creek Harrison From the Floyd-Harrison county line to its confluence with the Ohio River 

I Indian Creek Montgomery From CR 475 W to its confluence with Sugar Creek 

Indian-Kentuck Creek Jefferson From its confluence with Vestal Branch to its confluence with the Ohio 
Ripley River 

Iroquois River Newton From SR 16 to the Indiana-Illinois state line 

Kankakee River LaPorte From the upstream boundary of the Kingsbury Fish and Wildlife Area 
Newton through the LaSalle Fish and Wildlife Area to the Indiana-Illinois state 
Porter line 

Kilmore Creek - Clinton From US 421 to its confluence with South Fork Wildcat Creek 

Laughery Creek Dearborn From its source just east of Morris in Ripley County to its confluence with 
Ohio the Ohio River 
:Wpley 

Little Blue River Crawford From English to its confluence with the Ohio River 

Little Creek rs on From Kent to Big Creek 

Little Indian Creek 1 Harrison From Pfrimmer Church to its confluence with Indian Creek 

Little Mosquito Creek I Harrison From its headwaters to its confluence with Mosquito Creek 

Little Pine Creek Warren From Bridge SW of Green Hill to its confluence with the Wabash River 

Little River Allen From its source to its confluence with the Wabash River 
I-It1nti1"1gton 

Lost River Martin From Potato Road to its confluence with the East Fork White River 
Orange 

Middle Fork Wildcat Clinton From SR 26 at Edna Mills to its confluence with South Fork Wildcat 
Creek Tippecanoe Creek 

Mississinewa River From Mississinewa Reservoir to its confluence with the Wabash River 
Miami 
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Mosquito Creek Harrison From Buena Vista to its confluence with the Ohio River 

Mud Pine Creek Warren From SR 352 to its confluence with Big Pine Creek 

Muscatatuck River Jackson From its confluence with Graham Creek and Big Creek to its confluence 
. Jennings with the East Fork White River 
: Scott 
. W ashingto11 

Oil Creek Perry From St. Croix to its confluence with the Ohio River 

Otter Creek Jennings From the covered bridge north of Holton to its confluence with the Vernon 
Ripley Fork Muscatatuck River 

Patoka River Dubois From Patoka Reservoir to its confluence with the Wabash River 
Gibson 
Pike 

Pigeon River Grange From SR 327 to the Indian-Michigan state line 

Rattlesnake Creek Fountain From CR 350 W to its confluence with Bear Creek 

Rattlesnake Creek Parke From CR 400/450 S to its confluence with Sugar Creek 

Roaring Creek Parke From 1 mile upstream of SR 41 to its confluence with Sugar Creek 

Sand Creek Bartholomew ' From its confluence with Cobbs Fork to its confluence with the East Fork 
Decatur White River 

•Jackson 
·Jennings 

South Branch Elkhart 
Noble 

From CR 100 N to US 6 
River 

South Fork Blue River Washington From SR 135 to its confluence with Blue River 

South Fork Wildcat Clinton From US 421 to its confluence with Wildcat Creek 
Creek Tippecanoe 

Stinking Fork Crawford From its headwaters to its confluence with Little Blue River 

Sugar Creek Johnson I Within Johnson and Shelby Counties 
Shelby 

Sugar Creek Montgomery From the Darlington covered bridge to its confluence with the Wabash 
Parke River 

Sugar Mill Creek Fountain From Wallace to its confluence with Sugar Creek 
Parke 

Tippecanoe River Carroll From its source, Lake Tippecanoe, to Norway and from Oakdale Dam to 
Fulton its confluence with the Wabash River 
Kosciusko 
Marshall 
Pulaski 
Tippecanoe 
White 
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Turkey Fork Crawford ~ ...... ~------.i....,.~-------~m 1-64 to its confl~ence with the Little Blue River 

Vernon Fork 
Muscatatuck River 

Wabash River 

West Branch 
Mosquito Creek 

West Fork White 
River 

Whitewater River 

Wildcat Creek 

Jackson 
Jennings 

Adams 
Allen 
Carroll 
Cass 
Fountain 
Gibson 
Huntington 
Jay 
Knox 
Miami 
Parke 
Posey 
Sullivan 
Tippecanoe 
Vermillion 
Vigo 
Wabash 
Warren 
Wells 

'Harrison 

Daviess 
Delaware 
Gibson 
Greene 
Hamilton 
Knox 
Madison 
Marion 
Morgan 
Owen 
Randolph 

Dearborn 
Fayette 
Franklin 
Wayne 

Carroll 
Tippecanoe 

From Zenas to its confluence with the Muscatatuck River 

From the Indiana-Ohio state line to its confluence with the Ohio River 
including the Little River and the portage between the Little River and the 
Maumee River 

From its headwaters to its confluence with Mosquito Creek 

From Farmland to its confluence with the Wabash River 

From Cambridge City to the Indiana-Ohio state line west of Harrison, 
Ohio 

From SR 29 to its confluence with the Wabash River 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. 

Appendix D 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Large Volume Water Users 

September, 201 7 
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1050600 CR 100 E ·Meter Vault 

l'T"-ov'-'•o-"ta'-'{"-'1''-'IM=l) _____ -tP'-'C"-'1tir.°'.e-"loccn.;clN'-""47'-'6'-'70'--------1--1°'8,"-97~6~,8co.00+-"'22~,1~8~1,~30000 _3~,927,500 23,280,600 21,912,400 22,357,100 28,970,900 24,921,500 319,339 28,079,100 21,1::1,1100 20,441,700 

1060500 CR !'l25 S ·Meter Vault 

Town of Haubstadt (Vault) Fort Branch IN 47648 4,117,400 3,113,500 3,088,500 3,320,000 3,893,000 4,044,200 4,334,900 4,091,000 3,990,900 3,982,000 3,950,700 

:~-::_~-::_:-8_1 !-::_~-,_.-::_.-::_r-,_u_c_k-::_w-::_a-::_,,-::_,-::_-::_-::_-::_-::_:1:-:::_1~-:::_~-,_~-::_~--l_~_~._i;_·6_-_~_~
1

_c~~\'_·-'_·_·h::::::~:.:;:::_1-8:5~.-,_oo-_+---,-"3-,7-oo-+--,-3-7,-5o-o+----,,-,-,4-00-+---Gs-,,·-5oo-+--66-5-,7-oo-+--,-M-,t-oo--+--5-47_,1_00--+---G9-8-,1-oo-l'--"-'6-,o-oo-l'--a~G•-.•-o·~o+---,s~s~.1~00~ 

1040602 CR 1250 S • Trur.~ :,topH c.'·cc"''-'' 4"'-l----+-----+---~l-----+-----l-·---+----+-----l----·+----+----.,--,+-----,-=="1----,,.,,..,-,,,; 
~P_ilo_t_Tra_v_e_IC_en_t_er ____ ~ . ..;:..:H~'"=b~st~ad~t~IN~4~76~o=-'-----·~--+-~'~''""~ooc::.+---=-21='=·'=00'+--~1=ss~,1=0~.1----''='~'-~500::.::+-~'=·'~~=3oo'-'-f--~'=9~~~80=0+--='1=4~,800~'"--=-'8=1=.l;_00'-+-----'3=028,=50=0+--'='~'·;_9a=o+--~'s=s~,9=-00-+----''="~?,3~0-'-i·O 

1010500 Ut 12505 - Truck Stop- H»./f1l 

l'f"-ly;"ng'-'J'-'T'-''""''k'-'5"'to'-'p-----+"~"~ui'-'Vi"ta"'dt'-'IN"-'4'-'76=·3=-9 ---~--+-='"=5~,000"-"'1-----''""''"2,00=0+--='G=3,"-00'°'0+---"2~2.000 291,CCO 514,00~---- 579,000 780.~00 __ 8~~ --,-.=-8'=-•~,0i"->0c1-, --'="~·o_oo-+--''-'8~8,c,oo~o-J 

~J0-00~-~----~-~fc=·"~300SO=-l"V-·"T="'~k•~v""""'m"-------l-~~-1--~~-t--~--+-~~--+--=~t~--~+--~~-+---- -J--~~-+-~.,.,,,-+--:-=-=-=:-:+----:-:-::-::-1 
Soup Cntf'q•ri5es Princeton IN ·17670 214,700 4,500 182.400 70,£00 116,J..9=-0+--~1"45",5"'0"'0+--~~~,-~'.JO 132.000 261,300 211,70'-'0-+---l~_.8~,7_00_... ___ 4_30,8_00_, 

f---2861-00~0-·------+=~-----·~------I----+----+-----+~ .. ~ _ .. -··--+----! 
CR750S·T.'="~k•~·Y;_fa"-m~•------t--.,.,""""-t----,.,.,.-""'"t--~.,.,.,+--~-=-+--,,,,-=-+--,.,.,...,,,.-+--=~~r--,.,.=-+--.,.,.,...,,,.~---=:-:c=::--+---:::::c~~t-------< 

,~"."~'=-"=-""-M"'id'-1e'-1-----+'=-"'"-'""'=-".c"""h"""'-''"'"-&4=8------+--'=8=0,"-7oo=;----''=52~.l_0,=0+----'~•~1.=oo=o+--=-19'-o~"=oo, ____ ~~~Q_---"-•~·1_00-t-~'=·3_s",_'w=o+--~'=•3~,4~00-+--'-3'~ .. 7-o,...ot---'-o'"'o,_£ic_~-r---1•_3=-,3-00-; 
l-c,-~~-------+:-:c-c::-::-~--~--.,.,-~--+-~~-+----j~-~--t----+-----·~----+----+---~~-·~·~--+--~--+---~+--~-
4348400 A & T Concrete· HiP,hway 41 

rn_m_P_oh_l _______ +r_o_rt_~_,,_,,_h~IN~•-7=G•_8 ______ -t-__ 1•~s~,s~oo-+~-'~"~ao_o_1-·---"-s~oo=o_,___~1_23~·•~0=0+-~'-'1~,6-o_o<-~1~•1~,o'"'·o~o+---'-'.--'oo-+_-1_1,_o_o+-----'1~1e.:,3"'oo'-1---"11~,3~00'+----"11~,3=0~o+-~--'':.:1~,3:.:00~ 

445oaoo - 325 E '50 s -Industrial 

1-o_iv_.,_,;~1y_v_ut_eq~----__,.P_,;_,,,_._,,,_,,_11<_4_7_67_0 ______ ___,,___11_,~,7-oo__,_ __ i_o~:i,_,_o_o+-__ 14_1,~3_or_,' ~-.-~2:.!_9_0+--_1_s1_.9_oo-+-__ 1_25~,2_0_0..,__~.!2_~~:-o-·--=1:.:18"',o:.:o:.:o4 __ __:.17:.::6e.:,3:.:oo'+---"16:.:9"',1"-oo+----''"'""·,o~oo=+~~°"'l8:.:l:.:.20=0~ 

434!M01 SR 168 tind Hwy 41 - Concrete Plant --~1----¥·-. 
1-tM __ l_S_ou_1_h ______ ~__,.F_o_rt_8_,._nc_h_IN_4_7~64_8 ___ ~-~-+---12_8~,l-00_,_ __ 7~~-30-t0~-8-7.~,l~001~~~+~-·-~3:.:Dl:.:-8:.:00co.+-~1:.:IO"',l:.:0~0+----'2'-'4'"~'-'700~---'8~8,:.:5C:.:D+-~--'1=30~,00="-0+--~97~,8:.:00"+--G~G~4,~S0:.:0+--~1=17~.2=00"'-l 
122113101 12798 CR 12505 ·AlU'S) Ruad. Hotel 

Baymon! Inn Haubstadt IN 47039 88,000 57,200 81,300 142,000 110,200 106,500 132,800 162,400 131.-100 119,100 113.400 

4450700 819 E CR 350 5- lndustrii!I 

Vuteq Corp. Princeton IN 47670 80,000 410,900 721,900 118,400 219,300 173,500 1,542,900 883,900 1,495,500 l,4n,6oo 1,767,~00 1,14~,COO 

122101101 E 1250 S - Lane· Truck Stop 
Loves Travel Stop Haubstadt IN 476~9 74,500 48,500 56,600 90,SOO 66,500 84,100 86,700 95,800 85,000 90.600 44,400 45,100 

5841800 1525 S Old SR 65 ·Mobile Home Park 

~"~~~O~ak'-M_o_b_i!e_H_o_m_•=-••~'"-k __ +p~,;_nc:.:•-•o_n~IN~4~76=6=5-------1~-'~3~,7"-00'+--~'~l~~·~oo--t-~'4=8~,400-l~-l-35~,6~00-1---'-l6~,2_o_ot--~'=18~.00~01---1-1~2,_4o~o-+---IM_,~I00__, __ ~1~29~,3~00.c.-r--8~1,_00_0+----ll-3~,200__,~--82~,3-00_, 

8345000 CP. 700 W - Coal mine 
Gibson County Coal Owensville IN 47665 58,000 104,000 106,000 109,000 89,000 10~.ono 121,000 82,000 126,000 107,000 134,000 103,000 

9039500 12653 S 200 E & CR 1250 S - Restaurant 

1-l~og~1_nn _______ __,.H_a_ub_s_1a_dt_1_N_4_76_3_9 ______ -+-~~s•~A~00"+---'1~1,~9oo"""'--5~2~.2~0~0t--~4~~~70=o+--~•3~,4~00c::.+--'4~~~60~0+--~4~3,~40:.:0+---'~6~,s=oo'-t---"'62,8~00"'+----'4~3,=300~---•~o~,5=00'+----•'.c·3_o_,u 

5841700 1525 S Old SR 65 - Mobl!e Home Park 
Big Oak Mobffe Home Park 2 Princeton IN 47670 48,600 164,400 8$,300 90,800 84,400 100,800 94,400 133,100 92,100 64,300 93,300 71,500 



Name and Acct No. Service Address- anus -16 February-16 March-16 April-16 May-16' June-16 /ty,l August-16 September-16 October-16 Novemb408 December.16

9094000 12848 Weather Rock Drive - Campground

Weather Rock Campground Haubstadt IN 47639 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

2412000 9690 S 250 E - Cattle Farm

Wilzbacher Farrns Haubstadt IN 47639 37,600 5,900 7,400 9,100 3,525 11,800 19,600 46,400 47,100 59,400 50,100 42,300

1093500 CR 1100 5 • Industrial

West Side Automation Havb3tadt 1977999 35,800 24,400 41,600 39,140 55,294 18,000 38,800 48,100 25,000 26,400 32,900 44,500

4349600 SR 109 - Convenience Store and Gas Station

Ora Williams -Hocks Convenience Fort Branch IN 1:608 30,400 22,400 25,800 20,900 27,000 20,400 26,500 22,400 23,800 21,400 21,700 23,700

4450500 CR 350 5 - Industrial

EnovaPreni3, SIC Princeton IN 47670 29,100 15,500 25,100 25,200 16.050 14,100 19,700 13,600 25,800 31,900 22,900 20,500

4394300 509 E CR 525 5 -Warehouse

Mike Craft, Pritceton 10 47070 28,003 28,000 34,500 31,400 31,500 .25,900 31,700 11,800 29,700 31,2E9 33,400 29,200

7678000 3415E CR 50 5 - Cattle Farm

Paul Potts Princeton IN 47270 27.600 (12,400) 10,400 8,500 8.700 10,000 49,000 30.400 30,300 42,510 22,000 21,800

1083502 SR 68- Grocery Store

Holiday Foods Haubstadt IN 47639 26,900 35,400 33,403 33,700 34,200 29,000 25,070 50,400 75.500 58,800 45,400 31,102

4396500 CR 100 E - Trucking

KC Transportation Princeton 10 47670 24,900 15,000 20,090 18,100 18,600 16,100 23,600 . 36,900 27,500 16,000 31,600 18.600

1050700 CR 100 E- Fire Protection System -Vault
IIMIE3

TMMI Princeton IN 47639 23,100 16,500 33,100 122,500 36,200 14,600 6,500 10,600 10,100 117,500  40,600

3274500 12300 5 50 W - Church & School

St James Church Haubstadt IN 47639 22,200 26,300 33,800 32,000 28,900 28,800 20,100 13,000 46,800 61,900 33,600 51,600

2110401 Hwy 41- Restaurant

Kentuckians Subway Fort Branch IN 47648 21,200 11,800 25,900 19,800 14,000 11,800 18,400 11,500 13,000 14,100 15,000 11,900

1050300 CR 525 5 - Child Care

TMMI Child Care Center Princeton IN 47670 20,000 34,800 30,700 35,100 30,001 42,920 167,000 219,700 382,500 51,700 43,300 11111.1203

1050400 CR 525 1 -Trucking

Ryder Truck Shop Princeton IN 47670 20,500 23,000 28,500 27,500 25,000 22,500 23,500 15,300 32,700 34,000 . 30,400 29,600

8134900 9208 W SR 165 -Meat Processing

Kenny Dewig Meats Owensville IN 47665 11,200 12,100 22,600 14,700 16,500 21,400 15,609 17,100 22,900 17,800 30,000 28,700

2857500 CR 800 5 - Education

Vincennes Unive it Fort Branch 19 47648 . 1,900 1,800 5,700 90,300 77,200 105,300 215,300 . 217,900 244,400 159,800 156,600 36,800

125064101 CR 1200 S - Agricultural

Warrick Coop Farm Supply Haubstadt IN 47639 1,000 900 1,100 34,500 41,600 57,000 ' 89,100 31,800 20,600 8,700 2,600 4,400

9013000 CR 1250 5 - Residential & Commercial



Name and Acct No. Service Address Januarv·16 FebruaJY.:!6 March·l6 Anrll-16 Mav-16 June·16 ~ Aug,ust-16 seotember-16 9ctbber·16 November-16 Oe~ember-16 

Rick Knapp Haubstadt IN 47639 20,400 21,900 20,700 21,:?l)(J 18100 10,800 10,300 9,400 9,800 19,600 23,500 32,900 

2210000 CR 750 S • Residential 
Larry Johnson Haubstadt IN 47648 36,100 19,400 22,000 15,800 11,500 19,200 14,900 15,900 19,600 36,400 32,200 21,400 

7732801 )[]G!i U (;:irith_~r_'., Rued - f'.ps1d~ritul 

David Dunn Pr1n~~too JN 17670 14,200 30,100 16,900 7,700 14,700 16,800 38,100 29,700 /7,()(1() 19,400 14,500 8,500 

·--~ ---~-·-- --··· 4389000 CR 500 S - Agricultural 
JohnWallls Princeton IN 47670 7,000 7,300 16,600 30,000 30,500 27,500 35,200 29,700 13,300 6,400 7,800 8,300 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Appendix E 

Photographs of Existing Facilities 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. September, 2017 



Photo l - 300,000 Gal. Elevated Tank {On 
U.S. 41 west of Toyota Manufacturing) 

Photo 3 - 1,500,000 gal. Elevated Tank located on County 
Road lOOE, east of Toyota Manufacturing 

Photo 2 -300,000 Gal. Standpipe Tank (North 
end of System east of Princeton) 



Photo 4 - Booster Pumping Station Interior, Showing High Service Pumps, Suction and Discharge Piping, Pump 
Control Valves, and Variable Frequency Drives 
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Photo 5 - Pump Controls with Touch Screen Interface for Tank level Indication 



Photo 6 - Pump Variable Frequency Drives 

Photo 7 - Booster Pump Discharge Flow Meter 



Photo 8 - Booster Pump Station Exterior 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Appendix F 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Cost Estimates for Project Alternatives 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. September, 2017 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 
ALTERNATIVE 2 - CR 225 W WATER MAIN 

Description Quant. Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

CONSTRUCTION COST 

8" Water Main 16,175.0 ft $ 25.00 $ 404,380 

2 8" Gate Valves 5.0 ea $ 1,400.00 $ 7,000 

3 Wet Tap Existing Pipe 

Tapping Sleeve 2.0 ea $ 1,600.00 $ 3,200 

Tapping Valve 2.0 ea $ 1,400.00 $ 2,800 

4 Metered Service Connections 12.0 ea $ 900.00 $ 10,800 

Service Tubing 500.0 ft $ 20.00 $ 10,000 

5 Roads & Driveways 

Open Cut Crosssing 4.0 Is $ 3,000.00 $ 12,000 

Driveways 5.0 ea $ 2,500.00 $ 12,500 

6 Traffic Control 1.0 Is $ 3,000.00 $ 3,000 

7 Erosion Control 1.0 Is $ 10,000.00 $ 10,000 

8 Restoration 1.0 Is $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000 

9 Testing 16,175.0 If $ 1.00 $ 16, 180 

Subtotal $ 496,900 

10 Mobilization 4.0% $ 19,900 

11 Bonds & Insurance 1.0% $ 5,000 

Construction Subtotal $ 521,800 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 
ALTERNATIVE 2 -CR 225 W WATER MAIN 

Description Quant. 

NON-CONSTRUCTION COSTS 

10 Engineering 

Design 

Bid & Award 

Construction 

11 Survey, Testing & Permits 

12 Construction Inspection 

13 Easements 

14 Legal/Financial 

15 Administrative Costs 
16 Construction Contingency 

Non-Construction Costs 

Total Project Costs 

1.0 

1.0 

1.0 

1.0 

8.0 

16,175.0 

1.0 

1.0 

10.0% 

Unit 

Is 

Is 

Is 

Is 

mth 

If 

Is 

Is 

Unit Cost Total Cost 

$ 31,308.00 $ 31,300 

$ 2,609.00 $ 2,600 

$ 3,913.50 $ 3,900 

$ 7,827.00 $ 7,800 

$ 16,000.00 $ 128,000 

$ 2.00 $ 32,350 

$ 18,263.00 $ 18,300 

$ 9,400.00 $ 9,400 

$ 52,200 

$ 285,850 

$ 807,650 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 
ALTERNATIVE 3 - SR 68 WATER MAIN 

Description Quant. Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

CONSTRUCTION COST 

8" Water Main 5,400.0 ft $ 25.00 $ 135,000 

2 8" Gate Valves 4.0 ea $ 1,400.00 $ 5,600 

3 Wet Tap Existing Pipe 

Tapping Sleeve 2.0 ea $ 1,600.00 $ 3,200 

Tapping Valve 2.0 ea $ 1,600.00 $ 3,200 

4 5 1/4" Hydrant w/ Gate Valve & Box 1.0 ea $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000 

5 Bore and Jack Roadway Crossing 

16" Casing, 6" Carrier 70.0 If $ 250.00 $ 17,500 

18" Casing, 8" Carrier 140.0 If $ 300.00 $ 42,000 

6 Traffic Control 1.0 Is $ 3,000.00 $ 3,000 

7 Erosion Control 1.0 Is $ 5,500.00 $ 5,500 

8 Restoration 1.0 Is $ 20,000.00 $ 20,000 

Open Cut Crossing 2.0 ea $ 3,000.00 $ 6,000 

9 Driveways 4.0 ea $ 2,000.00 $ 8,000 

10 Testing 5,400.0 If $ 0.50 $ 2,700 

Subtotal $ 255,700 
11 Mobilization 4.0% $ 10,200 

12 Bonds & Insurance 1.0% $ 2,600 

Construction Subtotal $ 268,500 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 
ALTERNATIVE 3 - SR 68 WATER MAIN 

Description Quant. 

NON-CONSTRUCTION COSTS 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Engineering 

Design 

Bid & Award 

Construction 

Survey, Testing & Permits 

Construction Inspection 

Easements 

Legal/Financial 

Administrative Costs 

Construction Contingency 

Non-Construction Costs 

Total Project Costs 

1.0 

1.0 

1.0 

1.0 

3.0 

0.0 

1.0 

1.0 

10.0% 

Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

Is $ 16,110.00 $ 16, 100 

Is $ 1,342.50 $ 1,300 

Is $ 2,013.75 $ 2,000 

Is $ 4,027.50 $ 4,000 

mth $ 16,000.00 $ 48,000 

If $ 2.00 $ 
Is $ 9,397.50 $ 9,400 

Is $ 3,356.25 $ 3,400 

$ 26,900 

$ 111, 100 

$ 379,600 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 
ALTERNATIVE 6 - CR 350 W & 200 S WATER MAIN 

Description Quant. Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

CONSTRUCTION COST 

6" Water Main 6,750.0 ft $ 22.00 $ 148,500 

8" Water Main 10,800.0 ft $ 25.00 $ 270,000 

2 6" Gate Valves 3.0 ea $ 1,000.00 $ 3,000 

8" Gate Valves 5.0 ea $ 1,500.00 $ 7,500 

3 Wet Tap Existing Pip.e 

6" Tapping Sleeve 1.0 ea $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200 

8" Tapping Sleeve 1.0 ea $ 1,600.00 $ 1,600 

6" Tapping Valve 1.0 ea $ 1,200.00 $ 1,200 

8" Tapping Valve 1.0 ea $ 1,600.00 $ 1,600 

4 Metered Service Connection 13.0 ea $ 900.00 $ 11,700 

Service Tubing 600.0 ft $ 20.00 $ 12,000 

5 Roads & Driveways 

County Rd. & Driveway Repair 18.0 ea $ 2,500.00 $ 45,000 

6 Traffic Control 1.0 Is $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500 

7 Erosion Control 1.0 Is $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000 

8 Restoration 1.0 Is $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000 

9 Testing 17,550.0 If $ 1.00 $ 17,550 

Subtotal $ 533,400 

10 Mobilization 4.0% $ 21,300 

11 Bonds & Insurance 1.0% $ 7,310 

Construction Subtotal $ 562,010 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 
ALTERNATIVE 7 - SR 64 WATER MAIN 

Description Quant. Unit Unit Cost Total Cost 

CONSTRUCTION COST 

6" Water Main 4,450.0 ft $ 22.00 $ 97,900 

2 6" Gate Valves 1.0 ea $ 1,000.00 $ 1,000 

3 Wet Tap Existing Pipe 

Tapping Sleeve 2.0 ea $ 1,200.00 $ 2,400 

Tapping Valve 2.0 ea $ 1,200.00 $ 2,400 

4 5 1/4" Hydrant w/ Gate Valve & Box 1.0 ea $ 4,000.00 $ 4,000 

5 Roads & Driveways 

Jack & Bore Crossing 100.0 If $ 250.00 $ 25,000 

Driveway Repair 3.0 ea $ 2,500.00 $ 7,500 

6 Traffic Control 1.0 Is $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500 

7 Erosion Control 1.0 Is $ 2,500.00 $ 2,500 

8 Restoration 1.0 Is $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000 

9 Testing 4,450.0 If $ 0.50 $ 2,230 

Subtotal $ 151,430 
10 Mobilization 4.0% $ 6,000 

11 Bonds & Insurance 1.0% $ 1,500 

Construction Subtotal $ 158,900 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
PRELIMINARY PROJECT COST ESTIMATE 
ALTERNATIVE 8 - PARALLEL BOOSTER STATION SUPPLY 

Description Quant. Unit Unit Cost 

CONSTRUCTION COST 

16" Water Main 7,000.0 ft $ 67.00 

2 16" Butterfly Valve 4.0 ea $ 6,100.00 

3 Cut-In Connections to Existing Mains 4.0 ea $ 7,500.00 

4 Roads & Driveways 

Jack & Bore Crossing 300.0 If $ 520.00 

Open Cut Crosssing 2.0 ea $ 2,500.00 

Driveways 0.0 ea $ 2,500.00 

5 Booster Station Improvements 1.0 Is 

6 New Master Meter 

Structure 1.0 Is $ 40,000.00 

Meter 1.0 ea $ 15,500.00 

7 Traffic Control 1.0 Is $ 2,000.00 

8 Erosion Control 1.0 Is $ 10,000.00 

9 Restoration 1.0 Is $ 5,000.00 

10 Testing 7,000.0 If $ 1.00 

Subtotal 

8 Mobilization 4.0% 

9 Bonds & Insurance 1.0% 

Construction Subtotal 

Total Cost 

$ 469,000 

$ 24,400 

$ 30,000 

$ 156,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 

$ 192,000 

$ 40,000 

$ 15,500 

$ 2,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 7,000 

$ 950,900 

$ 38,000 

$ 9,500 

$ 998,400 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Appendix G 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Life Cycle Cost Analysis Calculations 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. September, 2017 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 2 - CR 225 W WATER MAIN 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Uan., 2017) 

RD 20-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate = 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

8" Water Main 

Valves 

6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

None 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs {Assets longer than 20 years} 

1 Transmission Mains 

8" Water Main 

2 Valves 

TOTAL 

Short Lived Assets (less than 20 years} 

Operations and Maintenance Costs {2015} 

1 Salaries & Wages 

Employee Benefits 

Outside Services 

Number 

(ea) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

Useful Life 

(years) 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

16,175.0 

9.0 

75.0 $ 
40.0 $ 

Pv = 1 I ( (1 + i) " n) 

i= Interest Rate 

n= Bond Period 

Pv = 0.9051 

Pw= ((1 + i) A n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) A n) 

Pw= 18.987 

i= (1 + i) A n 

1.806 

2016 Value Salvage Value 
@20 Years 

$ 628,620 $ 460,988 

$ 12,000 $ 6,000 

$ 466,988 

$ 307,601 

$ 158,855 

$ 15,616 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Unit Cost 

628,620 

12,000 

1,094,450 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

8,382 

300 

8,682 



Utilities 

Pumping $ 8, 191 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost f Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,357,303 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 1,094,450 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,357,303 

$ 25,771,700 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 8,682 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 164,800 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 466,988 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 422,700 

e Total Present Worth {a + b + c - d} $ 26,608,250 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 3-SR 68 WATER MAIN 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Uan., 2017) 

RD 40-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate = 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

8" Water Main 

Valves 
6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

None 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs {Assets longer than 20 years} 

1 Transmission Mains 

8" Water Main 
2 Valves 

TOTAL 

Short Lived Assets {less than 20 years} 

Operations and Maintenance Costs {2015} 

1 Salaries & Wages 

Employee Benefits 

Outside Services 

Number 

(ea) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

Useful Life 

(years) 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

1.0 

5.0 
75.0 $ 
40.0 $ 

Pv = 1 I ((1 + i) " n) 
i= Interest Rate 
n= Bond Period 

Pv = 0.9051 
Pw= ((1 + i) " n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) " n) 
Pw= 18.987 
i= (1 + i) " n 

1.806 

2016 Value Salvage Value 
@20 Years 

$ 211, 190 $ 154,873 
$ 7,400 $ 3,700 

$ 158,573 

$ 307,601 

$ 158,855 

$ 15,616 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Unit Cost 

211, 190 

7,400 

360,100 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

2,816 
185 

3,001 



Utilities 

Pumping $ 8,292 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost f Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,357,404 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 360, 100 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,357,404 

$ 25,773,600 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 3,001 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 57,000 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 158,573 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 143,500 

e Total Present Worth {a + b + c - d} $ 26,047,200 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 4- CR 350 W WATER MAIN 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Oan., 2017) 

RD 40-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate = 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

8" Water Main 

Valves 

6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

None 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs {Assets longer than 20 years} 

1 Transmission Mains 

8" Water Main 

2 Valves 

TOTAL 

Short Lived Assets (less than 20 years} 

Operations and Maintenance Costs {2015} 

1 Salaries & Wages 

Employee Benefits 

Outside Services 

Number 

(ea) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

Useful Life 

(years) 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

1.0 

6.0 

75.0 $ 
40.0 $ 

Pv = 1 I ( ( 1 + i) fl n) 

i= Interest Rate 

n= Bond Period 

Pv = 0.9051 

Pw= ((1 + i) fl n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) fl n) 

Pw= 18.987 

i= (1 + i) fl n 

1.806 

2016 Value Salvage Value 
@20 Years 

$ 312,540 $ 229, 196 

$ 8,800 $ 4,400 

$ 233,596 

$ 307,601 

$ 158,855 

$ 15,616 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Unit Cost 

312,540 

8,800 

636,300 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

4,167 

220 

4,387 



Utilities 

Pumping $ 8,292 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost f Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,357,404 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 636,300 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,357,404 

$ 25,773,600 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 4,387 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 83,300 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 233,596 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 211,400 

e Total Present Worth {a + b + c - d} $ 26,281,800 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 5 - CR 200 S WATER MAIN 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Uan., 2017) 

RD 40-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate = 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

6" Water Main 

Valves 

6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

None 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs {Assets longer than 20 years} 

1 Transmission Mains 

6" Water Main 

2 Valves 

TOTAL 

Short Lived Assets {less than 20 years) 

Operations and Maintenance Costs {2015} 

1 Salries & Wages 

Employee Benefits 

Outside Services 

Number 

(ea) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

Useful Life 

(years) 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

1.0 

4.0 

75.0 $ 
40.0 $ 

Pv = 1 I ( ( 1 + i) " n) 
i= Interest Rate 

n= Bond Period 

Pv = 0.9051 

Pw= ((1 + i) " n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) " n) 
Pw= 18.987 

i= (1 + i) " n 
1.806 

2016 Value Salvage Value 
@20 Years 

$ 141,880 $ 104,045 

$ 4,200 $ 2, 100 

$ 106,145 

$ 307,601 

$ 158,855 

$ 15,616 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Unit Cost 

141,880 

4,200 

284,350 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

1,892 

105 

1,997 



Utilities 

Pumping $ 8,292 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost f Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,357,404 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 284,350 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,357,404 

$ 25,773,600 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 1,997 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 37,900 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 106, 145 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 96, 100 

e Total Present Worth {a + b + c - d} $ 25,999,750 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 6 - CR 350 W & 200 S WATER MAINS 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Uan., 2017) 
RD 40-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate = 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

6" Water Main 

8" Water Main 

6" Valves 

8" Valves 
6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

None 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs {Assets longer than 20 years} 

1 Transmission Mains 

6" Water Main 

8" Water Main 

2 Valves 

6" Valves 
8" Valves 

TOTAL 

Short Lived Assets {less than 20 years} 

Number Useful Life 

(ea) (years) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

1.0 75.0 

1.0 75.0 

4.0 40.0 

6.0 40.0 

Pv = 1 I ( (1 + i)" n) 
i= Interest Rate 
n= Bond Period 

Pv = 0.9051 
Pw= ((1 + i) A n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) A n) 

Pw= 18.987 

i= (1 + i) A n 

1.806 

2016 Value Salvage Value 
@20 Years 

$ 202,110 $ 148,214 

$ 396,160 $ 290,517 

$ 3,900 $ 1,950 

$ 8,600 $ 4,300 

$ 444,981 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Unit Cost 

202,110 

396,160 

3,900 

8,600 

1,093,300 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

2,695 
5,282 

98 
215 

8,289 



Operations and Maintenance Costs {2015} 

1 Salries & Wages $ 307,601 

Employee Benefits $ 158,855 

Outside Services $ 15,616 

Utilities 

Pumping $ 8,292 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost f Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,357,404 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 1,093,300 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,357,404 

$ 25,773,600 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 8,289 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 157,400 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 444,981 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 402,700 

e Total Present Worth {a + b + c - d} $ 26,621,600 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 7 - SR 64 WATER MAIN 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Uan., 2017) 
RD 40-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate= 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

6" Water Main 

Valves 
6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

None 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs {Assets longer than 20 years} 

1 Transmission Mains 

6" Water Main 

2 Valves 

TOTAL 

Short Lived Assets {less than 20 years} 

Operations and Maintenance Costs {2015} 

1 Salries & Wages 

Employee Benefits 

Outside Services 

Number 

(ea) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

Useful Life 

(years) 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

1.0 

2.0 

75.0 $ 
40.0 $ 

Pv = 1 I ( (1 + i) " n) 
i= Interest Rate 
n= Bond Period 

Pv = 0.9051 
Pw= ((1 + i) " n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) " n) 
Pw= 18.987 
i= (1 + i) " n 

1.806 

2016 Value Salvage Value 
@20 Years 

$ 77,570 $ 56,885 
$ 2,400 $ 1,200 

$ 58,085 

$ 307,601 

$ 158,855 

$ 15,616 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Unit Cost 

77,570 

2,400 

178,300 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

1,034 
60 

1,094 



Utilities 

Pumping $ 8,292 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost f Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,357,404 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 178,300 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,357,404 

$ 25,773,600 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 1,094 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 20,800 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 58,085 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 52,600 

e Total Present Worth {a + b + c - d} $ 25,920,100 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 8 - PARALLEL BOOSTER STATION SUPPLY 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Uan., 2017) 

RD 40-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate= 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

16" Water Main 

Valves 

Meter Vault 

6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

Master Meter 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs (Assets longer than 20 years} 

1 Transmission Mains 

16" Water Main 

2 Valves 

3 Meter Vault 

TOTAL 

Short Lived Assets (less than 20 years} 

1 Master Meter 

Operations and Maintenance Costs (2015} 

Number 

(ea) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

Useful Life 

(years) 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

1.0 75.0 

8.0 40.0 

1.0 75.0 

1.0 20.0 

Pv = 1 I ( ( 1 + i) 11 n) 

i= Interest Rate 

n= Bond Period 

Pv = 0.9051 

Pw= ( ( 1 + i) 11 n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) 11 n) 

Pw= 18.987 

i= (1 + i) 11 n 

1.806 

2016 Value Salvage Value 
@20 Years 

$ 283,720 $ 208,061 

$ 26,200 $ 13, 100 

$ 24,300 $ 17,820 

$ 238,981 

$ 32,000 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

Unit Cost 

283,720 

26,200 

24,300 

32,000 

1,065,100 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

3,783 

655 

324 

4,762 

1,600 



Salries & Wages $ 307,601 

Employee Benefits $ 158,855 

Outside Services $ 15,616 

Utilities 

Pumping $ 8,280 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost f Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,357,392 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 1,065,100 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,357,392 

$ 25,773,400 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 6,362 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 120,800 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 238,981 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 216,300 

e Total Present Worth {a + b + c - d} $ 26,743,000 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
GIBSON COUNTY, INDIANA 
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 
ALTERNATIVE 9 -COMBINED ALTERNATIVES - 2, 3, 6, 7, & 8 

Assumptions: 

Financial Data Uan., 2017) 

RD 40-Year Interest Rate 

SRF Interest Rate 

Inflation Rate= 

2 Bond Period 

3 Study Period 

4 Assets w/ 20 year life - % value at end of life 

5 Long Lived Assests (longer than 20 Years) 

6" Water Main 

8" Water Main 

16" Water Main 

6" Valves 

8" Valves 

16" Valves 

Meter Vault 

6 Short Lived Assests (less than 20 years) 

Flow Meter 

7 Total Project Cost 

8 Present Value Factor 

8 Present Worth Factor 

9 Inflation Factor, 20 Year 

Salvage Costs {Assets longer than 20 ~ears} 

1 Transmission Mains 

6" Water Main 

8" Water Main 

16" Water Main 

2 Valves 

6" Valves 

8" Valves 

Number 
(ea) 

0.50% 

2.21% 

3.00% 

Useful Life 
(years) 

20.0 years 

20.0 years 

10.0% 

1.0 75.0 

1.0 75.0 

1.0 75.0 

6.0 40.0 

30.0 40.0 

4.0 40.0 

1.0 75.0 

1.0 20.0 

Pv = 1 I ( (1 + i) " n) 

i= Interest Rate 

n= Bond Period 

Pv= 0.9051 

Pw= ((1 + i) A n) - 1 

i * (1 + i) A n) 

Pw= 18.987 

i= (1 + i) A n 

1.806 

Salvage Value 
2016 Value 

@20 Years 

$ 279,680 $ 205,099 

$ 1,235,970 $ 906,378 

$ 283,720 $ 208,061 

$ 6,300 $ 3,150 

$ 28,000 $ 14,000 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

Unit Cost 

279,680 

1,235,970 

283,720 

6,300 

28,000 

26,200 

21,500 

32,000 

3,663,300 

Yearly 
Replacement 

Cost 

3,729 

16,480 

3,783 

158 

700 



16" Valves $ 26,200 $ 13, 100 $ 655 

3 Meter Vault $ 21,500 $ 15,767 $ 287 

$ 1,365,555 $ 25,791 

Short Lived Assets {less than 20 ~ears) 

1 Master Meter $ 32,000 $ 1,600 

$ 27,391 

Operations and Maintenance Costs {2015) 

1 Salaries & Wages $ 307,601 

Employee Benefits $ 158,855 

Outside Services $ 15,616 

Utilities 

Pumping $ 7,757 

Other $ 27,477 

Insurance $ 27,206 

Contractural Service $ 9,869 

Materials & Supplies $ 23,395 

Transportation $ 12, 115 

Professional Fees $ 24,732 

Tank Maintenance $ 69,268 

Cost of Water $ 645,984 

Miscellaneous $ 26,994 

Total $ 1,356,900 

LIFE CYCLE COST ANALYSIS 

Federal Real Discount Rate 0.50% 

Planning Period 20.0 

a Total Project Costs: $ 3,663,300 

b Annual Operation & Maintenance: $ 1,356,900 

$ 25,764,000 

O&M 20 Year PW 

c Short Lived Depreciated Assets: $ 27,400 

SLA 20 Year PW $ 520,300 

d Future Salvage Value: $ 1,365,600 

Salvage Value 20 Year PW $ 1,236,000 

e Total Present Worth (a + b + c - d) $ 28,711,600 
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IURC NO. 14 

Duke Energy Indiana, LLC 
1000 East Main Street 
Plainfield, Indiana 46168 

Fourth Revised Sheet No. 12 
Cancels and Supersedes 
Third Revised Sheet No. 12 
Page 1 of 3 

RATE HLF-SCHEDULE FOR HIGH LOAD FACTOR SERVICE 

Availability 

Available to any customer contracting for a specified capacity of not less than 25 kW. Applicant must be 
located adjacent to an electric transmission or distribution line of Company that is adequate and suitable 
for supplying the service requested. 

Character of Service 

Alternating current having a frequency of sixty Hertz and furnished in accordance with the provisions set 
forth hereunder. 

Rate* 

Connection Charges per Month: 
Secondary ............................................................................................................... . 
Primary and Primary Direct ..................................................................................... . 
Transmission ........................................................................................................... . 

Maximum Load Charge (Monthly) 

Transmission Line Service at nominal voltage of 138,000, 230,000 or 345,000 Volts 

$ 15.00 
$ 75.00 
$300.00 

Each kW of Billing Maximum Load ............................ ............................................. $ 10.35 per kW 

Transmission Line Service at nominal voltage of 69,000 Volts 
Each kW of Billing Maximum Load ......................................................................... $ 10.83 per kW 

Primary Direct Service at nominal voltage of 2,400 to 34,500 Volts 
Each kW of Billing Maximum Load.......................................................................... $ 12.05 per kW 

Primary Service at nominal voltage of 2,400 to 34,500 Volts 
Each kW of Billing Maximum Load ....................................... .................................. $ 13.08 per kW 

Secondary Service at nominal voltage of 480 Volts or lower 
Each kW of Billing Maximum Load ......................................................................... $ 14.06 per kW 

Eneray Charae (In addition to the Maximum Load Charge) 

Transmission Line Service at nominal voltage of 138,000, 230,000 or 345,000 Volts 
For All Energy Used Per Month............................................................................... $0.015848 per kWh 

Transmission Line Service at nominal voltage of 69,000 Volts 
For All Energy Used Per Month............................................................................... $0.015904 per kWh 

Primary Direct Service at nominal voltage of 2,400 to 34,500 Volts 
For All Energy Used Per Month............................................................................... $0.016065 per kWh 

Primary Service at nominal voltage of 2,400 to 34,500 Volts 
For All Energy Used Per Month............................................................................... $0.016275 per kWh 

Secondary Service at nominal voltage of 480 Volts or lower 
For All Energy Used Per Month............................................................................... $0.016830 per kWh 

KVArCharge 
For Each kVAr of the Monthly Billed kVAr Demand................................................. $0.24 per kVAr 

Issued: December 30, 2015 Effective: January 1, 2016 



Duke Energy Indiana, LLC 
1000 East Main Street 
Plainfield, Indiana 46168 

IURC NO. 14 
Fourth Revised Sheet No. 12 
Cancels and Supersedes 
Third Revised Sheet No. 12 
Page 2 of 3 

RATE HLF-SCHEDULE FOR HIGH LOAD FACTOR SERVICE 

Monthly Minimum Charge 

The monthly minimum charge shall be the Maximum Load Charge. 

Measurements of Maximum Load and Energy 

Maximum Load shall be measured by suitable recording instruments provided by Company. The Metered 
Maximum Load shall be the customer's highest average thirty-minute kW load in the billing period. 

When energy is measured through more than one meter (permitted in the case of metering at a voltage of 
480 Volts or lower under Paragraph 4 of Special Terms and Conditions) the Maximum Loads, separately 
determined for each meter, shall be added together for determining the Maximum Load for the month. 

Energy shall be measured by suitable integrating instruments provided by Company. 

Metering Adjustments 

At the option of the Company, service hereunder may be metered at voltage levels different from 
delivered voltages. In the event metered voltages exceed delivered voltages, before computing the 
charges, the actual measurement of energy, kVAr and Billing Maximum Load shall be decreased by one 
percent (1 %). In the event delivered voltages exceed metered voltages, before computing the charges, 
the actual measurement of energy, kVAr and Billing Maximum Load shall be increased by one percent 
(1%). . 

Billing Maximum Load 

The Billing Maximum Load will equal the Metered Maximum Load in kW adjusted for metering 
adjustments, if applicable. In no event shall the Billing Maximum Load be less than 25 kW. 
Billing of kVAr 

For Customers who have pulse metering, the billed kVAr demand will be determined by trigonometric 
calculation using the customer's peak 30 minute kW demand for the month and the power factor 
coincident with the peak 30 minute kW demand for the month. For Customers who do not have pulse 
metering, the billed kVAr demand will be determined by trigonometric calculation using the Customer's 
peak 30 minute kW demand for the month and the average power factor for the month. 

Special Terms and Conditions 

1. For Customers taking transmission or primary service, Customer shall furnish, own, and maintain, at 
his own expense, the complete substation structure and equipment, including switches and protective 
equipment, transformers and other apparatus, any or all of which is necessary for Customer to take 
service at the standard primary or transmission line voltage selected by Company. Company will, 
however, furnish, own, operate, and maintain all necessary metering equipment. Failure of a customer 
to provide proper maintenance on facilities described hereinabove which results in premature 
equipment failure and/or interruption to the Company's other customers shall be considered negligent 
and the Company may require the Customer to install protective equipment as specified by the 
Company in order to provide the necessary protection and isolation. Said protective equipment shall 
be furnished, owned, and maintained by the Customer, however, in certain instances Company retains 
the option of requiring the Customer to enter into a specific maintenance agreement with the 
Company. Company also retains the option of furnishing, owning, and maintaining said protective 
equipment as per "Standard Contract Rider No. 53-Excess Facilities." 

Issued: December 30, 2015 Effective: January 1, 2016 



Duke Energy Indiana, LLC 
1000 East Main Street 
Plainfield, Indiana 46168 

IURC NO. 14 
Fourth Revised Sheet No. 12 
Cancels and Supersedes 
Third Revised Sheet No. 12 
Page 3 of 3 

RATE HLF-SCHEDULE FOR HIGH LOAD FACTOR SERVICE 

Special Terms and Conditions (Contd.) 
2. All wiring, pole lines, wires, and other electrical equipment and apparatus located beyond point of 

connection of Customer's service lines with the lines of Company are considered the distribution 
system of Customer and shall be furnished, owned, and maintained by Customer, except in the case 
of metering equipment and other equipment incidental to the rendering of service, if any, that is 
furnished, owned and maintained by Company, and installed beyond point of connection. 

3. The Company normally does not provide transformations within the transmission and/or primary 
service classifications as described in the transmission and primary maximum load charges. 
However, in the case of unusual service requests where the Company's existing facilities adjacent to 
the Customer are inadequate, the Company may furnish such transformations upon Customer paying 
the appropriate excess facilities charge. The Company shall not furnish, own, and maintain such 
transformers on an excess facilities basis solely for the purpose of modifying Paragraph 1 on the 
previous page. 

4. The rates hereunder are predicated upon the supply of service being delivered at a single location in 
such a manner that the measurement of the various components of the service may be made through 
one metering installation, except that service metered at a voltage of 480 Volts or lower may be 
furnished through not more than one meter for the lighting service and one meter for the power 
service, unless it is required by law to install a separate service for exit lighting, in which case an 
additional meter will be installed for the exit lighting. 

5. During certain scheduled periods of time, Customers served at primary voltage and higher may 
perform normal maintenance or repair that will result in a partial or total reduction in electrical 
consumption during certain monthly billing periods. Such maintenance or repair period may be 
scheduled and agreed upon by Customer and Company at least thirty (30) days prior to such period. 
There shall be a maximum of two (2) such scheduled periods in a twelve-month consecutive period 
not to exceed 14 days in total duration for both such periods. 

Whenever such maintenance or repair periods have been scheduled with and agreed to by Company, 
Customer will be billed for the actual maximum load during such periods on the basis of the proration 
of the Maximum Load Charge. Such proration will be based on the ratio of the number of days in the 
scheduled maintenance or repair period, divided by thirty (30) days. The actual energy used during 
the maintenance or repair period will be billed according to the Energy Charge of this rate schedule. 

For all of the other days during the monthly billing period in which there has been a scheduled 
maintenance or repair period, Customer will be billed for the maximum load, as determined by the 
Billing Maximum Load provision of this rate schedule, multiplied by the complement of the above 
computed prorate ratio. The Energy Charge will be computed on the actual energy used during the 
remaining portion of the monthly billing period. 

A $500.00 fee will be imposed on customers taking advantage of the Maintenance Period Provision, 
but only at those times when such periods are taken. 

*Subject to the applicable rate adjustment riders listed in Appendix A. 

Issued: December 30, 2015 Effective: January 1, 2016 
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of 
Gibson Water, Inc. 
Haubstadt, Indiana 

P;O. BOX 519 • 180SDISPATo-tROAD 
. JASPER, n\I 475~7~,0519 

PHQl\E ($12).482-3535 
FAX (812) 482,4249 

4 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gibson Water, Inc •. (a nonprofit 
corporation) which comprise the statement.s of financial position as of December 31, 2015 
and 2014, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets and c~sh flows. 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Ma11agement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these flnan¢ial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the Urtit~d 
States of America~ this includes the design, implementation, and, maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financiaJ statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error. 

A mlitots' R espo11sibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based op our 
audits. We condu¢tc;:d oµr audits in accorqance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and· perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether. the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on. the auditors' 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether dUe to fraud or error.. lri making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements ,in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the· 
entityis internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
Significant accounting estimates made. by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the al.ldit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficiem and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

NEIV'BEROF 
AIVERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOU\IT ANTS 

PRIVATE COlllPANIES PRACTICE SECTIONS - AICPA DIVISION FOR CPA FIRMS 
AICPA EfvPLOYEE aEi'EFIT PLAN AUDIT QUALITY CENTER 

INblANA cPA SOCIETY 



CHAAt,ES A. B\..EOt.EN. CPA. OM. CGMA 
MARKW. 0l.,EO-LEN. CPA CGIYIA 

Opinion 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

(CONTINUED) 

·P.O. BOX 5 t 9 · ; t 805 DISPATCH ROAD 
JASPER. N 4 754 7-0519 

PHalE (812) 482-3535 
FM (812) 482,4249 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to· above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the finan.cial position of Gibson Water, Inc. as of December 31 1 2015 ·a11d 2014; 
and the changes in its net assets an<t ils cash flow$ for the y¢ars then ended in conformity 
with accoti'nting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. · 

Other-Matter 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of foillling an opinion on lhe financial· statements 
as a whole. The schedules of functional expenses on page 17 are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying .accounting arid other records used to prepare l~e fina11ciaJ statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing ;procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures., including comparing and 
reconciling such inforination directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards. generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In .our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the financial statements as a. whole. 

Jasper; Indiana 

June 2, 2016 

B~..,.aa,..~ /l .. --...... ~~ . , r; (.. 

Certified PubJic Accountants 

IVEtvBER OF 
AWERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED Pl.J8UC ACCOUNT ANTS 

PAIVA TE COWPANIES PRACTICE SECTIONS - AICPA DIVISION FOR O>A FIRMS 
AICPA EM'LOYEE BEJ\EFIT PLAN AWIT QUALITY CENTER 

MIANA CPA SOCIETY 



6 
GIBSON WATER, INC. 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

ASSETS 

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 3li 
2015 2014 

'CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 
Cash deposit for line extension 
Trade accounts receivable, net 

Billed 
Unbilled 

Other receivable from line extension 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 

Total currerit assets 

PROPERTY, PLANT; AND EQUIPMENT 
Utility plarit in service 
Accumulated depreciatioit 

Net utility plant in service 

OTHER ASSETS 
Deferred tank painting expense 

$; 478,980 

26,437 
87,986 
13,109 

9;491 
32,949 

648,952 

16,669}837 
(5,285,427) 

11,384,410 

806,160 

~: 

T¢lal ass~ts $ 12,839;522 $ 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
SEE NOTES TO F1NANC1AL, ST A TEMENTS 

500,461 
5,225 

19, 198 
86,717 

17, 111 
24,164 

652,876 

16,537,622 
{5,002,039) 

ll . .53~,583 

907,053 

13,095,512 

I 
I 
'! 



7 
GIBSON WATER, INC, 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, DEC~MBER 3.1, 

2015 ... 2014 
lJNR,ESTRiCtED 

OP.I;;~ TING REVENUES. 
Wat~rsales 
. Residential 
Commercia.l 
Industrial 
Agricultural 
Sold f9r n:salc 
Oth~r 

Total Waler sales 

Mis~ellaneous op~ratirtg• income 

Total operating revenues 

OPERA TING EXPENSES 
Cost of water 
Utility plapt operations 
Administrative and general 

Total operating c;xpenses 

OPERATING INCOME BEFORE .. 
DEPR.EClA TION AND INTEREST 

DEPRECIATION (less amonization of grants and 
contributions in aid of construction) 

INTEREST 

OPERA TING INCOM~ 

NON-OPERATING ACTIVITiES 
· Interest income 
Memberships issued 
Memberships redeemed 
Amortization ot grants 
Contributions in aid of construction 
Amortization or contributions in aid of construction 
Miscellaneous income 

Total non-operating activiHes 

CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

NET ASSETS AT Bf:GINNING OF YEAR 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 

s 

$ 

568,317 $ 
177,433 
555,501 
34,800 
88,435 

7,552 

l,432,038 

29,339 

J,461,377 

645,984 
258,259 
454,704 

1,358,947 

102,430 

78,442 
3;939 

20;049 

195 
JJ,900 

(11,400) 
(33:.333) 
99, 11 J 

(171,612) 
4,116 

~99;023) .. 

(789974) 

12,742;264 

12,663,290 $ 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDlTORS' REPORT 
SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. • CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

564,021 
20l;OQ3 
533;458 
25,l63 
83,3Ql 

8,348 

1,415,494 

27;66L 

•t,443,ISS 

599,448 
275,454 
438,778 

),3.13,680. 

129;475 ' 

71,848 
4,303. 

47,324 

345 
14,100 

(Jl,700) 
(33,332) 
208,811. 

{t69,960) 
4,165 

12,409 

59,733 

.12,682,531 

12,742,264 

l 
;. 

I 
l 
:! 
1 

I: 
!. 
I 
; 



GIBSON WATER, INC; 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

·'CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from customers 
Cash paid to suppliers and employee;;: 
Interest t'cceived 
Interest paid 
Other income.· 

Net cash provided by 6pera:tit1g activities; 

'(;;ASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACT!VfTIE$. 
Purchases of property and equipment 
Increase in deferred ta11k paintin~ expense 

Net cash used by investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from contributions in aid of construction 
Proceeds from memberships 
Refunds of memberships 
Principal payments on note payable 

Net cash provided by flnimcing activitie~ 

NET DECREASE JN CASH 

CASHATBEGINNJNG OF YEAR 

CASH NT END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENT AL DISCLOSURES 
Noncash activities 

Decrease in deferred tank painting expense~op 
contract payable from settlement of contract 

Deferred tank painting expense on contract pay4bhr 
FZeclass of deferred tank painting expense froni 

property and equipment 
Acquisition of utility plant on contract payable 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 

2015 

$<.• 1,439,760 
(1,385,172) 

195 
(3,939) 
4,116 

54;960 

(132,215) 

'(132,215) 

99,111 
13,900 

(l 1,400) 
(51,062) 

50,549 

.(26,706) 

505,686 

$ 478;980 

$· 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. - CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

$ 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 

2014 

l ,498,456 
(1,209,828) 

325 
(4,JOJ) 
4,165. 

288,815 

(254,893) 
(466,588) 

(721,4.81) 

208,81 l 
14,100 

(11,700) 
(60,697) 

150,514 

(282, l 52): 

787,838 

$ 505!686 

1J;193. 

176,063 
451000 

i 
l 



GIBSON WATER, lNC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(CONTINUED) 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN UNDESIGNATED NET ASSETS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERA.TING ACTIVITIES 

CHANGE IN UNDESlGNATED NET ASS~TS 

Adjustments to reconcile change in 
undesignated net assets to net cash 
provided by operating activities 

Depreciation 
Amortization bf deferred tank painting expense 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets: 

Accounts receivable 
Other receivable froin line extension 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventory 

'Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued liabi I ities 
Contracts payable 

Total adjustments 

Net CiiSh provided by operating adivitie$ 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 

2015 

$ 24,36() $ 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
SEE NOTES TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. ·CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 3 l, 

2014 

51,814 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

){) 

Gibson Water, Inc. (the "Utjlity'» provides for the distribution of potable water to its 
members in the rural areas of Gibson County, Indiana. The Utility serves 
approximately 1,700 customers. The Utility is governed by a five-member Board of 
Directors elected by the voting members of the Utility at the annual membership 
meeting. Directors are elected to serve alternating three year terms. 

BASIS QF ACCOUNTJNG 
The financial state.111~nts of the Utility have been prepared on the .accr1,1al basis ()f 
accounting and, accordingly, reflect all significant receivables, payables,. ahd other 
liabilities, · · 

The accounting guide in use by the Utility is the Uniform System of Accounts forClass 
A Water Utilities published by the· National Association of Regulatory Utility 
Commissioners and is in accordance with policies- prescribed Of P~nnitted by the 
Indiana Utility Regtil~tory Cotnmissfon. In 2012, the Utility began aniorlizing the 
Grant Proceeds and Contributions in Aid of Construction in accordance with the 
Unifonn System of Accounts. 

REGULATdRY JURISDICTION 
The Utility is subject to the regulatory jurisdiction of the lndiana Utility Regulatory 
Commission. The Commission has the responsibility for determining the fair> just, and 
equitable rates and charges of the Utility, approving the incurtence of long term 
indebtedness, and other inatters that fall within its statutory authority. 

REVENUE RECOGNITION 
The Utility .records. revenues as water is consumed by the customer. 

ESTIMATES 
The preparation of financial statements in confom1ity with gener~lly accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and :assumptions. that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of.contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results coµld. differ from 
those estimates. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
As required by the Presentation of Financial Statements Topic of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification, the Utility shall 
report all unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently 
restricted net assets. The Utility did not have any pennanently restricted nee assets or 
temporarily restricted net assets at December 31, 20 IS and 2014. 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. • CERTIFIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DEC.EMUER.JJ. 2015 AND 2014 

(CONTINUED) 

CASH FLOW rNFORMA TION 
Cash paid for interest was $3,939 and $4,303 for 2015 and 2014, respectively. 

CASH 

:l .1' ; . : 

The Utility considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an initial maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

A portion of the Utility's cash was classified as restricted on the balance sheets for the 
,final costs of a line extension. See note 4 for more details. 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
The Utility grants credit on sales of water to customers. Tracie accounts receivable are: 
recorded at the outstanding !Jalahce as of the balance sheet date. The Utility charges 
interest on overdue trade accounts receivable at 10% of the first $3.00 of the bill and 
3% of the remaining bill. Receivables arc considered past due after the due date, and 
accounts are written off at year-end if they are considered uncollectible. Late accounts 
continue to accrue monthly late penalties until paid. The Utility uses the direct write 
off method for any uncollectible accounts based on management's evaluation of the 
outstanding accounts. 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Utility to concentrations of credit 
risk consist primarily of accounts receivable. However, individual accounts receivable 
are collateralized by the amotmt of the membership fee of up to $1 Ob. 

The Utility had $504 and $1,007 included in accounts receivable greater than 90 days 
as of December 3 1, 2015 and 2014; respectively. . 

iNYENTORY 
Inventory consists primarily of items used for the maintenance and expansion 9fthe 
utility system and is valued at lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. 

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant, and equipment ate recorded at cost 1he Utility follows the practice of 
capitalizing all expenditures of property, plant, and equipment in excess of $1,500. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method at an annual composite rate of 
l.7% of depreciable utility plant in seniice, in accordance with regulatory 
requirements. Components of the property, plant~ and equipment totals are 
summarized in Note 5. 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDlTORS' REPORT 
BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. ·CERTIFIED PUl:J!-IC ACCOUNTANTS 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014 

(CONTINUED) 

DEFERRED TANK PAINTING EXPENSE 

12 

Deferred tank painting expense consists-of the costs ofrepainting and resurfacing the 
Utility's tanks and standpipe. The Utility amortizes the costs using the straight-line 
method over the estimated time interval between repaintings and resurfacings which is 
estimated at 10 to 15 years. The Utility records the. amortization as Maintenance of 
Tanks. Components of deferred tank maintenance expense are sumrtforized in Note 6. 

MF:MB:ERSHlPS 
N~w cust.omers are required to pay $100 to obtain a membership certificate. Upon 
relfnquishment of memberships, customers are refunded, the cost of their membership 
less any past due amounts owed to the Utility for water fees. · 

GRANT PROCEEDS 
Grants consist of assistance received from the United States Department of Agriculture. 
under formal grant agreements used for the acquisition or construction of fixed assets. 
These assets become the property of the Utility and are capitiilized and therefore 
.depreciated. The Utility amortizes the grants and records as a decrease in propeJ1y, 
plant, and equipment depreciation expen~e. The amortization is computed using the 
straight-line method over the remaining estimated useful lives of the related property. 
Grants and the related accumulated amoni?~Hon were as follows at December 31: 

2015 _2014 

Grants $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000 
Less accumulated amortization (1331333} (1001000} 
Grants, rtet of amorti.zation $ 1,866,667 $ 1;900,000 

CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION 
Contributions in aid of construction consist of contributions made by members that 
bear the cost of extending wa,ter Jines to their property and also for capital projects 
funded by the State of lndia.na. These assets become the property of the Utility ai1d are 
capitalized and therefore depreciated; The Utility amortizes the contribution in aid of 
construction and records as a decrease in property, plant, and equipment depreciation 
expense~ The amortization is computed usirig the straight-line melhod ·over the 
remaining estimated useful lives of the related property. Contributions in aid of 
construction and the r~lated accumulated amortization were as follows at December 31: 

2015 2014 

Contributions in aid ofconstruction $ 10,296,71 I $ 10,197,600 
Less accumulated amortization {6562190} {4842578} 
Contributions in aid of construction, 
net of amortization $ 9,640,521 $ 9,713,022 

SEE fNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. - CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2015 AND 2014 

(CONTINUED) 

2. INCO!VIETAX STATUS 

13 

The Utility is exempt from federal income tax under Section 50l(c)(l2) of the ln_temal 
Revenue Code and exempt from Indiana state income tax. Therefore, no provision for 
either federal or state income t;:ixes has been made in the financial statements. 

The Utility files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and Indiana state 
jurisdiction. The Utility is no longer subject to U.S. federal and state tax examination~ 
by tax authorities for years prior to 2012.. · 

3. CONCENTRATIONS 

The Utility purchases all of its supply of water from the Evansville Water and Sewer 
Utility (Evansville Waterworks Department). The purchase of water from the 
Evansville Waterworks Department is made under the provisions of a kmg-tenn 
contract. The water purchase contract provides for Evansville Waterworks Department 
to furnish to the Utility purchases of up to 2.5 million gallons per day~ The term of the 
contract is for a period of 50 years, with the rates and charges subject to periodic 
revision upo11 review and approval of the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission; 

Nearly all revenue is obtained from water sales to the local geographic area. For the 
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Utility had sales of $526,062 and 
$503,262, respectively to Toyota MotorManufacturing, Indiana, Inc, and $88, 126 and 
$82,38'.3, respectively, to the town of Haubstadt. 

The Utility maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed'' 
federally insured limits. The Utility has not experienced any loss.es in such accounts. 
The amounts on deposit at December 31, 2015 and 2014, exceeded the federally 
insured limits by $225,739 and $462,068, respectively., 

4. CASH RESTIUCTIONS 

The Utility's restricted cash consists of a construction account funded by outside 
parties for liric extensions. The cash restricted for line extensions was $5,225 as of 
December 31, 2014. The Utility had no n::stdcted cash as of December 31, 2015. 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. - CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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GIBSON WATER, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEl\lBE.R.31. 2015 AND 2014 

(CONTINUED) 

5. PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 

Property; plant;,;;ind equipment consisted of the following at December 31: 

2015 2014 

Organization and franchise, $ 191,433 $ 191,433 
Land and land rights 953,855 953,855 
Structures and irnprovemei1ts 2,304,738 2,304,738 
Transmission and distribution 12,791,166 12,671, 104 
Office furniture 190,873 178,720 
Transportation equipment 94,975 94,975 
Tools and equipment 142,797 142,797 

Tqtal utility plant in service 16,669,837 16,537,622 
Less accumulated depreciation (5,285,427) (5,002,039) 

Net utility plant in servic~ $ 11,384,410 $ _} :1,535,583 
-~==-= ... - ~ 

Jn 2014, the Utility completed a water main relocation project at a cost of $80, 735, for 
which the Utility was reimbursed by the Indiana Department of Transportation. The 
Utility had contracts payable from this project of $-0- and $45,000 as of December 31, 
201 Sand 2014, the respectively. 

6. DEFERRED TANK PAINTING E,XPENSE 

The Utility's deferred lank painting expense was $806, 160 and $907,053 as of" 
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. In 2015, the Utility recorded amortization 
of $69,268 which is included as Maintenance of Tanks expense in the Schedules of 
Functional Expenses. The Utility c;ilso redµced deferred tank painting expense by 
$31,625 in accordancewith the Utilitis settlement of a tank painting contraq, 

ln 2014, the Utllity recorded additions of $506,158 related to a tank painting eonltact. 
The Utility's retainage on the project was $73,793 as of December 31, 2014, and 
recorded as Contracts Payable in the Statements ofFimmcial Positioi1, The Utility al~o. 
reclassified $158,458 in tank repainting costs that were originally recorded in property; 
plant, and equipment in previous years. In 2014, the Utility recorded amortizatio11 ~f 
$99,788, which was included as Maintenance of Tanks expense. 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. - CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014 

(CONTINUED) 

7. LONG-TERM DEBT 

The note payable consisted of the followin~ as of December 31 :: 

Notepayable to bank, payable in monthly 
installments of $3,134; bearing interest of 
2;875%; due November 2018 · 

Less current portion. 

Long"."terrn.note payable 

. 2015 

$· 58,655 

(35;940) 

$ 22,715 

$ 

.. 2014 

109,717 

(34,996) 

74,721 

Maturiti~s ()f lotig~term debt are as follows for th¢ years ended December 31: 

Year Amount 

2016 $ 35,940 
2017 22~715 

Total $ 58~655 

The note is collateralized by all business assets of the Utility. 

8. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 

15 

The Utility has a Simplified Employee ·Pension Plan (SEP). All full-time ~mployees 
who are at least 21 ye~rs of age and have been employed for 60 calendar days may 
participate in the plan. This is a· defined contribution plan. Benefits are .based solely 
on corttributionS:. Therefore, no unfunded liability for prior service exists. 

The l)tility's contribution to the plan is 5% of gross wages for each participant. 
Retirement expensefocurred by the Utility was $13,755 and·$13,477 in 2015 and 2014, . . . 

· respectiv~ly. 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDlTORS' REPORT 
BUECHLEIN &, ASSOCIATES, P.C. • CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



GIBSON WATER, INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2015 AND 2014 

(CONTINUED} 

9; RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

16 

T~e Utility made purchases from businesses owned by members, of the Board of 
l)irectors totaling $533 in 2015 and $4;549 in 2014. The Utility contracted set'\lices 
with a business that is owned by a Utility employee and employs, Utility employees. 
The contracted line extension costs were $18,600 ,and $8,784. for 2015 and 2014, 
respettively, There \Vere no amotints payable to these businesses at December 3: l~ 
20lS and 20l4, respectively~ Management considers these to be arm;s~length 
transactions .. 

J~SUBSEQUENTEVENTS 

The Utility has evaluated subseqi,ient events through June 2, 2016 the date, which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. • CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUl\ITANTS 



17 
GIBSON WATER, INC. 

SCHEDULES OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBEg3t, 2015 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2014 

Salaries and wages: 
Employee benefits 

Outside services 
Utilities 

Insurance 
Contractui:\I services 

Jv1aterials and supplies 
Transportation 

Bad9ebts 
Professional fees· 

Maintenance ()f tanks· 
Miscellaneous 

T9tal expenses 

UTILITY PLANT ADMINISTRATIVE 
OPERATIONS AND GENERAL 

$ 103,725 $ 203;876 
37;200 121,655 

5,441 10,175 
37,769 

27;206 
~ 9,869 

4,381 19,014 

'" I 2, 115 

66 
~ 24,734 

69,268 •1-· 

475 25,994 

$ 258,259 $ 454,704 

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
SEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

TOTALS 
2015 2014 

$ 307,601 $ 281,671 
158,855 149,595 

15,616 20,851 
37,769 37,269 

27,206 26,756 
9,869 ,}0,764 

23,395 24,954 
12,115· 16,053 

66 300 
24,734 l 8,613 

69,268 99,788 
26,469 27,618 

$ 712,963 $ 714,232 

BUECHLEIN & ASSOCIATES, P.C. - CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
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Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Appendix J 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Gibson Water, Inc. Schedule of Water Rates and Charges 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. September, 2017 



OFFICE 
COPY 

GIBSON WATER, INC. 
517 E 1250 S 

HAUBSTADT IN 47639 
(812) 768~6899 

. '!j JAUSSTADT RATE - $2.37~0USAND 
GALLONS 

S TOYOTA RATE· $2.37JTHOUSAND 
. .. GALLONS .. 

SCHEDULE OF WATER RATES AND CHARGES 
As of 3/15/20>17 

METERED CONSUMPTION 
For use of and service renderec{ by the wateiworks system of the Corporation, based on the use of water supplied by 
said system: 

Consumption per Month 

First 2,000 gallons 
Next 5,000 gallons 
Next 18,000 gallons 
Next 75,000 gallons 
Next 100,000 gallons 
Next 300,000 gallons 
Over 500,000 gallons 

MINIMUM CHARGE 

Rate per 1000 gallons 

$7.64 
$7.35 
$7.05 
$6.76 
$5~00 
$3;24 
$2.65 

(15.28) 
(36.75) 

(126.90) 
(507.00) 
(500.00) 
(972.00} 

(1325.00) 

$3482.93/1 MILLION GALLONS 
w/o tax 

Each user shall pay a minimum charge in accordance with the following applicable size of meter installed, for which 
the user shall be entitled to the quantity of water set out in the following schedule of rates: 

·~ 
1 I 

~ 
3 
4 
5 
6 
1 

Meter Size 
518 and % inch meter 
1 inch meter 
1 Y2 inch meter 
2 inch meter 
3 inch meter 
4 inch meter 
6 inch meter 

TEMPORARY USERS - CONDUIT 

Gallons Allowed 
2,000 
3,400 
6,900 

11,315 
21,630 
37,000 
75,890 

Minimum Charge w/o Tax 
$ 1s;2a 
$ 25.57 
$ 51.30· 
$ 82.45 
$ 155.17 
$ 260.05 
$ 522.95 

1.07 
1.79 
3.59 
5.77 

10.86 
18.20 
36.61 

16.35 
27.36 
54.89 
88.22 

166.03 
278.25 
559.56 

Water furnished to temporary users such as contractors shall be charged on the basis of the metered rates herein 
before set forth as estimated and established by the Wateiworks Superintendent 

TEMPORARY USERS - VEHICLE $7.64 PER1;000 GALLONS 

Water furnished to temporary users such as bulk haulers shall be charged this rate on the basis of volumes estimated 
and established by the Waterworks Superintendent. 

FYI: 
$25.00 Reconnect Fee 
$20,00 Returned Check Charge 

~---

Date Bills are mailed~ 151h/month 
Date Bills are Due~ 151/month 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Table K-1: 

Table K-2: 

Table K-3: 

Table K-4: 

Figure K: 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. 

Appendix K 

Preliminary Engineering Report 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Hydraulic Modeling Results 

Existing Distribution System Under Average Day Demand Conditions 

Existing Distribution System Under Peak Hourly Demand Conditions 

System w/ Recommended Improvements, Average Day Demand 

System w/ Recommended Improvements, Peak Hourly Demand 

System Low Pressure Areas During Peak Hour Demand 

September, 2017 
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Table K-1 
Gibson Water, Inc. 

Hydraulic Modeling - Junction Node Results Table 

Existing Distribution System Under Average Day Demand Conditions 

Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-2 450 0.0 636.00 80.5 
J-3 450 0.0 649.88 86.5 
J-4 450 0.0 649.88 86.5 
J-5 455 0.0 649.88 84.3 
J-6 450 1.6 649.88 86.5 
J-7 496 0.0 650.05 66.7 
J-8 496 3.1 650.03 66.6 
J-9 448 0.0 649.96 87.4 
J-10 457 5.4 649.92 83.5 
J-11 480 8.6 649.37 73.3 
J-12 453 17.8 649.88 85.2 
J-13 460 2.3 649.86 82.1 
J-14 455 0.0 649.81 84.3 
J-15 433 0.0 649.78 93.8 
J-16 433 0.8 649.90 93.8 
J-17 420 1.6 650.59 99.8 
J-18 480 64.5 654.39 75.4 
J-19 459 3.1 655.60 85.1 
J-20 470 3.9 656.79 80.8 
J-21 465 0.0 658.26 83.6 
J-22 454 0.0 658.73 88.6 
J-23 463 19.5 658.72 84.7 
J-24 460 0.0 658.81 86.0 
J-25 460 0.0 658.81 86.0 
J-26 510 0.0 659.97 64.9 
J-27 492 0.0 659.13 72.3 
J-28 487 0.0 659.21 74.5 
J-29 450 0.0 659.31 90.6 
J-30 484 0.0 659.37 75.9 
J-31 485 195.5 659.38 75.4 

----

J-32 477 0.8 659.46 78.9 
·- --

J-33 477 570.0 659.43 78.9 
--

J-34 483 0.0 659.72 76.5 
-

J-35 485 11.5 660.00 75.7 
J-36 485 0.0 659.10 75.3 
J-37 464 0.0 658.32 84.1 
J-38 471 0.0 657.79 80.8 
J-39 471 0.0 657.67 80.8 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-40 440 0.0 657.14 93.9 
J-41 452 0.0 656.70 88.6 
J-42 430 0.0 656.59 98.0 
J-43 442 0.0 655.62 92.4 
J-44 420 0.0 654.85 101.6 

J-45 432 4.7 654.42 96.2 
J-46 410 0.0 654.16 105.6 
J-47 471 0.8 653.71 79.1 
J-48 430 0.0 653.46 96.7 
J-49 417 0.0 653.18 102.2 
J-50 441 0.0 652.91 91.7 
J-51 460 0.0 652.38 83.2 
J-52 433 0.8 651.89 94.7 
J-53 446 0.0 651.55 88.9 
J-54 490 0.0 651.24 69.8 
J-55 480 0.0 650.92 74.0 
J-56 445 6.2 650.53 88.9 
J-57 495 2.3 650.28 67.2 
J-58 500 2.3 650.27 65.0 
J-59 501 4.8 650.11 64.5 
J-60 462 8.3 649.88 81.3 
J-61 428 0.8 650.06 96.1 
J-62 430 1.6 649.98 95.2 
J-63 420 3.9 650.54 99.7 
J-64 460 3.9 652.57 83.3 
J-65 440 0.8 653.37 92.3 
J-66 417 0.0 653.06 102.1 
J-67 430 0.0 652.91 96.4 
J-68 428 0.0 652.91 97.3 
J-69 435 0.8 652.87 94.3 
J-70 460 1.6 652.64 83.3 
J-71 441 3.9 652.77 91.6 
J-72 460 0.0 652.33 83.2 
J-73 460 0.8 652.24 83.2 
J-74 433 1.6 652.05 94.8 

·-

J-75 460 77.1 646.15 80.5 
J-76 460 0.0 646.03 80.5 

- -~ 

J-77 460 11.5 645.96 80.5 
J-78 458 0.0 646.03 81.4 

--

J-79 470 0.0 645.87 76.1 
J-80 470 0.0 645.87 76.1 
J-81 488 9.3 645.78 68.3 

---

J-82 490 3.9 645.78 67.4 
-~ 

J-83 493 11.5 645.56 66.0 
--



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-84 493 8.2 645.56 66.0 

J-85 510 4.7 645.38 58.6 

J-86 472 11.3 645.25 75.0 

J-87 500 4.7 644.88 62.7 

J-88 478 11.7 650.12 74.5 

J-89 475 0.0 650.12 75.8 

J-90 478 0.0 650.36 74.6 

J-91 480 0.0 650.83 73.9 

J-92 490 3.9 651.05 69.7 

J-93 446 5.7 651.55 88.9 

J-94 446 0.8 651.54 88.9 

J-95 430 3.9 640.26 91.0 

J-96 434 1.6 637.41 88.0 

J-97 455 7.0 637.00 78.7 

J-98 446 7.8 636.34 82.3 

J-99 470 0.8 635.41 71.6 

J-100 447 3.1 634.59 81.2 

J-101 450 1.6 634.49 79.8 

J-102 450 0.0 634.59 79.9 

J-103 438 3.1 643.06 88.7 

J-104 510 0.0 635.21 54.2 

J-105 510 0.8 635.20 54.2 

J-106 515 6.2 634.87 51.9 

J-107 450 0.0 634.76 79.9 

J-108 465 2.3 634.71 73.4 

J-109 444 0.8 634.68 82.5 

J-110 500 3.1 634.58 58.2 

J-111 470 0.0 630.73 69.5 

J-112 503 10.9 627.97 54.1 

J-113 548 2.3 627.93 34.6 

J-114 432 0.8 627.83 84.7 

J-115 438 0.8 627.83 82.1 

J-116 424 4.9 626.36 87.6 

J-117 407 3.1 626.22 94.8 

J-118 425 0.8 626.21 87.1 
-

J-119 450 4.8 620.95 74.0 

J-120 430 5.4 620.52 82.4 

J-121 520 7.8 618.91 42.8 

J-122 490 14.0 614.05 53.7 

J-123 490 0.0 613.67 53.5 

J-124 501 86.3 608.83 46.7 

J-125 470 7.0 608.24 59.8 
- ·--·-

J-126 460 0.8 607.89 64.0 

J-127 514 0.8 605.02 39.4 
-·-



Node No. 

J-128 

J-129 

Elevation 
(Ft.) 

470 

498 

J-130 I --- -~~~~ --------i-----
J--1_3-l_ -.-__ ] -

Demand 
(gpm) 

0.8 

8.1 

3.9 

Hydraulic Grade 
(ft.) 

603.49 

594.68 

Pressure 
(psi) 

57.8 

41.8 
31.3 

1.6 594.44 -- 32.2 
-----+----

J-132 493 6.2 594.49 43.9 

J-133 480 4.7 594.26 49.4 

J-134 490 8.0 611.95 52.8 
J-135 512 3.1 611.66 43.1 

J-136 488 1.6 611.63 53.5 

J-137 467 3.9 611.37 62.5 

J-138 490 16.3 612.37 52.9 

J-139 520 0.0 611.72 39.7 

J-140 488 27.6 610.86 53.2 

J-141 476 7.0 610.84 58.3 
J-142 493 0.0 610.61 50.9 

J-143 478 2.3 610.39 57.3 

J-144 442 9.3 609.81 72.6 
J-145 430 40.8 654.80 97.3 
J-146 440 4.7 652.49 91.9 

J-147 420 0.0 654.72 101.6 

J-148 434 0.0 653.94 95.2 

J-149 438 4.7 653.84 93.4 
J-150 438 2.3 654.66 93.7 

J-151 410 3.1 652.74 105.0 

J-152 429 3.1 651.21 96.1 

J-153 442 0.0 655.59 92.4 

J-154 437 3.9 655.59 94.6 
J-155 420 0.0 655.49 101.9 

J-156 446 5.4 655.88 90.8 

J-157 430 0.0 656.39 97.9 

J-158 452 0.0 656.52 88.5 

J-159 453 10.1 656.41 88.0 
J-160 410 6.2 651.22 104.4 

J-161 430 1.6 651.21 95.7 

J-162 453 2.3 655.51 87.6 

J-163 460 2.3 655.43 84.6 

J-164 440 3.1 656.79 93.8 

J-165 471 7.0 657.50 80.7 

J-166 474 2.3 656.95 79.2 
!----------+------~--~--------+----------+------------< 

J-167 470 1.6 657.78 81.2 

J-168 464 1.6 658.16 84.0 

J-169 485 0.8 658.65 75.1 

J-170 485 0.0 659.10 75.3 
l---------+---------+---------+------------+-------

J-171 485 1.6 659.04 75.3 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-172 483 0.0 659.72 76.5 

J-173 468 0.0 659.72 82.9 

J-174 460 0.0 659.72 86.4 

J-175 470 0.0 658.28 81.5 

J-176 470 6.6 658.28 81.5 

J-177 445 2.3 656.79 91.6 

J-178 440 0.8 651.18 91.4 

J-179 439 0.8 650.92 91.7 

J-180 446 2.3 650.79 88.6 

J-181 500 1.6 650.79 65.2 

J-182 425 0.8 650.78 97.7 

J-183 458 0.0 650.92 83.5 

J-184 430 1.6 650.93 95.6 

J-185 440 0.8 651.04 91.3 

J-186 446 2.3 651.17 88.8 

J-187 435 1.6 651.14 93.5 

J-188 420 3.1 652.00 100.4 

J-189 438 4.7 655.12 93.9 

J-190 445 11.7 659.34 92.7 

J-191 463 0.0 659.34 84.9 

J-192 462 7.8 659.29 85.4 

J-193 455 10.1 657.17 87.5 

J-194 458 0.0 655.39 85.4 

J-195 428 0.8 655.10 98.3 

J-196 420 0.0 655.10 101.7 

J-197 446 3.9 655.10 90.5 

J-198 484 3.9 655.33 74.1 

J-199 445 3.1 656.05 91.3 

J-200 468 3.1 659.26 82.8 

J-201 469 0.8 659.24 82.3 

J-202 469 0.8 659.24 82.3 

J-203 465 5.4 657.99 83.5 

J-204 453 6.2 657.45 88.5 

J-205 440 0.0 656.80 93.8 

J-206 520 3.1 659.24 60.2 

J-207 520 0.0 658.54 59.9 

J-208 520 0.8 658.53 59.9 

J-209 520 0.8 657.83 59.6 

J-210 460 0.8 656.98 85.2 
--

J-211 475 2.3 656.79 78.7 
---

J-212 478 3.1 656.76 77.3 

J-213 474 1.6 656.78 79.1 

J-214 471 0.0 657.76 80.8 
- - --

J-215 472 0.8 657.75 80.4 
. --· 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-216 480 1.6 657.57 76.8 
J-217 460 0.0 659.25 86.2 
J-218 474 1.6 659.25 80.2 
J-219 480 0.8 659.19 77.5 
J-220 530 7.0 658.99 55.8 
J-221 537 5.4 658.86 52.7 
J-222 525 0.8 658.86 57.9 
J-223 578 4.7 658.72 34.9 
J-224 540 0.0 658.72 51.4 
J-225 470 5.4 659.30 81.9 
J-226 528 0.8 659.32 56.8 

J-227 530 0.0 659.07 55.8 
J-228 560 0.0 659.06 42.9 
J-229 532 0.8 659.05 55.0 
J-230 575 1.6 659.05 36.4 
J-231 474 3.1 655.82 78.7 
J-232 475 0.0 655.78 78.2 
J-233 470 4.1 655.74 80.4 
J-234 468 0.0 655.78 81.2 
J-235 455 0.0 655.68 86.8 
J-236 480 3.1 655.55 76.0 
J-237 450 0.8 655.66 89.0 
J-238 480 2.3 655.63 76.0 
J-239 500 2.3 655.53 67.3 
J-240 520 0.8 655.52 58.6 
J-241 480 0.0 655.52 75.9 
J-242 461 0.8 655.97 84.4 
J-243 461 0.0 655.97 84.4 
J-244 535 3.1 659.37 53.8 
J-245 540 7.0 659.21 51.6 
J-246 510 6.2 659.43 64.7 
J-247 490 0.0 659.51 73.3 
J-248 570 3.9 659.59 38.8 
J-249 490 4.7 659.34 73.3 
J-250 470 4.7 659.20 81.9 

--

J-251 470 7.8 659.18 81.8 
J-252 535 7.8 658.81 53.6 
J-253 580 5.4 658.26 33.9 
J-254 481 7.8 656.19 75.8 
J-255 455 3.9 655.25 86.6 
J-256 472 3.1 654.41 78.9 
J-257 450 4.7 653.63 88.1 

~-

J-258 430 0.8 653.61 96.7 
J-259 435 0.8 653.61 94.6 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-260 433 0.0 6S3.61 9S.4 

J-261 430 2.3 6S3.27 96.6 

J-262 soo S.4 6S2.68 66.1 

J-263 494 0.0 6S2.49 68.6 

J-264 4S4 0.8 6S2.48 8S.9 

J-26S S20 3.1 6S2.00 S7.1 

J-266 430 1.6 6S1.98 96.0 

J-267 sso S.4 6S3.03 44.6 

J-268 SlO 10.1 6S2.36 61.6 

J-269 449 7.8 6S2.16 87.9 

J-270 430 6.2 6S2.13 96.1 

J-271 S11 3.9 6S2.12 61.1 

J-272 466 6.2 6S2.17 80.5 

J-273 S20 7.8 6S2.1S S7.2 

J-274 S64 1.6 6S2.11 38.1 

J-27S 440 0.8 6S2.11 91.8 

J-276 4S3 0.0 6S2.11 86.1 

J-277 S20 7.0 6S0.93 S6.6 

J-278 420 4.7 648.67 98.9 

J-279 S20 3.1 648.39 ss.s 
J-280 sos 1.6 648.39 62.0 

J-281 423 2.3 648.39 97.S 

J-282 460 1.6 648.3S 81.S 

J-283 410 3.9 648.S6 103.2 

J-284 S4S 3.1 649.40 4S.2 

J-28S 410 2.3 6S1.72 104.6 

J-286 soo S.7 6S1.84 6S.7 

J-287 420 0.8 6S1.69 100.2 

J-288 462 0.0 6S1.92 82.2 

J-289 480 1.6 6S1.98 74.4 

J-290 47S 0.8 6S2.11 76.6 

J-291 44S 0.8 6S2.24 89.7 

J-292 430 0.8 6S1.93 96.0 

J-293 492 0.0 6S9.21 72.3 

J-294 492 0.0 6S9.21 72.3 

J-29S 491 3.9 6S8.2S 72.4 

J-296 489 0.0 6S8.2S 73.2 

J-297 492 0.0 6S8.22 71.9 

J-298 490 3.9 6S6.81 72.2 
--

J-299 463 9.3 6S6.23 83.6 
--

J-300 461 3.1 6S6.01 84.4 

J-301 4SO 4.7 6S4.44 88.S 

J-302 470 0.8 6S4.22 79.7 

J-303 468 0.8 6S4.21 80.6 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-304 472 0.0 654.22 78.8 

J-305 475 0.8 654.21 77.5 
J-306 487 1.6 654.21 72.3 

J-307 440 3.9 651.27 91.4 

J-308 437 3.1 651.05 92.6 

J-309 430 0.8 651.05 95.6 

J-310 420 0.0 650.97 99.9 

J-311 455 2.3 650.90 84.8 

J-312 435 0.8 651.00 93.5 
J-313 430 2.3 650.96 95.6 

J-314 450 0.8 650.95 86.9 

J-315 450 0.8 650.95 86.9 

J-316 439 1.6 650.95 91.7 

J-317 441 1.6 650.94 90.8 

J-318 436 0.0 647.50 91.5 

J-319 443 0.8 647.44 88.5 
J-320 436 3.9 647.28 91.4 

J-321 420 0.8 647.27 98.3 

J-322 420 0.8 645.42 97.5 

J-323 462 0.8 642.64 78.2 

J-324 508 0.0 639.09 56.7 
J-325 530 2.3 636.49 46.1 

J-326 500 3.9 636.31 59.0 

J-327 515 1.6 638.88 53.6 

J-328 510 2.3 636.57 54.8 

J-329 450 0.0 635.64 80.3 
J-330 448 3.1 635.12 81.0 

J-331 445 3.1 635.57 82.4 

J-332 530 0.0 638.51 46.9 

J-333 435 0.8 636.01 87.0 

J-334 410 4.7 635.90 97.7 

J-335 518 8.6 635.33 50.8 

J-336 511 1.6 633.88 53.2 

J-337 517 4.7 633.23 50.3 

J-338 543 4.7 630.08 37.7 

J-339 536 5.4 629.24 40.3 
-~ ~-

J-340 440 3.1 626.79 80.8 
-~ 

J-341 465 0.8 624.71 69.l 

J-342 457 2.3 622.44 71.6 

J-343 430 0.0 621.25 82.7 

J-344 460 0.8 620.27 69.3 
---

J-345 490 3.9 620.20 56.3 

J-346 449 7.0 617.71 73.0 
··-- ---

J-347 444 0.8 617.69 75.1 
--~-



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-348 500 3.1 610.76 47.9 
J-349 470 0.0 609.76 60.5 
J-350 470 3.1 609.71 60.4 
J-351 466 10.4 610.59 62.6 
J-352 437 3.1 608.41 74.2 
J-353 437 3.1 608.33 74.1 
J-354 420 3.1 608.11 81.4 
J-355 470 3.9 608.03 59.7 
J-356 435 3.1 608.23 74.9 
J-357 435 0.8 608.22 74.9 
J-358 435 3.1 608.12 74.9 
J-359 435 2.3 608.06 74.9 
J-360 430 6.2 607.97 77.0 
J-361 430 3.9 607.79 76.9 
J-362 410 0.0 607.93 85.6 
J-363 425 0.0 607.91 79.1 
J-364 412 0.8 607.90 84.8 
J-365 460 3.9 607.89 64.0 
J-366 478 2.3 634.73 67.8 
J-367 457 0.0 634.73 76.9 
J-368 450 3.1 634.16 79.7 
J-369 446 0.0 631.02 80.0 
J-370 425 2.3 626.99 87.4 
J-371 410 3.1 622.51 91.9 
J-372 480 0.0 619.05 60.2 
J-373 412 33.9 610.91 86.1 
J-374 417 3.1 608.51 82.9 
J-375 417 3.1 607.62 82.5 
J-376 465 6.2 581.51 50.4 
J-377 420 2.3 573.36 66.4 
J-378 435 2.3 570.35 58.6 
J-379 435 1.6 570.32 58.5 
J-380 440 0.0 569.86 56.2 
J-381 452 7.8 569.76 50.9 

--..,----···--···-············-··----····- --- ---······· --·····- ·-- ···········------....... --

! 

·····--······--·-·--··-···· ----- ---·- ·····i 

J-382 475 7.0 548.56 31.8 

I ···-··-····:~~~3~-~·--:~:~-=-1-----~-~ 
·····--·-··----··· .. ·········-----·-·· ! -------·-···· ····-----·- -- ..... ···-····----····· 

445 1.6 545.35 43.4 
············--- ········-----············ -- ---- -····· ·-·············· ~ -- ·········-·---····-·······--·····--

·-J-384 ' 490 12.9 545.30 23.9 i 
.•.. _. ..• ••••••••••••••••••••··--·--····•···•••••••••••••••c ••• ·············-- .......................... ··············-··········-··-····· ········-·-··· . ...... ················· - -·-········ 

J-385 447 0.0 545.35 42.6 
···········-·-··------······· 

J-386 469 0.0 54535 33.0 
····················-··-···""'""""""""""" 

J-387 406 0.8 603.59 85.5 
J-388 450 0.0 595.80 63.1 
J-389 410 2.3 593.84 79.5 
J-390 398 8.6 592.67 84.2 
J-391 399 11.1 593.15 84.0 

-



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-392 393 0.0 593.15 86.6 
J-393 397 0.0 593.15 84.9 
J-394 397 0.0 593.15 84.9 
J-395 400 0.0 634.15 101.3 
J-396 405 1.6 634.15 99.1 
J-397 390 0.8 634.14 105.6 
J-398 393 1.6 634.13 104.3 
J-399 390 0.0 634.13 105.6 
J-400 395 0.0 634.12 103.5 
J-401 395 2.3 634.11 103.5 
J-402 395 1.6 634.11 103.5 
J-403 470 0.8 655.48 80.2 
J-404 450 0.0 636.00 80.5 
J-405 450 0.0 649.88 86.5 
J-406 488 1.6 610.08 52.8 
J-407 517 9.3 609.98 40.2 
J-408 515 0.0 609.82 41.0 
J-409 522 3.1 609.98 38.1 
J-410 509 1.6 609.97 43.7 
J-411 516 3.9 609.97 40.7 
J-412 503 3.1 609.97 46.3 
J-413 505 3.9 609.96 45.4 
J-414 0 0.0 634.13 104.3 
J-415 494 0.0 658.84 71.3 
J-418 478 2.3 610.15 57.2 
J-419 486 0.0 630.73 62.6 
J-420 485 0.0 630.73 63.1 
J-421 471 0.0 630.73 69.1 
J-422 457 0.0 630.73 75.2 
J-425 515 2.3 609.82 41.0 
J-426 514 6.2 609.83 41.5 
J-427 499 3.1 609.78 47.9 
J-428 508 3.9 609.77 44.0 
J-429 440 2.3 649.75 90.7 
J-430 440 419.8 649.73 90.7 
J-431 508 14.3 611.51 44.8 
J-432 486 7.8 627.95 61.4 
J-433 481 9.3 646.14 71.5 
J-434 481 5.4 645.46 71.2 
J-435 463 10.1 645.30 78.9 
J-436 495 2.3 627.87 57.5 
J-437 505 3.1 619.75 49.6 
J-438 445 2.3 651.24 89.2 

--
J-439 436.93 0.0 653.97 93.9 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-440 429 9.5 652.73 96.8 
J-441 460 7.0 654.81 84.3 
J-442 435 10.1 652.12 93.9 
J-443 524 1.6 638.20 49.4 
J-444 465 10.1 635.62 73.8 
J-445 539 7.8 631.53 40.0 
J-446 472 25.7 616.00 62.3 

J-447 392.08 0.0 634.13 104.7 
J-448 419 11.7 604.97 80.5 
J-449 444 5.4 592.21 64.1 
J-450 474 158.1 645.79 74.3 
J-451 472 20.5 652.42 78.1 
J-452 466 0.8 655.67 82.1 
J-453 483 2.3 657.09 75.3 
J-454 430 0.8 650.69 95.5 

Master Meter 458 0.0 636.00 77.0 



Table K-2 
Gibson Water, Inc. 

Hydraulic Modeling - Junction Node Results Table 

Existing Distribution System Under Peak Hourly Demand Conditions 

Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-2 450 0.0 635.96 80.5 

J-3 450 0.0 639.88 82.2 
J-4 450 0.0 639.88 82.2 

J-5 455 0.0 639.88 80.0 

J-6 450 2.3 639.88 82.2 

J-7 496 0.0 640.24 62.4 
J-8 496 4.5 640.20 62.4 

J-9 448 0.0 640.04 83.1 

J-10 457 7.9 639.96 79.2 
J-11 480 12.4 638.89 68.8 

J-12 453 25.8 639.89 80.9 

J-13 460 3.4 639.85 77.9 
J-14 455 0.0 639.75 80.0 
J-15 433 0.0 639.66 89.5 
J-16 433 1.1 639.91 89.6 
J-17 420 2.3 641.26 95.8 
J-18 480 93.2 648.80 73.1 

J-19 459 4.5 651.19 83.2 
J-20 470 5.6 653.55 79.5 

J-21 465 0.0 656.45 82.9 
J-22 454 0.0 657.36 88.0 

J-23 463 28.2 657.35 84.1 
J-24 460 0.0 657.53 85.5 
J-25 460 0.0 657.53 85.S 
J-26 510 0.0 659.86 64.9 
J-27 492 0.0 658.18 71.9 
J-28 487 0.0 658.33 74.2 
J-29 450 0.0 658.52 90.3 
J-30 484 0.0 658.65 75.6 
J-31 485 282.S 658.68 75.2 

J-32 477 1.1 658.83 78.7 
-

J-33 477 823.7 658.76 78.7 
J-34 483 0.0 659.34 76.3 
J-35 485 16.6 659.89 75.7 
J-36 485 0.0 658.11 74.9 

--

J-37 464 0.0 656.56 83.4 
J-38 471 0.0 655.52 79.9 
J-39 471 0.0 655.28 79.8 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-40 440 0.0 654.23 92.7 

J-41 452 0.0 653.36 87.2 

J-42 430 0.0 653.13 96.6 

J-43 442 0.0 651.21 90.6 

J-44 420 0.0 649.69 99.4 

J-45 432 6.7 648.84 93.9 

J-46 410 0.0 648.33 103.2 

J-47 471 1.1 647.47 76.4 

J-48 430 0.0 646.94 93.9 

J-49 417 0.0 646.39 99.3 

J-50 441 0.0 645.86 88.7 

J-51 460 0.0 644.82 80.0 

J-52 433 1.1 643.85 91.3 

J-53 446 0.0 643.18 85.4 

J-54 490 0.0 642.60 66.1 

J-55 480 0.0 641.96 70.1 

J-56 445 9.0 641.17 84.9 

J-57 495 3.4 640.69 63.1 

J-58 500 3.4 640.69 60.9 

J-59 501 7.0 640.37 60.3 

J-60 462 12.0 639.88 77.0 

J-61 428 1.1 640.22 91.9 

J-62 430 2.3 640.06 90.9 

J-63 420 5.6 641.17 95.7 

J-64 460 5.6 645.20 80.2 

J-65 440 1.1 646.76 89.5 

J-66 417 0.0 646.15 99.2 

J-67 430 0.0 645.85 93.4 

J-68 428 0.0 645.85 94.3 

J-69 435 1.1 645.77 91.2 
J-70 460 2.3 645.35 80.2 

J-71 441 5.6 645.58 88.6 

J-72 460 0.0 644.73 80.0 

J-73 460 1.1 644.56 79.9 

J-74 433 2.3 644.16 91.4 

J-75 460 111.3 632.51 74.7 
f----

J-76 460 0.0 632.27 74.6 

J-77 460 16.6 632.15 74.5 

J-78 458 0.0 632.27 75.4 

J-79 470 0.0 631.96 70.1 
--

J-80 470 0.0 631.96 70.1 
--

J-81 488 13.5 631.80 62.3 
---· 

J-82 490 5.6 631.80 61.4 
---~ --

J-83 493 16.6 631.37 59.9 
~ 

-~L_.__.... __ 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-84 493 11.8 631.37 59.9 

J-85 510 6.7 631.03 52.4 

J-86 472 16.3 630.74 68.7 

J-87 500 6.7 630.02 56.3 

J-88 478 16.9 640.37 70.3 

J-89 475 0.0 640.37 71.6 

J-90 478 0.0 640.85 70.5 

J-91 480 0.0 641.78 70.0 

J-92 490 5.6 642.21 65.9 

J-93 446 8.3 643.17 85.4 

J-94 446 1.1 643.17 85.4 

J-95 430 5.6 620.85 82.6 

J-96 434 2.3 615.23 78.5 

J-97 455 10.1 614.44 69.0 

J-98 446 11.2 613.11 72.3 

J-99 470 1.1 611.30 61.2 

J-100 447 4.5 609.66 70.4 

J-101 450 2.3 609.48 69.0 

J-102 450 0.0 609.66 69.1 
-

J-103 438 4.5 626.39 81.6 

J-104 510 0.0 610.93 43.7 

J-105 510 1.1 610.91 43.7 

J-106 515 9.0 610.26 41.2 

J-107 450 0.0 610.00 69.3 

J-108 465 3.4 609.91 62.7 

J-109 444 1.1 609.84 71.8 

J-110 500 4.5 609.67 47.5 

J-111 470 0.0 602.04 57.2 

J-112 503 15.8 596.61 40.S 
---·- . ···-··---··-······ "-----······ --- ··-··---- -··-·-·--······ ···--······-

J-113 
' 

548 __ L_ ____ 3.4 596.56 21.0 
··········---- .... ····--·-···-·----··········-···-········ ·····-···-- -·-·······-L-.•..... ············--·---

J-114 432 1.1 596.29 71.1 

J-115 438 1.1 596.29 68.5 

J-116 424 7.1 593.38 73.3 
--

J-117 407 4.5 593.10 80.6 

J-118 425 1.1 593.09 72.8 

J-119 450 7.0 582.71 57.4 

J-120 430 7.9 581.85 65.7 

J-121 520 11.2 578.72 25.4 

J-122 490 20.3 569.10 34.2 
r-· 

J-123 490 0.0 568.35 33.9 

J-124 501 124.6 558.79 25.0 

J-125 470 10.1 557.61 37.9 
-

J-126 460 1.1 556.91 42.0 
~ ······ 

J-127 514 1.1 551.26 16.1 
~ -·-···. 



Node No. 
Elevation 

(Ft.) 
Demand 

(gpm) 
Hydraulic Grade 

(ft.) 

J-128 470 1.1 548.23 
f---- ····---····- ···-········------ ----- ··--·--··-------+----

Pressure 
(psi) 

33.9 

' _ J-129 _ i 498 I 11.6 540.83 14.2 
1--------·-··.----7------···--·-·----- ------·----·--- --------··-r--·-·······-·-------- ·············----------· ···············--------- - _.....:__---·--·--------····-

; J~BO 517 l 5.6 _ ---'~4~~~~--- i ---------------~O·~------

~ ::i:lli=T-~ · -_ ,-=-- :::~1=~-+ ~~--i--:_--~~:L-__ ~-~ f- _}~13~ __ 

1

: __ 48~-- -~I__ _6.? ___ i 529.97 j -----~~~--

------ :~~i~:;: ~--__1 ~i~------+- 1~:: ____ I ~:;:;;. _ , ~-=-- --i~~*--
J-136 488 2.3 564.31 33.0 
J-137 467 5.6 563.79 41.9 

J-138 490 23.6 565.77 32.8 
J-139 

'-----.,.--·----·····-----· -~:-....... 

520 
-- ·-------·······--···------ ····--·--------· ···········---·----- -----·-·--·-···--- ------

0.0 564.52 
--------------- - ---

-- 19.3 - ------------------------ ···················-·-----·----···· .. 

J-140 488 39.9 562.80 32.4 
J-141 476 10.1 562.75 37.6 
J-142 493 0.0 562.31 30.0 
J-143 478 3.4 561.85 36.3 
J-144 442 13.5 560.69 51.4 
J-145 430 59.0 649.60 95.1 
J-146 440 6.7 645.04 88.8 
J-147 420 0.0 649.42 99.3 
J-148 434 0.0 647.90 92.6 
J-149 438 6.7 647.69 90.8 
J-150 438 3.4 649.32 91.5 
J-151 410 4.5 645.51 102.0 
J-152 429 4.5 642.51 92.4 
J-153 442 0.0 651.15 90.5 
J-154 437 5.6 651.15 92.7 
J-155 420 0.0 650.95 100.0 
J-156 446 7.9 651.74 89.1 
J-157 430 0.0 652.73 96.4 
J-158 452 0.0 653.01 87.0 
J-159 453 14.6 652.79 86.5 
J-160 410 9.0 642.51 100.7 
J-161 430 2.3 642.49 92.0 
J-162 453 3.4 651.01 85.7 
J-163 460 3.4 650.85 82.6 
J-164 440 4.5 653.54 92.4 
J-165 471 10.1 654.95 79.6 
J-166 474 3.4 653.87 77.9 
J-167 470 2.3 655.50 80.3 
J-168 464 2.3 656.25 83.2 ----
J-169 485 1.1 657.23 74.6 
J-170 485 0.0 658.11 74.9 
J-171 485 2.3 658.01 74.9 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-172 483 0.0 659.34 76.3 
J-173 468 0.0 659.33 82.8 
J-174 460 0.0 659.33 86.3 
J-175 470 0.0 656.49 80.7 
J-176 470 9.5 656.49 80.7 
J-177 445 3.4 653.54 90.3 
J-178 440 1.1 642.44 87.6 
J-179 439 1.1 641.93 87.8 
J-180 446 3.4 641.68 84.7 
J-181 500 2.3 641.71 61.3 
J-182 425 1.1 641.65 93.8 
J-183 458 0.0 641.95 79.6 
J-184 430 2.3 641.95 91.8 
J-185 440 1.1 642.17 87.5 
J-186 446 3.4 642.42 85.0 
J-187 435 2.3 642.35 89.8 
J-188 420 4.5 644.06 97.0 
J-189 438 6.7 650.23 91.9 
J-190 445 16.9 658.57 92.5 
J-191 463 0.0 658.58 84.7 
J-192 462 11.2 658.48 85.1 
J-193 455 14.6 654.30 86.3 
J-194 458 0.0 650.77 83.4 
J-195 428 1.1 650.18 96.2 
J-196 420 0.0 650.18 99.6 
J-197 446 5.6 650.19 88.4 
J-198 484 5.6 650.67 72.2 
J-199 445 4.5 652.07 89.6 
J-200 468 4.5 658.44 82.4 
J-201 469 1.1 658.39 82.0 
J-202 469 1.1 658.39 82.0 
J-203 465 7.9 655.91 82.6 
J-204 453 9.0 654.84 87.4 

·--

J-205 440 0.0 653.55 92.4 
J-206 520 4.5 658.41 59.9 
J-207 520 0.0 657.04 59.3 

-- --
J-208 520 1.1 657.02 59.3 

-

J-209 520 1.1 655.64 58.7 
J-210 460 1.1 653.92 83.9 

--

J-211 475 3.4 653.56 77.3 
J-212 478 4.5 653.49 76.0 
J-213 474 2.3 653.53 77.7 

---· 

J-214 471 0.0 655.46 79.9 
J-215 472 1.1 655.44 79.4 

-- --



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-216 480 2.3 655.10 75.8 

J-217 460 0.0 658.40 85.9 

J-218 474 2.3 658.42 79.8 

J-219 480 1.1 658.29 77.2 

J-220 530 10.1 657.93 55.4 

J-221 537 7.9 657.67 52.2 

J-222 525 1.1 657.66 57.4 

J-223 578 6.7 657.42 34.4 

J-224 540 0.0 657.40 50.8 

J-225 470 7.9 658.51 81.6 

J-226 528 1.1 658.58 56.5 

J-227 530 0.0 658.08 55.4 

J-228 560 0.0 658.08 42.5 

J-229 532 1.1 658.06 54.6 

J-230 575 2.3 658.07 36.0 

J-231 474 4.5 651.63 76.9 

J-232 475 0.0 651.56 76.4 

J-233 470 5.9 651.48 78.6 

J-234 468 0.0 651.55 79.5 

J-235 455 0.0 651.35 85.0 

J-236 480 4.5 651.11 74.1 

J-237 450 1.1 651.30 87.1 

J-238 480 3.4 651.25 74.1 

J-239 500 3.4 651.08 65.4 

J-240 520 1.1 651.06 56.7 

J-241 480 0.0 651.04 74.0 

J-242 461 1.1 651.92 82.6 

J-243 461 0.0 651.92 82.6 

J-244 535 4.5 658.68 53.5 

J-245 540 10.1 658.36 51.2 

J-246 510 9.0 658.78 64.4 

J-247 490 0.0 658.93 73.1 

J-248 570 5.6 659.13 38.6 

J-249 490 6.7 658.60 73.0 

J-250 470 6.7 658.31 81.5 

J-251 470 11.2 658.27 81.5 

J-252 535 11.2 657.58 53.1 
---

J-253 580 7.9 656.52 33.1 

J-254 481 11.2 652.37 74.2 

J-255 455 5.6 650.50 84.6 
~-

J-256 472 4.5 648.85 76.6 
-

J-257 450 6.7 647.30 85.4 

J-258 430 1.1 647.25 94.0 
J-259 435 1.1 647.25 91.9 --



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-260 433 0.0 647.25 92.7 

J-261 430 3.4 646.56 93.8 

J-262 500 7.9 645.44 63.0 

J-263 494 0.0 645.07 65.4 
J-264 454 1.1 645.03 82.7 

J-265 520 4.5 644.12 53.7 

J-266 430 2.3 644.02 92.7 

J-267 550 7.9 646.17 41.6 

J-268 510 14.6 644.82 58.4 

J-269 449 11.2 644.39 84.6 

J-270 430 9.0 644.32 92.8 

J-271 511 5.6 644.35 57.7 

J-272 466 9.0 644.41 77.2 

J-273 520 11.2 644.41 53.9 

J-274 564 2.3 644.36 34.8 

J-275 440 1.1 644.29 88.4 

J-276 453 0.0 644.28 82.8 

J-277 520 10.1 642.01 52.8 
J-278 420 6.7 637.47 94.1 

J-279 520 4.5 636.98 50.6 

J-280 505 2.3 636.96 57.1 

J-281 423 3.4 636.93 92.6 

J-282 460 2.3 636.87 76.6 

J-283 410 5.6 637.25 98.4 

J-284 545 4.5 638.99 40.7 

J-285 410 3.4 643.50 101.1 

J-286 500 8.2 643.79 62.2 

J-287 420 1.1 643.45 96.7 
J-288 462 0.0 643.92 78.8 

J-289 480 2.3 644.04 71.0 

J-290 475 1.1 644.31 73.3 

J-291 445 1.1 644.54 86.4 

J-292 430 1.1 643.92 92.6 

J-293 492 0.0 658.34 72.0 

J-294 492 0.0 658.34 72.0 

J-295 491 5.6 656.44 71.6 
J-296 489 0.0 656.44 72.5 

J-297 492 0.0 656.39 71.2 
- -

J-298 490 5.6 653.60 70.8 

J-299 463 13.5 652.43 82.0 

J-300 461 4.5 652.01 82.7 

J-301 450 6.7 648.89 86.1 
---

J-302 470 1.1 648.48 77.3 

J-303 468 1.1 648.44 78.1 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-304 472 0.0 648.47 76.4 
J-305 475 1.1 648.46 75.1 
J-306 487 2.3 648.45 69.9 
J-307 440 5.6 642.61 87.7 
J-308 437 4.5 642.19 88.8 
J-309 430 1.1 642.18 91.9 
J-310 420 0.0 642.02 96.1 
J-311 455 3.4 641.90 80.9 
J-312 435 1.1 642.09 89.7 
J-313 430 3.4 642.00 91.8 
J-314 450 1.1 642.00 83.1 
J-315 450 1.1 642.00 83.1 
J-316 439 2.3 641.99 87.9 
J-317 441 2.3 641.98 87.0 
J-318 436 0.0 635.17 86.2 
J-319 443 1.1 635.05 83.1 
J-320 436 5.6 634.73 86.0 
J-321 420 1.1 634.71 92.9 
J-322 420 1.1 631.04 91.4 
J-323 462 1.1 625.59 70.8 
J-324 508 0.0 618.59 47.9 
J-325 530 3.4 613.46 36.1 
J-326 500 5.6 613.09 49.0 
J-327 515 2.3 618.17 44.7 
J-328 510 3.4 613.62 44.9 
J-329 450 0.0 611.73 70.0 
J-330 448 4.5 610.72 70.4 
J-331 445 4.5 611.59 72.1 
J-332 530 0.0 617.46 37.9 
J-333 435 1.1 612.46 76.8 
J-334 410 6.7 612.24 87.5 
J-335 518 12.4 611.17 40.3 
J-336 511 2.3 608.30 42.1 
J-337 517 6.7 607.02 39.0 
J-338 543 6.7 600.80 25.0 
J-339 536 7.9 599.15 27.3 
J-340 440 4.5 594.24 66.8 

--
J-341 465 1.1 590.15 54.2 
J-342 457 3.4 585.66 55.7 

--

J-343 430 0.0 583.30 66.4 
J-344 460 1.1 581.36 52.5 
J-345 490 5.6 581.26 39.5 

-- --
J-346 449 10.1 576.30 55.1 

--- - ---
J-347 444 1.1 576.27 57.3 



' 

Node No. 
Elevation 

(Ft.) 

J-348 500 

J-349 470 

J-350 470 

J-351 466 
J-352 437 

J-353 437 

J-354 420 

J-355 470 
J-356 435 

J-357 435 

J-358 435 
J-359 435 

J-360 430 
J-361 430 
J-362 410 

J-363 425 

J-364 412 

J-365 460 
J-366 478 
J-367 457 

J-368 450 
J-369 446 
J-370 425 

J-371 410 
J-372 480 

J-373 412 
J-374 417 

J-375 417 

Demand 
(gpm) 

4.5 
0.0 

4.5 

15.0 

4.5 

4.5 

4.5 

5.6 

4.5 

1.1 

4.5 

3.4 

9.0 

5.6 

0.0 

0.0 

1.1 
5.6 

3.4 
0.0 

4.5 

0.0 
3.4 

4.5 

0.0 
49.0 

4.5 

4.5 

Hydraulic Grade Pressure 
(ft.) (psi) 

562.61 27.1 

560.61 39.2 

560.51 39.2 

562.24 41.7 

557.92 52.3 
557.76 52.3 

557.31 59.4 

557.20 37.7 
557.57 53.1 

557.55 53.1 

557.35 53.0 

557.23 52.9 
557.05 55.0 

556.70 54.8 

556.95 63.6 
556.93 57.1 
556.89 62.7 

556.91 42.0 

609.95 57.1 
609.94 66.2 

608.82 68.8 
602.60 67.8 
594.63 73.4 
585.77 76.1 
578.97 42.8 
562.84 65.3 
558.03 61.1 
556.35 60.3 

----·· ---- ·--.. ··--·----····· -· ·-g:(j-·--1 ....... -------517:75-· -----r···· ····················· -·-22:8 ---·1 
J-376 465 : 

··-····· --- ····-·---· --·-·--·· --····-··· 

J-377 420 3.4 508.03 38.1 

J-378 435 3.4 505.12 30.3 

J-379 435 2.3 505.03 30.3 
J-380 440 0.0 

13.7 
......... ··········--·-···· 

J-387 406 1.1 548.38 61.6 

J-388 450 0.0 533.01 35.9 
---1--------+---------+---~-------+-----------j 

J-389 410 3.4 529.12 51.6 
---+-------+-------

J -390 398 12.4 526.79 55.8 

J-391 399 16.0 527.75 55.7 



Node No. 

J-392 

J-393 

J-394 

J-395 

J-396 

J-397 

J-398 

J-399 

J-400 

J-401 

J-402 

J-403 

J-404 

J-405 

J-406 

Elevation 
(Ft.) 

393 

397 

397 

400 

405 

390 

393 

390 
395 

395 

395 

470 

450 

450 

488 
~ ----···----~- ----- --·--·-------· 

J-407 

: J~409 

l
-~--·-·--···········----·--

J~410 
------------···--- -

J-411 
J-412 
J-413 

------·-·· 
J-414 

J-415 

J-418 
J-419 

J-420 

J-421 
J-422 

J-42S 

i S17 
- --- .. '•······-····-.... -~ ........ 

-1=-
L._ 

-1~-·· 

SlS 

503 
sos 
393 
494 

478 
486 

485 
471 

457 

Demand Hydraulic Grade 
(gpm) (ft.) 

0.0 527.75 

0.0 527.75 

0.0 527.75 

0.0 608.77 

2.3 608.77 

1.1 608.74 

2.3 608.73 

0.0 608.72 
0.0 608.70 

3.4 608.69 

2.3 608.69 
1.1 650.96 

0.0 635.89 

0.0 639.88 

2.3 561.22 

0.0 

0.0 657.61 

3.4 561.38 
0.0 601.87 

0.0 601.87 
0.0 601.87 

0.0 601.86 
·····-------···---·-··········· 

560.73 

Pressure 
(psi) 

58.3 

56.6 

56.6 

90.4 
88.2 

94.7 

93.4 

94.7 

92.5 

92.5 

92.5 

78.3 

80.5 

82.2 
31.7 

--~--~~'..~'······ 
19.8 

25.1 
--········-··· 

24.3 
93.4 

70.8 

36.1 

50.2 
50.6 

56.7 
62.7 
19.8 

t--- - -····----

J~426 

S15 ·.· I 3.4 
-·--·-,···-·----·--·---,----····--···-r····-··----·-·····-··--··· - --·--- -·- ···-···--'---·----,-·--,·----·-·---·-··-··-- -•. ---··-··-··-----~-·------··· 

·---····1 ···_··-.. ·.··:__··-·_······_-~_9·1··-·· .. :.·_···.·_··_----· ······- .-.. -.. r .. __ -_·_··· --~~~ ..... L. ... ... _____ ?~~Q:?5 .............................. ..... ~~:~ 
~---t~fs-
1· ... . ... j=4·29· 

--r- ................ ___ ?O~ s.G ---·-+=----.- ······-;~~:-~i-··-L ____ - 22.8 ___ _ 
440 3.4 639.62 

I J-430 
I ----- ·····-···· ·····~---······ ............... ·--······· -----····. 

/ J-431 

606.5 639.58 
·---1 

·.·.·· 508 20. 7 564.05 
440 

········--··-··· 

86.4 

86.4 
24.3 

J-432 486 11.2 596.57 47.9 
----+--------+-------~-------

J-433 481 13.5 632.52 65.6 

J-434 481 7.9 631.17 65.0 

J-435 463 14.6 630.83 72.7 
f--------+----------+--------

J-436 495 3.4 596.42 43.9 

J-437 505 4.5 580.33 32.6 
J-438 445 3.4 642.57 85.5 

f---------+----------1-----
J -439 436.93 0.0 647.95 91.4 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-440 429 13.8 645.50 93.7 
J-441 460 10.1 649.63 82.1 
J-442 435 14.6 644.29 90.6 
J-443 524 2.3 616.83 40.2 

J-444 465 14.6 611.72 63.5 
J-445 539 11.2 603.64 28.0 
J-446 472 37.1 572.94 43.7 
J-447 392.08 0.0 608.73 93.8 
J-448 419 16.9 551.12 57.2 
J-449 444 7.9 525.92 35.5 
J-450 474 228.5 631.81 68.3 
J-451 472 29.6 644.92 74.9 
J-452 466 1.1 651.34 80.2 
J-453 483 3.4 654.15 74.1 

J-454 430 1.1 641.48 91.5 
Master Meter 458 0.0 635.90 77.0 



Table K-3 
Gibson Water, Inc. 

Hydraulic Modeling - Junction Node Results Table 

System with Recommended Improvements - Average Day Demand 

Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-2 450 0.0 636.00 80.5 
J-3 450 0.0 650.91 86.9 
J-4 450 0.0 650.91 86.9 
J-5 455 0.0 650.91 84.8 
J-6 450 1.6 650.91 86.9 
J-7 496 0.0 651.09 67.1 
J-8 496 3.1 651.07 67.1 
J-9 448 0.0 650.98 87.8 
J-10 457 5.4 650.92 83.9 
J-11 480 8.6 650.37 73.7 
J-12 453 17.8 650.86 85.6 
J-13 460 2.3 650.82 82.6 
J-14 455 0.0 650.74 84.7 
J-15 433 0.0 650.67 94.2 
J-16 433 0.8 650.76 94.2 
J-17 420 1.6 651.39 100.1 
J-18 480 64.4 654.84 75.6 
J-19 459 3.1 655.96 85.2 
J-20 470 3.9 657.06 80.9 
J-21 465 0.0 658.41 83.7 
J-22 454 0.0 658.83 88.6 
J-23 463 19.5 658.83 84.7 
J-24 460 0.0 658.91 86.1 
J-25 460 0.0 658.91 86.1 
J-26 510 0.0 659.97 64.9 
J-27 492 0.0 658.91 72.2 
J-28 487 0.0 659.04 74.4 
J-29 450 0.0 659.21 90.5 
J-30 484 0.0 659.30 75.8 

-

J-31 485 195.2 659.33 75.4 
J-32 477 0.8 659.42 78.9 
J-33 477 569.3 659.39 78.9 
J-34 483 0.0 659.70 76.4 
J-35 485 11.5 660.00 75.7 
J-36 485 0.0 659.18 75.4 

-

J-37 464 0.0 658.47 84.1 
~-

J-38 471 0.0 657.99 80.9 
·-· 

J-39 471 0.0 657.88 80.9 
J-40 440 0.0 657.41 94.1 

··-



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-41 452 0.0 657.01 88.7 

J-42 430 0.0 656.91 98.2 

J-43 442 0.0 656.03 92.6 

J-44 420 0.0 655.35 101.8 

J-45 432 4.7 654.97 96.5 

J-46 410 0.0 654.74 105.9 

J-47 471 0.8 654.34 79.3 

J-48 430 0.0 654.12 97.0 

J-49 417 0.0 653.87 102.5 

J-50 441 0.0 653.63 92.0 

J-51 460 0.0 653.16 83.6 

J-52 433 0.8 652.68 95.0 

J-53 446 0.0 652.38 89.3 

J-54 490 0.0 652.12 70.1 

J-55 480 0.0 651.84 74.3 

J-56 445 6.2 651.50 89.3 

J-57 495 2.3 651.28 67.6 

J-58 500 2.3 651.28 65.5 

J-59 501 4.8 651.13 65.0 

J-60 462 8.3 650.86 81.7 

J-61 428 0.8 650.91 96.4 

J-62 430 1.6 650.83 95.5 

J-63 420 3.9 651.36 100.1 

J-64 460 3.9 653.28 83.6 

J-65 440 0.8 654.03 92.6 

J-66 417 0.0 653.77 102.4 

J-67 430 0.0 653.64 96.8 

J-68 428 0.0 653.64 97.6 

J-69 435 0.8 653.60 94.6 

J-70 460 1.6 653.38 83.7 

J-71 441 3.9 653.52 91.9 

J-72 460 0.0 653.17 83.6 

J-73 460 0.8 653.16 83.6 

J-74 433 1.6 652.97 95.2 

J-75 460 76.9 647.19 81.0 

J-76 460 0.0 647.07 80.9 

J-77 460 11.5 647.00 80.9 

J-78 458 0.0 647.07 81.8 

J-79 470 0.0 646.91 76.5 

J-80 470 0.0 646.91 76.5 

J-81 488 9.3 646.82 68.7 

J-82 490 3.9 646.82 67.8 

J-83 493 11.5 646.60 66.5 

J-84 493 8.2 646.60 66.5 
~. 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-85 510 4.7 646.42 59.0 

J-86 472 11.3 646.29 75.4 

J-87 500 4.7 645.92 63.1 

J-88 478 11.7 651.04 74.9 

J-89 475 0.0 651.04 76.2 

J-90 478 0.0 651.28 75.0 

J-91 480 0.0 651.75 74.3 

J-92 490 3.9 651.90 70.0 

J-93 446 5.7 652.38 89.3 

J-94 446 0.8 652.38 89.3 

J-95 430 3.9 641.20 91.4 

J-96 434 1.6 638.36 88.4 

J-97 455 7.0 637.95 79.2 

J-98 446 7.8 637.28 82.8 

J-99 470 0.8 636.36 72.0 

J-100 447 3.1 635.54 81.6 

J-101 450 1.6 635.45 80.2 

J-102 450 0.0 635.54 80.3 
J-103 438 3.1 652.66 92.9 
J-104 510 0.0 652.37 61.6 

J-105 510 0.8 652.36 61.6 

J-106 515 6.2 652.36 59.4 

J-107 450 0.0 652.25 87.5 

J-108 465 2.3 652.19 81.0 

J-109 444 0.8 652.17 90.1 

J-110 500 3.1 652.06 65.8 

J-111 470 0.0 652.38 78.9 

J-112 503 10.9 652.40 64.6 

J-113 548 2.3 652.36 45.2 

J-114 432 0.8 652.26 95.3 

J-115 438 0.8 652.26 92.7 

J-116 424 4.9 650.79 98.1 

J-117 407 3.1 650.66 105.4 

J-118 425 0.8 650.65 97.6 

J-119 450 4.8 645.40 84.5 
---

J-120 430 5.4 644.97 93.0 
J-121 520 7.8 643.36 53.4 
J-122 490 14.0 630.54 60.8 

-----t------

J-123 490 0.0 630.16 60.6 
J-124 501 86.1 625.34 53.8 
J-125 470 7.0 624.75 67.0 

-··· -··---

J-126 460 0.8 624.40 71.1 
---· 

J-127 514 0.8 621.53 46.5 
- -

J-128 470 0.8 620.01 64.9 
-· --



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-129 498 8.0 611.22 49.0 

J-130 522 3.9 610.98 38.5 

J-131 520 1.6 610.98 39.4 

J-132 493 6.2 611.03 51.1 

J-133 480 4.7 610.80 56.6 

J-134 490 8.0 628.45 59.9 

J-135 512 3.1 628.16 50.3 

J-136 488 1.6 628.13 60.6 

J-137 467 3.9 627.87 69.6 
J-138 490 16.3 630.33 60.7 

J-139 520 0.0 630.30 47.7 

J-140 488 27.6 630.25 61.5 

J-141 476 7.0 630.23 66.7 

J-142 493 0.0 630.28 59.4 

J-143 478 2.3 630.30 65.9 

J-144 442 9.3 629.72 81.2 
J-145 430 40.7 655.30 97.5 

J-146 440 4.7 653.00 92.2 
-

J-147 420 0.0 655.20 101.8 

J-148 434 0.0 654.43 95.4 

J-149 438 4.7 654.32 93.6 
J-150 438 2.3 655.12 93.9 

J-151 410 3.1 653.13 105.2 

J-152 429 3.1 651.52 96.3 

J-153 442 0.0 656.00 92.6 

J-154 437 3.9 656.00 94.8 
J-155 420 0.0 655.91 102.1 

J-156 446 5.4 656.26 91.0 

J-157 430 0.0 656.71 98.1 
t-----

J-158 452 0.0 656.83 88.6 

J-159 453 10.1 656.72 88.1 

J-160 410 6.2 651.54 104.5 

J-161 430 1.6 651.53 95.8 

J-162 453 2.3 655.83 87.8 

J-163 460 2.3 655.74 84.7 

J-164 440 3.1 657.06 93.9 

J-165 471 7.0 657.72 80.8 
~--

J-166 474 2.3 657.16 79.2 

J-167 470 1.6 657.98 81.3 
J-168 464 1.6 658.32 84.1 

J-169 485 0.8 658.77 75.2 

J-170 485 0.0 659.18 75.4 

J-171 485 1.6 659.12 75.3 
-·--·-

J-172 483 0.0 659.70 76.4 
-·-·--· 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-173 468 0.0 659.70 82.9 

J-174 460 0.0 659.70 86.4 

J-175 470 0.0 658.43 81.5 

J-176 470 6.5 658.43 81.5 

J-177 445 2.3 657.06 91.7 

J-178 440 0.8 651.49 91.5 

J-179 439 0.8 651.20 91.8 

J-180 446 2.3 651.07 88.7 

J-181 500 1.6 651.07 65.4 

J-182 425 0.8 651.06 97.8 

J-183 458 0.0 651.20 83.6 

J-184 430 1.6 651.21 95.7 

J-185 440 0.8 651.29 91.4 

J-186 446 2.3 651.40 88.9 

J-187 435 1.6 651.37 93.6 

J-188 420 3.1 652.18 100.5 

J-189 438 4.7 655.15 94.0 

J-190 445 11.7 659.29 92.7 
J-191 463 0.0 659.29 84.9 

J-192 462 7.8 659.25 85.3 

J-193 455 10.1 657.16 87.5 
J-194 458 0.0 655.41 85.4 

J-195 428 0.8 655.12 98.3 

J-196 420 0.0 655.12 101.7 

J-197 446 3.9 655.12 90.5 
J-198 484 3.9 655.34 74.1 

J-199 445 3.1 656.05 91.3 

J-200 468 3.1 659.22 82.7 

J-201 469 0.8 659.20 82.3 
J-202 469 0.8 659.20 82.3 

J-203 465 5.4 657.96 83.5 

J-204 453 6.2 657.43 88.4 

J-205 440 0.0 656.79 93.8 

J-206 520 3.1 659.20 60.2 

J-207 520 0.0 658.50 59.9 

J-208 520 0.8 658.49 59.9 
J-209 520 0.8 657.80 59.6 

J-210 460 0.8 656.95 85.2 
J-211 475 2.3 656.76 78.6 

-

J-212 478 3.1 656.73 77.3 
-

J-213 474 1.6 656.75 79.1 
-

J-214 471 0.0 657.72 80.8 
-·-

J-215 472 0.8 657.71 80.3 

J-216 480 1.6 657.54 76.8 
--~ 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-217 460 0.0 659.21 86.2 

J-218 474 1.6 659.22 80.l 
J-219 480 0.8 659.15 77.5 

J-220 530 7.0 658.96 55.8 

J-221 537 5.4 658.83 52.7 

J-222 525 0.8 658.82 57.9 

J-223 578 4.7 658.92 35.0 

J-224 540 0.0 658.69 51.4 

J-225 470 5.4 659.27 81.9 
J-226 528 0.8 659.30 56.8 

J-227 530 0.0 659.04 55.8 

J-228 560 0.0 659.03 42.8 

J-229 532 0.8 659.03 55.0 

J-230 575 1.6 659.03 36.4 

J-231 474 3.1 655.81 78.7 

J-232 475 0.0 655.77 78.2 

J-233 470 4.1 655.74 80.4 

J-234 468 0.0 655.77 81.2 

J-235 455 0.0 655.67 86.8 
J-236 480 3.1 655.55 76.0 

J-237 450 0.8 655.65 89.0 
J-238 480 2.3 655.62 76.0 

J-239 500 2.3 655.53 67.3 

J-240 520 0.8 655.51 58.6 

J-241 480 0.0 655.51 75.9 

J-242 461 0.8 655.96 84.4 
J-243 461 0.0 655.96 84.4 

J-244 535 3.1 659.35 53.8 

J-245 540 7.0 659.19 51.6 
J-246 510 6.2 659.41 64.6 

J-247 490 0.0 659.50 73.3 

J-248 570 3.9 659.58 38.8 

J-249 490 4.7 659.34 73.3 

J-250 470 4.7 659.19 81.9 

J-251 470 7.8 659.17 81.8 

J-252 535 7.8 658.80 53.6 

J-253 580 5.4 658.26 33.9 

J-254 481 7.8 656.19 75.8 

J-255 455 3.9 655.26 86.6 
·-

J-256 472 3.1 654.41 78.9 

J-257 450 4.7 653.64 88.1 
- ·-

J-258 430 0.8 653.62 96.7 
·---~ 

J-259 435 0.8 653.62 94.6 
~----

J-260 433 0.0 653.62 95.5 
-



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-261 430 2.3 653.27 96.6 
J-262 500 5.4 652.69 66.1 

J-263 494 0.0 652.50 68.6 

J-264 454 0.8 652.49 85.9 

J-265 520 3.1 652.01 57.1 

J-266 430 1.6 651.99 96.0 

J-267 550 5.4 653.04 44.6 

J-268 510 10.1 652.37 61.6 

J-269 449 7.8 652.17 87.9 

J-270 430 6.2 652.14 96.1 

J-271 511 3.9 652.13 61.1 

J-272 466 6.2 652.18 80.5 
J-273 520 7.8 652.16 57.2 

J-274 564 1.6 652.12 38.1 

J-275 440 0.8 652.12 91.8 

J-276 453 0.0 652.12 86.1 

J-277 520 7.0 650.95 56.7 

J-278 420 4.7 648.69 98.9 
J-279 520 3.1 648.41 55.6 

J-280 505 1.6 648.40 62.0 

J-281 423 2.3 648.41 97.5 

J-282 460 1.6 648.37 81.5 

J-283 410 3.9 648.58 103.2 

J-284 545 3.1 649.42 45.2 

J-285 410 2.3 651.73 104.6 

J-286 500 5.6 651.85 65.7 

J-287 420 0.8 651.70 100.2 

J-288 462 0.0 651.93 82.2 
J-289 480 1.6 651.99 74.4 

J-290 475 0.8 652.12 76.6 
J-291 445 0.8 652.25 89.7 

J-292 430 0.8 651.94 96.0 
J-293 492 0.0 659.04 72.3 
J-294 492 0.0 659.04 72.3 
J-295 491 3.9 657.67 72.1 
J-296 489 0.0 657.67 73.0 

J-297 492 0.0 657.65 71.7 

J-298 490 3.9 656.24 71.9 
J-299 463 9.3 654.82 83.0 

J-300 461 3.1 654.61 83.8 

J-301 450 4.7 652.27 87.5 

J-302 470 0.8 652.06 78.8 
J-303 468 0.8 652.04 79.6 
J-304 472 0.0 652.06 77.9 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-305 475 0.8 652.05 76.6 

J-306 487 1.6 652.04 71.4 
J-307 440 3.9 647.71 89.9 

J-308 437 3.1 641.57 88.5 

J-309 430 0.8 641.56 91.5 

J-310 420 0.0 641.49 95.8 

J-311 455 2.3 641.42 80.7 

J-312 435 0.8 637.92 87.8 

J-313 430 2.3 634.11 88.3 
J-314 450 0.8 633.00 79.2 

J-315 450 0.8 633.00 79.2 

J-316 439 1.6 632.13 83.6 
J-317 441 1.6 632.12 82.7 

J-318 436 0.0 643.95 90.0 

J-319 443 0.8 643.89 86.9 

J-320 436 3.9 643.73 89.9 
J-321 420 0.8 643.72 96.8 
J-322 420 0.8 641.87 96.0 
J-323 462 0.8 639.11 76.6 
J-324 508 0.0 637.30 55.9 

J-325 530 2.3 634.71 45.3 
J-326 500 3.9 634.53 58.2 
J-327 515 1.6 637.20 52.9 

J-328 510 2.3 634.90 54.0 

J-329 450 0.0 633.97 79.6 
J-330 448 3.1 633.45 80.2 
J-331 445 3.1 633.90 81.7 
J-332 530 0.0 637.02 46.3 
J-333 435 0.8 635.82 86.9 
J-334 410 4.7 635.71 97.7 
J-335 518 8.6 635.14 50.7 
J-336 511 1.6 633.69 53.1 
J-337 517 4.7 633.05 50.2 

J-338 543 4.7 629.90 37.6 
J-339 536 5.4 629.07 40.3 
J-340 440 3.1 626.62 80.7 
J-341 465 0.8 624.55 69.0 
J-342 457 2.3 622.28 71.5 
J-343 430 0.0 621.10 82.7 
J-344 460 0.8 620.11 69.3 

-· 

J-345 490 3.9 620.05 56.3 
J-346 449 7.0 617.56 72.9 
J-347 444 0.8 617.55 75.1 

-·- - ·t---------------·---

J-348 500 3.1 610.64 47.9 
-·- --· 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-349 470 0.0 609.63 60.4 
J-350 470 3.1 609.58 60.4 
J-351 466 10.4 610.46 62.5 
J-352 437 3.1 608.29 74.1 
J-353 437 3.1 608.21 74.1 
J-354 420 3.1 607.98 81.3 
J-355 470 3.9 607.91 59.7 
J-356 435 3.1 608.11 74.9 
J-357 435 0.8 608.10 74.9 
J-358 435 3.1 608.00 74.8 
J-359 435 2.3 607.94 74.8 
J-360 430 6.2 607.85 76.9 
J-361 430 3.9 607.67 76.9 
J-362 410 0.0 607.81 85.6 
J-363 425 0.0 607.79 79.1 
J-364 412 0.8 607.77 84.7 
J-365 460 3.9 607.77 63.9 
J-366 478 2.3 635.54 68.2 
J-367 457 0.0 635.54 77.2 
J-368 450 3.1 635.42 80.2 
J-369 446 0.0 635.22 81.9 
J-370 425 2.3 634.95 90.8 
J-371 410 3.1 634.69 97.2 
J-372 480 0.0 634.51 66.8 
J-373 412 33.9 631.52 95.0 
J-374 417 3.1 631.12 92.6 
J-375 417 3.1 630.98 92.6 
J-376 465 6.2 627.61 70.4 
J-377 420 2.3 619.48 86.3 
J-378 435 2.3 616.48 78.5 
J-379 435 1.6 616.45 78.5 
J-380 440 0.0 616.00 76.1 
J-381 452 7.8 615.89 70.9 
J-382 475 7.0 633.56 68.6 
J-383 445 1.6 637.23 83.2 
J-384 490 12.9 635.89 63.1 

--
J-385 447 0.0 637.69 82.5 
J-386 469 0.0 637.69 73.0 
J-387 406 0.8 630.73 97.2 

---

J-388 450 0.0 630.85 78.2 
--~ 

J-389 410 2.3 630.89 95.6 
J-390 398 8.6 634.54 102.3 

-

J-391 399 11.0 630.20 100.0 
-

J-392 393 0.0 630.20 102.6 
--



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-393 397 0.0 630.20 100.9 

J-394 397 0.0 630.20 100.9 

J-395 400 0.0 635.31 101.8 

J-396 405 1.6 635.26 99.6 

J-397 390 0.8 635.10 106.0 

J-398 393 1.6 634.88 104.7 

J-399 390 0.0 634.88 105.9 

J-400 395 0.0 634.87 103.8 

J-401 395 2.3 634.86 103.8 

J-402 395 1.6 634.86 103.8 

J-403 470 0.8 655.84 80.4 
J-404 450 0.0 636.00 80.5 

J-405 450 0.0 650.91 86.9 

J-406 488 1.6 630.33 61.6 

J-407 517 9.3 630.23 49.0 

J-408 515 0.0 630.07 49.8 

J-409 522 3.1 630.23 46.8 

J-410 509 1.6 630.21 52.4 
J-411 516 3.9 630.21 49.4 

J-412 503 3.1 630.22 55.0 

J-413 505 3.9 630.21 54.2 

J-414 393 0.0 634.87 104.6 

J-415 494 0.0 658.49 71.2 

J-418 478 2.3 630.40 65.9 

J-419 486 0.0 630.97 62.7 

J-420 485 0.0 631.11 63.2 

J-421 471 0.0 631.41 69.4 

J-422 457 0.0 631.55 75.5 

J-425 515 2.3 630.07 49.8 

J-426 514 6.2 630.08 50.2 

J-427 499 3.1 630.03 56.7 

J-428 508 3.9 630.02 52.8 

J-429 440 2.3 650.63 91.1 

J-430 440 419.2 650.61 91.1 
--

J-431 508 14.3 628.00 51.9 

J-432 486 7.8 638.38 65.9 
-· 

J-433 481 9.3 647.16 71.9 

J-434 481 5.4 646.50 71.6 
J-435 463 10.1 646.33 79.3 

J-436 495 2.3 652.31 68.1 
-· 

J-437 505 3.1 644.20 60.2 

J-438 445 2.3 652.02 89.6 
~- --

J-439 437 0.0 654.56 94.2 
-

J-440 429 9.5 653.23 97.0 
-



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-441 460 7.0 655.25 84.5 
J-442 435 10.1 652.44 94.1 

J-443 524 1.6 636.52 48.7 

J-444 465 10.1 635.43 73.7 

J-445 539 7.8 631.35 40.0 

J-446 472 25.7 633.21 69.8 

J-447 392 0.0 634.95 105.1 

J-448 419 11.7 630.71 91.6 

J-449 444 5.4 628.63 79.9 

J-450 474 157.9 646.83 74.8 

J-451 472 20.5 653.05 78.3 

J-452 466 0.8 655.67 82.1 

J-453 483 2.3 657.08 75.3 

J-454 430 0.8 650.70 95.5 

Master Meter 458 0.0 636.00 77.0 



Table K-4 
Gibson Water, Inc. 

Hydraulic Modeling - Junction Node Results Table 

System with Recommended Improvements - Peak Hourly Demand 

Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-2 450 0.0 636.00 80.5 

J-3 450 0.0 641.99 83.1 

J-4 450 0.0 641.99 83.1 

J-5 455 0.0 641.99 80.9 

J-6 450 2.3 641.99 83.1 

J-7 496 0.0 642.33 63.3 

J-8 496 4.5 642.30 63.3 

J-9 448 0.0 642.12 84.0 

J-10 457 7.9 642.00 80.0 

J-11 480 12.4 640.92 69.6 

J-12 453 25.8 641.89 81.7 

J-13 460 3.4 641.81 78.7 

J-14 455 0.0 641.65 80.8 
J-15 433 0.0 641.51 90.2 

J-16 433 1.1 641.69 90.3 

J-17 420 2.3 642.92 96.4 

J-18 480 93.2 649.77 73.5 

J-19 459 4.5 651.99 83.5 

J-20 470 5.6 654.17 79.7 

J-21 465 0.0 656.86 83.0 

J-22 454 0.0 657.69 88.1 

J-23 463 28.2 657.67 84.2 

J-24 460 0.0 657.83 85.6 

J-25 460 0.0 657.83 85.6 

J-26 510 0.0 659.94 64.9 

J-27 492 0.0 657.83 71.7 

J-28 487 0.0 658.09 74.0 

J-29 450 0.0 658.44 90.2 

J-30 484 0.0 658.62 75.5 

J-31 485 282.5 658.68 75.1 

J-32 477 1.1 658.86 78.7 
·---~ 

J-33 477 823.7 658.79 78.7 
·-· 

J-34 483 0.0 659.40 76.3 
----

J-35 485 16.6 660.00 75.7 

J-36 485 0.0 658.37 75.0 
~- -~ 

J-37 464 0.0 656.96 83.5 
~--·- --

J-38 471 0.0 656.01 80.0 
-~ 

J-39 471 0.0 655.80 80.0 
~· ·-

J-40 440 0.0 654.86 93.0 
···---~ 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-41 452 0.0 654.07 87.4 
J-42 430 0.0 653.87 96.9 
J-43 442 0.0 652.14 90.9 
J-44 420 0.0 650.79 99.9 
J-45 432 6.7 650.02 94.3 
J-46 410 0.0 649.58 103.7 
J-47 471 1.1 648.78 76.9 

J-48 430 0.0 648.34 94.5 
J-49 417 0.0 647.85 99.9 
J-50 441 0.0 647.37 89.3 
J-51 460 0.0 646.44 80.7 
J-52 433 1.1 645.50 91.9 
J-53 446 0.0 644.90 86.1 

J-54 490 0.0 644.37 66.8 
J-55 480 0.0 643.82 70.9 
J-56 445 9.0 643.15 85.7 
J-57 495 3.4 642.72 63.9 
J-58 500 3.4 642.71 61.7 
J-59 501 7.0 642.41 61.2 
J-60 462 12.0 641.88 77.8 
J-61 428 1.1 641.98 92.6 
J-62 430 2.3 641.82 91.6 
J-63 420 5.6 642.88 96.4 
J-64 460 5.6 646.67 80.8 
J-65 440 1.1 648.17 90.1 
J-66 417 0.0 647.66 99.8 
J-67 430 0.0 647.40 94.1 
J-68 428 0.0 647.39 94.9 
J-69 435 1.1 647.31 91.9 
J-70 460 2.3 646.87 80.9 
J-71 441 5.6 647.16 89.2 
J-72 460 0.0 646.45 80.7 
J-73 460 1.1 646.44 80.7 
J-74 433 2.3 646.06 92.2 
J-75 460 111.3 634.60 75.5 

--

J-76 460 0.0 634.37 75.4 
J-77 460 16.6 634.24 75.4 
J-78 458 0.0 634.37 76.3 
J-79 470 0.0 634.05 71.0 
J-80 470 0.0 634.05 71.0 
J-81 488 13.5 633.87 63.1 
J-82 490 5.6 633.87 62.2 
J-83 493 16.6 633.44 60.8 

~-- --

J-84 493 11.8 633.43 60.8 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-85 510 6.7 633.08 53.3 

J-86 472 16.3 632.82 69.6 

J-87 500 6.7 632.08 57.1 

J-88 478 16.9 642.25 71.1 

J-89 475 0.0 642.25 72.4 

J-90 478 0.0 642.72 71.3 

J-91 480 0.0 643.64 70.8 

J-92 490 5.6 643.94 66.6 

J-93 446 8.3 644.89 86.1 

J-94 446 1.1 644.89 86.0 

J-95 430 5.6 622.73 83.4 

J-96 434 2.3 617.10 79.2 

J-97 455 10.1 616.29 69.8 

J-98 446 11.2 614.98 73.1 

J-99 470 1.1 613.15 61.9 

J-100 447 4.5 611.52 71.2 

J-101 450 2.3 611.34 69.8 

J-102 450 0.0 611.52 69.9 

J-103 438 4.5 645.44 89.8 
J-104 510 0.0 644.87 58.4 

J-105 510 1.1 644.85 58.3 

J-106 515 9.0 644.85 56.2 

J-107 450 0.0 644.63 84.2 
J-108 465 3.4 644.53 77.7 

J-109 444 1.1 644.47 86.7 

J-110 500 4.5 644.27 62.4 

J-111 470 0.0 644.90 75.7 
J-112 503 15.8 644.94 61.4 

J-113 548 3.4 644.86 41.9 

J-114 432 1.1 644.66 92.0 

J-115 438 1.1 644.65 89.4 

J-116 424 7.1 641.75 94.2 
J-117 407 4.5 641.48 101.4 

J-118 425 1.1 641.46 93.7 
J-119 450 7.0 631.05 78.3 

J-120 430 7.9 630.20 86.6 
--

J-121 520 11.2 627.02 46.3 
J-122 490 20.3 601.61 48.3 

J-123 490 0.0 600.86 48.0 

J-124 501 124.6 591.30 39.1 

J-125 470 10.1 590.13 52.0 
J-126 460 1.1 589.43 56.0 

J-127 514 1.1 583.75 30.2 

J-128 470 1.1 580.74 47.9 
-



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-129 498 11.6 563.32 28.3 

J-130 522 5.6 562.84 21.3 
J-131 520 2.3 562.83 22.1 

J-132 493 9.0 562.94 30.3 

J-133 480 6.7 562.47 35.7 

J-134 490 11.6 597.46 46.5 

J-135 512 4.5 596.89 36.7 
J-136 488 2.3 596.82 47.1 
J-137 467 5.6 596.32 56.0 
J-138 490 23.6 601.20 48.1 

J-139 520 0.0 601.13 35.1 

J-140 488 39.9 601.04 48.9 
J-141 476 10.1 601.00 54.1 

J-142 493 0.0 601.09 46.8 
J-143 478 3.4 601.13 53.3 
J-144 442 13.5 599.99 68.4 
J-145 430 59.0 650.69 95.5 
J-146 440 6.7 646.12 89.2 
J-147 420 0.0 650.49 99.7 
J-148 434 0.0 648.96 93.0 
J-149 438 6.7 648.75 91.2 

--

J-150 438 3.4 650.32 91.9 
J-151 410 4.5 646.37 102.3 
J-152 429 4.5 643.20 92.7 
J-153 442 0.0 652.08 90.9 
J-154 437 5.6 652.08 93.1 
J-155 420 0.0 651.89 100.3 

-· 

J-156 446 7.9 652.58 89.4 
J-157 430 0.0 653.48 96.7 

--

J-158 452 0.0 653.72 87.3 

J-159 453 14.6 653.50 86.7 

J-160 410 9.0 643.24 100.9 

J-161 430 2.3 643.21 92.2 

J-162 453 3.4 651.72 86.0 

J-163 460 3.4 651.55 82.9 
--

J-164 440 4.5 654.17 92.7 
J-165 471 10.1 655.47 79.8 

-· 

J-166 474 3.4 654.38 78.0 
J-167 470 2.3 656.00 80.5 

~---

J-168 464 2.3 656.67 83.4 

J-169 485 1.1 657.55 74.7 

J-170 485 0.0 658.37 75.0 
J-171 485 2.3 658.26 75.0 

-~ 

J-172 483 0.0 659.40 76.3 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-173 468 0.0 659.40 82.8 
J-174 460 0.0 659.40 86.3 
J-175 470 0.0 656.89 80.9 
J-176 470 9.5 656.89 80.9 
J-177 445 3.4 654.17 90.5 
J-178 440 1.1 643.13 87.9 
J-179 439 1.1 642.56 88.1 
J-180 446 3.4 642.31 84.9 
J-181 500 2.3 642.30 61.6 
J-182 425 1.1 642.28 94.0 
J-183 458 0.0 642.56 79.9 
J-184 430 2.3 642.57 92.0 
J-185 440 1.1 642.74 87.7 
J-186 446 3.4 642.95 85.2 
J-187 435 2.3 642.89 89.9 

J-188 420 4.5 644.50 97.1 
J-189 438 6.7 650.39 91.9 
J-190 445 16.9 658.59 92.4 
J-191 463 0.0 658.59 84.6 
J-192 462 11.2 658.50 85.0 
J-193 455 14.6 654.36 86.3 
J-194 458 0.0 650.90 83.5 
J-195 428 1.1 650.33 96.2 

J-196 420 0.0 650.33 99.7 
J-197 446 5.6 650.33 88.4 
J-198 484 5.6 650.77 72.2 

J-199 445 4.5 652.16 89.6 
J-200 468 4.5 658.46 82.4 
J-201 469 1.1 658.42 82.0 
J-202 469 1.1 658.42 82.0 
J-203 465 7.9 655.96 82.6 
J-204 453 9.0 654.90 87.4 
J-205 440 0.0 653.63 92.4 
J-206 520 4.5 658.41 59.9 

J-207 520 0.0 657.03 59.3 

J-208 520 1.1 657.02 59.3 
J-209 520 1.1 655.64 58.7 

J-210 460 1.1 653.95 83.9 
J-211 475 3.4 653.58 77.3 
J-212 478 4.5 653.51 75.9 
J-213 474 2.3 653.55 77.7 
J-214 471 0.0 655.48 79.8 
J-215 472 1.1 655.47 79.4 
J-216 480 2.3 655.12 75.8 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-217 460 0.0 658.43 85.9 
J-218 474 2.3 658.45 79.8 
J-219 480 1.1 658.32 77.2 
J-220 530 10.1 657.94 55.4 

J-221 537 7.9 657.67 52.2 

J-222 525 1.1 657.67 57.4 

J-223 578 6.7 657.40 34.4 

J-224 540 0.0 657.40 50.8 
J-225 470 7.9 658.56 81.6 
J-226 528 1.1 658.61 56.5 

J-227 530 0.0 658.10 55.4 

J-228 560 0.0 658.08 42.4 

J-229 532 1.1 658.08 54.5 
J-230 575 2.3 658.07 35.9 

J-231 474 4.5 651.69 76.9 
J-232 475 0.0 651.62 76.4 

J-233 470 5.9 651.55 78.5 

J-234 468 0.0 651.62 79.4 
J-235 455 0.0 651.42 85.0 
J-236 480 4.5 651.17 74.1 

J-237 450 1.1 651.38 87.1 

J-238 480 3.4 651.32 74.1 
J-239 500 3.4 651.13 65.4 

J-240 520 1.1 651.11 56.7 

J-241 480 0.0 651.11 74.0 

J-242 461 1.1 652.00 82.6 
J-243 461 0.0 652.00 82.6 

J-244 535 4.5 658.71 53.5 
J-245 540 10.1 658.39 51.2 

J-246 510 9.0 658.83 64.4 

J-247 490 0.0 659.01 73.1 

J-248 570 5.6 659.17 38.6 

J-249 490 6.7 658.68 73.0 
J-250 470 6.7 658.39 81.5 

J-251 470 11.2 658.35 81.5 

J-252 535 11.2 657.63 53.1 
·-

J-253 580 7.9 656.55 33.1 
J-254 481 11.2 652.45 74.2 

J-255 455 5.6 650.60 84.6 
J-256 472 4.5 648.93 76.6 

J-257 450 6.7 647.39 85.4 

J-258 430 1.1 647.35 94.0 

J-259 435 1.1 647.35 91.9 

J-260 433 0.0 647.35 92.7 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-261 430 3.4 646.67 93.7 
J-262 500 7.9 645.50 63.0 

J-263 494 0.0 645.14 65.4 
J-264 454 1.1 645.12 82.7 
J-265 520 4.5 644.18 53.7 
J-266 430 2.3 644.13 92.6 

J-267 550 7.9 646.20 41.6 
J-268 510 14.6 644.88 58.4 
J-269 449 11.2 644.48 84.6 
J-270 430 9.0 644.42 92.8 
J-271 511 5.6 644.41 57.7 
J-272 466 9.0 644.49 77.2 

J-273 520 11.2 644.47 53.9 
·-

J-274 564 2.3 644.39 34.8 
J-275 440 1.1 644.39 88.4 
J-276 453 0.0 644.38 82.8 
J-277 520 10.1 642.06 52.8 
J-278 420 6.7 637.58 94.1 
J-279 520 4.5 637.03 50.6 
J-280 505 2.3 637.02 57.1 
J-281 423 3.4 637.03 92.6 
J-282 460 2.3 636.95 76.6 
J-283 410 5.6 637.36 98.4 
J-284 545 4.5 639.02 40.7 
J-285 410 3.4 643.61 101.1 
J-286 500 8.2 643.85 62.2 
J-287 420 1.1 643.56 96.7 
J-288 462 0.0 644.01 78.7 
J-289 480 2.3 644.12 71.0 

J-290 475 1.1 644.39 73.3 
J-291 445 1.1 644.64 86.4 

J-292 430 1.1 644.02 92.6 

J-293 492 0.0 658.09 71.9 

J-294 492 0.0 658.09 71.9 
J-295 491 5.6 655.38 71.1 

f--------------

J-296 489 0.0 655.38 72.0 
J-297 492 0.0 655.33 70.7 

--· 

J-298 490 5.6 652.54 70.3 
------

J-299 463 13.5 649.74 80.8 
--

J-300 461 4.5 649.31 81.5 
----

J-301 450 6.7 644.68 84.2 
--

J-302 470 1.1 644.26 75.4 

J-303 468 1.1 644.22 76.2 
J-304 472 0.0 644.25 74.5 

----



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-305 475 1.1 644.23 73.2 
J-306 487 2.3 644.22 68.0 
J-307 440 5.6 635.63 84.6 
J-308 437 4.5 623.46 80.7 
J-309 430 1.1 623.46 83.7 
J-310 420 0.0 623.30 88.0 
J-311 455 3.4 623.16 72.8 
J-312 435 1.1 616.23 78.4 
J-313 430 3.4 608.68 77.3 
J-314 450 1.1 606.49 67.7 
J-315 450 1.1 606.49 67.7 
J-316 439 2.3 604.76 71.7 
J-317 441 2.3 604.74 70.8 
J-318 436 0.0 628.19 83.2 
J-319 443 1.1 628.06 80.1 
J-320 436 5.6 627.75 83.0 
J-321 420 1.1 627.74 89.9 
J-322 420 1.1 624.07 88.3 
J-323 462 1.1 618.58 67.7 
J-324 508 0.0 615.01 46.3 

-· 

J-325 530 3.4 609.87 34.6 
J-326 500 5.6 609.51 47.4 
J-327 515 2.3 614.80 43.2 
J-328 510 3.4 610.25 43.4 
J-329 450 0.0 608.40 68.5 
J-330 448 4.5 607.38 69.0 
J-331 445 4.5 608.26 70.6 
J-332 530 0.0 614.45 36.5 
J-333 435 1.1 612.07 76.6 
J-334 410 6.7 611.86 87.3 
J-335 518 12.4 610.73 40.1 
J-336 511 2.3 607.86 41.9 
J-337 517 6.7 606.58 38.8 
J-338 543 6.7 600.34 24.8 
J-339 536 7.9 598.69 27.1 
J-340 440 4.5 593.83 66.6 
J-341 465 1.1 589.73 54.0 
J-342 457 3.4 585.24 55.5 
J-343 430 0.0 582.89 66.1 
J-344 460 1.1 580.94 52.3 
J-345 490 5.6 580.82 39.3 

----

J-346 449 10.1 575.88 54.9 
J-347 444 1.1 575.85 57.0 

----

J-348 500 4.5 562.15 26.9 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-349 470 0.0 560.17 39.0 

J-350 470 4.5 560.07 39.0 

J-351 466 15.0 561.81 41.5 

J-352 437 4.5 557.49 52.1 

J-353 437 4.5 557.34 52.1 

J-354 420 4.5 556.90 59.2 

J-355 470 5.6 556.75 37.5 

J-356 435 4.5 557.14 52.8 

J-357 435 1.1 557.13 52.8 

J-358 435 4.5 556.93 52.8 

J-359 435 3.4 556.81 52.7 

J-360 430 9.0 556.62 54.8 

J-361 430 5.6 556.28 54.6 

J-362 410 0.0 556.54 63.4 

J-363 425 0.0 556.51 56.9 

J-364 412 1.1 556.48 62.5 

J-365 460 5.6 556.47 41.7 

J-366 478 3.4 611.52 57.8 

J-367 457 0.0 611.52 66.9 

J-368 450 4.5 611.28 69.8 

J-369 446 0.0 610.88 71.3 

J-370 425 3.4 610.35 80.2 

J-371 410 4.5 609.83 86.5 

J-372 480 0.0 609.48 56.0 

J-373 412 49.0 603.54 82.9 

J-374 417 4.5 602.75 80.4 

J-375 417 4.5 602.49 80.3 

J-376 465 9.0 595.80 56.6 

J-377 420 3.4 579.69 69.1 

J-378 435 3.4 573.74 60.0 

J-379 435 2.3 573.67 60.0 

J-380 440 0.0 572.78 57.4 

J-381 452 11.2 572.56 52.2 

J-382 475 10.1 607.60 57.4 

J-383 445 2.3 614.86 73.5 

J-384 490 18.7 612.21 52.9 

J-385 447 0.0 615.79 73.0 

J-386 469 0.0 615.79 63.5 

J-387 406 1.1 601.97 84.8 

J-388 450 0.0 602.23 65.9 

J-389 410 3.4 602.30 83.2 

J-390 398 12.4 609.53 91.5 

J-391 399 16.0 600.94 87.4 

J-392 393 0.0 600.94 90.0 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-393 397 0.0 600.94 88.2 
J-394 397 0.0 600.94 88.2 
J-395 400 0.0 611.06 91.3 
J-396 405 2.3 610.97 89.1 
J-397 390 1.1 610.65 95.5 
J-398 393 2.3 610.21 94.0 
J-399 390 0.0 610.20 95.3 
J-400 395 0.0 610.19 93.1 
J-401 395 3.4 610.18 93.1 
J-402 395 2.3 610.18 93.1 
J-403 470 1.1 651.75 78.6 
J-404 450 0.0 636.00 80.5 
J-405 450 0.0 641.99 83.1 
J-406 488 2.3 601.19 49.0 
J-407 517 13.5 600.99 36.3 
J-408 515 0.0 600.67 37.1 
J-409 522 4.5 600.98 34.2 
J-410 509 2.3 600.96 39.8 
J-411 516 5.6 600.96 36.8 
J-412 503 4.5 600.97 42.4 
J-413 505 5.6 600.96 41.5 
J-414 393 0.0 610.18 94.0 
J-415 494 0.0 657.02 70.5 
J-418 478 3.4 601.33 53.4 
J-419 486 0.0 602.47 50.4 
J-420 485 0.0 602.74 50.9 
J-421 471 0.0 603.32 57.3 
J-422 457 0.0 603.61 63.4 
J-425 515 3.4 600.67 37.1 
J-426 514 9.0 600.69 37.5 
J-427 499 4.5 600.59 44.0 
J-428 508 5.6 600.57 40.0 
J-429 440 3.4 641.42 87.1 
J-430 440 606.5 641.38 87.1 
J-431 508 20.7 596.58 38.3 

~-

J-432 486 11.2 617.16 56.7 
--

J-433 481 13.5 634.55 66.4 
--

J-434 481 7.9 633.24 65.9 
J-435 463 14.6 632.91 73.5 
J-436 495 3.4 644.75 64.8 
J-437 505 4.5 628.68 53.5 
J-438 445 3.4 644.19 86.2 

-

J-439 436.93 0.0 649.23 91.9 
·---

J-440 429 13.8 646.59 94.1 



Node No. 
Elevation Demand Hydraulic Grade Pressure 

(Ft.) (gpm) (ft.) (psi) 

J-441 460 10.1 650.58 82.5 
J-442 435 14.6 645.01 90.9 
J-443 524 2.3 613.46 38.7 
J-444 465 14.6 611.31 63.3 
J-445 539 11.2 603.22 27.8 
J-446 472 37.1 606.91 58.4 
J-447 392.08 0.0 610.35 94.4 

J-448 419 16.9 601.95 79.2 
J-449 444 7.9 597.81 66.S 
J-450 474 228.5 633.89 69.2 

J-451 472 29.6 646.23 75.4 
J-452 466 1.1 651.41 80.2 
J-453 483 3.4 654.21 74.1 
J-454 430 1.1 641.58 91.S 

Master Meter 458 0.0 636.00 77.0 



Gibson Water, Inc. 
Gibson County, Indiana 

Appendix L 

Preliminary Engineering Repo1i 
Public Water Supply Improvements 

Water Purchase and Sales Agreements 

• Evansville Water Purchase Agreement 

• Town of Haubstadt Water Sales Agreement 

• Toyota Motor Manufacturing, Indiana Water Sales Agreement 

Midwestern Engineers, Inc. September, 2017 



Evansville Water Purchase Agreement 



USDA,...FHA 
Form FHA 442~30 
(Rev. 4·19·72) 

Position 5 

WATER PURCHASE,CQNTRACT 

Tb!, ooob.ot fot th• "'''Md ""h'"' of wot" Is "'""d ioW OS Of the 13 "fl( d<Y o( ~ ~ 
19 1'1, between the Water Works District of Evansville, Indiana · 

(Address) 

.· .. 
'i 

hereinafter referred to as the "Seller" and the Gibson Water, Inc., 115 S. Main. prjnceton, 

Indiana 47670 
(Address) 

hereinafter referred to as the "Purchaser", 

WITNESSETH: 

Whereas, the Purchaser ts organized and established undedhe pr~llisions of' .. ....., ...... ..._ __________ ...... ._._ __ of the 

Code of----------------· for the purpose of cqtistructing and operating a water supply distribution 
system serving water users within the area described in plans now on fi.le in the office o{ the Purchaser and to accomplish 
this purpose, the Purchaser will require a supply of treated water, and · 

Whereas, the Seller owns and operates a \vater supply distribution system with a capacity'.currently capable of serving the 
present customers of the Seller's systel!l and the estimated number of water users to be served by the said Purchasei as shown 
in the plans ofthe system now on file in the office of the Purchaser, and · 

Whereas, by ____ R_e_s_o_: _l_u_t_i_· _o_n ____ No. __ ....,.._enacted on the ____ .... 1_6_t_h ___ --'-__ day 

.·'<>J ------'A...;;..u.;._· ...... g""'u;.;.;;s.-t~---------- 19 .J..]_, by the Seller, the sale of water to the Purchaser in accordance 

·wtih 1he provisions of the said _____ c_o_n_t_r_· a_c_t_... ______ was approved, and the execution of this contrar;:~. 

carrying out the said schedule 
and attested by the Secretary, was duly authorized, and 

by the ___ V_i_· c_e_-_P_r_e_s_i_d_e_n_·. _t _______ _ 

re. ·s· 1 t · Board of Directors Whereas, f>y _____ o __ u __ i_.o_n _____ . ()f the-----------------------

13th July ·· 77 of the Purchaser; enacted on the -----------day of ---""---.....,,...,..........,.,.._-------- • 19. __ , 

the purchase of water from the Seller in ac:cordance with the terms set forth in the said --------------

was approved, and the execution of this contract by the -------'P_r_e_s_i_d .... e_n_· _t __________ ..,.,, and 
attested by the Secretary was duly authorized; 

Now, therefore; in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual agreements hereinafter set forth, 

A. The Seller Agrees: 

L (Quality and Quantity) To furnish the Purchaser at the point o( .delivery hereinafter specified, duririg the term of 

this contract or any renewal or extension thereof, potable treated water meeting appiicahle purity.11~ndards o( the ___ __...,.. 

Enviromental Management Board 

i 11 . . ~ 0:Jl' / 
in such quantity as may be required by the Purchaser not to exceed 2 • 5 m 1 J ~I Ions pe~a y "f. ~,, 

FHA 442-30 (Rev. 4~19-72) 

I 
! 

T 
i 



2. (Point of Delive!'Y and Pressure) That water will be furnished at a reasonably constant p1nsure calculated 
a proposed 

at 35 PSI from Sil~ twenty (20) inch main supply at a point located~ of 

U.S.Hwy 41 approximately 2500 ft.south of the intersection of U.S.41 &. I­
If a greatet pressure than that normally available at the point of delivery is required by the Purchaser, the cost of providing 
such greater pressure shall be borne by the Purchaser. Emergency failures o{ pressure or supply due to ma.in supply line 
breaks, power failure, flood, fire and use of water to fight fire, earthquake or other catastrophe shall excuse the Seller !rom 
this provision for such reasonable period o{ time as may be necessary to restore seivice. 

3. (Metering Equipment) To furnish, install, ope1ate, and maintain at its own expense at point of delivery, the 
necessary metering equipment, including a meter house or pit, and required devi~es of standard type for properly measuring 
the quantity of water delivered to the Purchaser and to calibrate such metering equipment whenever requested by the Purchaser 
but not more frequently than once every twelve (12) months. A meter registering not more than two percent (23) above or 
below the fest result shall be deemed to be accurate. The previous readings of any meter disclosed by test to be inaccurate 

shall be corrected for the Six ( 6) months previous to such test in accordance with the percentage of 
inaccuoacy found by such tests. 1£ any meter fails to register for any period, the amount of water furnished during such period 
shell be deemed to be the amount of water delivered in the corresponding period immediately prior to the failure, unless Seller 

1st working day 
and Purchaser shall agree upon a different amount. The metering equipment shall be read on of each month . 
An appropriate official of the Purchaser at all reasonable times shall have access to the meter for the purpose of verifying 
its readings. 

4. (Billing Procedure) To furnish the Purchaser at the above address not later tlian the 15th day of 
each month, with an itemized statement of the amount of water furnished the Purchaser during the preceding month. 

B. The Purchaser Agrees: 

1. (Rates and Payment Date) To pay the Seller, not later than the _....;3-.0_t_h __ day of each month, for water 
delivered in accordance with the following schedule of rates: 

a. $ 290. 00 for the first one ( 1) mil lion gallons, which amount shall also be the 
minimum rate per month. 

b. $ ..... -.2_....9 _______ cents per 1000 gallons for water in excess ofODe ( 1) mi J J j on gallons lilK 

~xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx~~ 

2. (Connection Fee) To pay as an agreed cost, a connection fee to connect the Seller's system with the system 

of the Purchaser, the sum of $150 r 000. 00 dollars which shal} cover any and all costs of the Seller for installation 

ofthemeteringequipmentand agreed difference between 16" and 20 11 connection pl~in~ 1 
extensior' 



.. ' 

;(::. It is {u1ther mutually agreed between the Seller and the Purc~aser a~ follows: 

. 1. (Term of Contract) That this contract shall extend fot a term of. . SO years from the date of Ute initial 
delivery of any water as shown by the first bill submitted by the Seller to the Purchaser and, thereafter may be renewed or 
~xtended for such tenn, or terms, as may be agreed upon by the Seller and Purchaser. 

2; (Delivery of Water) That 9 O days prior to the estimated date of completion of construction of.the 
Purchasers water supply distribution system, the. Purchaser will notify the SeUer in writing the date for the initial delivery 
of water. · 

3. (Watet for Testing) When requested by the Purchaser the Seller will make available to the contractor at the 
point of delivery, or other point reasonably close thereto, water sufficient for testing, flushing, and trench filling the system 
of the Purchaser during construction, irrespective of whether the metering equipment has been installed at that time, at a 

:f;ild charge of $ 2 9 per 1 0 a a ~'fiJn will be paid by the contractor or I on his failure to pay. by the Purchaser. 

4. (Failure to Deliver) That the Seller will, at all times, operate and maintain its system in an efficient manner 
and will take such action as may be necessary to furnish the Purchaser with quantities of water required by the Putthaser. 
Temporary or partial failures to deliver water shall be remedied with all possible P.ispatch. In the event of an extended 
shortage of water, or the supply of water available to the Seller is otherwise diminished over an extended period of time, 
the supply of water to Purchaser's consumers shall be reduced or diminished in the same ratio or proportion as the supply to 
Seller's consumets is reduced or diminished. 

5:~ (Modification of Contract) That the provisions of this contract pertaining to the schedule of rates to be paid by 

the Purchaser for water delivered are subject to modification at the end of every 3 year period. Any increase or 
decrease in rates shall be based on a demonstrable increase or decrease in the cx:>sts of µerformance hereunder, but such 
costs shall not include increased capitalization of the Seller's system. Other provis.ions of this contract mliy be modified or 
altered by mu\ual agreement. 

6. (Regulatory Agencies) That this contract Is subject to such tules, regulations, or 111ws as may be applicable 
to similar agreements in this State and the Seller and Purchaser will collaborate in obtain1ng such permits, certificates, or the 
like, as may be required to comply therewith. 

7. (Miscellaneous) That the consttuction of the water supply distribution system by the :Purchaser is being financed 
by a loan made or insured by, and/or a grant from, the United States of Ameri_ca, acting through the Farmers Home Administra­
tion of the United States Department of Agriculture, and the provisions he1eof pertaining to the undertakings of the Purchaser 
are conditioned upon the approval, in writing, of the State Director of the Farmers Home Administration, 

, 8. (Su7cessor to the Purchaser) That in the event o[ any occurence rendenng the Purchaser incapable of per-
forming Qnder this contract, any successor of the Purchaser, whether the result of legal process, assignment, or otherwise, 
shall succeed to the rights of. the Purchaser hereunder. 



In witness whereof; the parties hereto, acting under authotity of their respective-iioveming bodies, have caused this c?nttact 

fo be duly executed 111 ___ 4 ___ .,.counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original~ 

· secret3fY3J 

... 1. l - ..I 

Seller: 

By_£...14.~~.:::::z.::::=::::::2.......::::.iz::::.....::!::.'.::.2::.:::....~tt:...~~~~ 

Title _,.!:ti;__~_· _._'._ ... _· -~--<--.....:;;;;;,_~~.,.t.;..;,.'----

Purchaser: 

By....;;..-....::..;,.,.,t."-'-'-'il-'-1-~...w~-~~~~~:~~·~-; ....... ..__.;;..;.;.._;;.__;,,-......_.. .. 

Ti.tle _ _....~ ....... o.i.liii.u...i....._ ____ .,_ ____ _ 

This contract is approved on behalf of the Farmers Home Administration this;·. :2 i day:!>f 0 (: Io bit., 

By /.J .,,;pJ._ K Ji____ 
Title CJ.4 Q_ ... .:.?\ I' ... r,._, ... i 

. ' 

l 



Town of Haubstadt Water Sales Agreement 



WAT'f.R PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

l3etwaen 

TOWN OF HAUBSTADT 

and 
GIBSON WATER,.INC. 

·r111r. Agrer:~li),ent fo1· tll0 sa!e and purchase of wate:fi rnado and entered into o(I 
tho j]_ <.Jny of _J:d:t~.:Y.].• 20'10, by ~nd belween Gibson Water, Inc;, a noHor~profit 
corpori:1tion pursurmt t<)tfhe Indiana. Not-For-Profit Acl of 1971, (hereinafter re1orred to 
as "Gilman Wal£Jr") Rm! the Town of Hallbstadt, Indiana, a municipal corporation or the 
mate: of lnrlliiina, (t1cmlm:ifk:r referred lo as "Haubstadt") (collectively referred to ;;:is 
"Portios"), · 

WITNESSETHt 

WHEREAS, Ha~bstadl anrJ Gibson Water entered inlQ i3 Water Purchase 
CMtracl on .IRr'lll<.iry 31, 1880, for the purchase by Haubstad! from Gibson Water of n 
lro;:-rtod supply of wnt~r for purposes of resale and recHstrihution by· Haubstadt. tc:> water 
~:iwtorni."irs of tho Hnubstndl Waler Utility; and 

WHEF{EAB, the Wator Purchi:1se contract daled January 31, 19a~. was for rn1 
initial tr:::rm of 20 (twenty) yGar.s {''Original Contract''), which Initial lerm has' now cxpir&d; 
H!lrJ 

WHEREAS,"! laubsti'1dt desires to continue purchasing from Gibson Water, mu.i 
Gibson Wa\or dnsire~ to continue selling lo Haubstadt a treated ~upply of water for an 
iidciltional l<'irrn of 20 (lwen!y) ym1rs; ;md 

MOW, THEREFOr~r.:., in consideration of the covenants herein contained and 
olr1er good £Jnd valunblr~ i::onsldoratlon, lhe receipt and suriiciency of wtiich am hornby 
~cknowloclged, tl1c Pf\rties <:igree as follows: 

·1. .Wnter ~Hf!.ll!.\& Gibson Waler Will furnish lo Hm1bstadl as Ow sole 
pn)viclur al tlln ct1rront clelivary and connection point, located at C.R. 925 S. and U.S, 
I Hgliw<1y 41 B., cluring tho torm of this Agreement and ;:iny renewal and exttmsions 
lh<:.\mor, pol~1b!c tre;-jtnd w~tcr, meeting applicable purity standards of the Public Waler 
::-:upply Section of tile lnr.llairn Depmlmenl of Envirorimenlal Managornent. 

1 
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2. W::itetJ.:1ress!!r£_ancl Delivory Location Provisions. Water will bo 
rurnie.hod by Gib:.;on Wat!;:f at a reasonably constant normal pressure from Gi!Json 
Water's s1.1pply main, Whiol1 shall be of appropriate dimensions for lhe quantity of the 
wator being purchased by Haubstadt. The connection and delivery location as 
rJo;,crlbed in p;:iragrnph 1 is ancl shall continue to be owned by Gibson Water. If a 
l~S$ef or greater prr.s$ure than that ava!lable at the point of dcllvery Is required by 
l·foubrita:.11, the cost of provicling such lessf.lr or greater pressure shall be borne by 
H::il!bstadt, Ernergnncy f~ilure of presst1re or supply due to main supply breal<s, power 
f.uilt1rn, flood, fire, rmd use of wnter to fight fire, earthquake or eny other catastrophe or 
ovE1nl of force rrli:~euro sl1all excuse Glbson Water from Its obligations hereunder tor 
suet\ rnmmnablo period of time as may be necessary to restore service. Hnuhsladt 
:;llall l:ICJ rc~ponsiblc: for p£-1ynient of all costs and expanses from and including the 
f!t1livory point. I l~ubSl('ldt shall also be responsible for payment oi all costs and 
r::i;pe1,ses for site modiiicutions ancl enlargements, equipment purchase and repairs DI 
t!in delivr~ry location slle, except for ttic metering equipmG:nt as set forth in paragraph 3 
bo!ow. Haubstcidt ol1r.ill also remain El member of Gibson Waler, Inc. and pay <my 
r(:quirnd ronowal or m()mbcrsl1lp foes. 

3. !Jete@_g_EcH;!!Q.~'!:!fil!t. Gibson Water shall continue lo operate and 
mnintoin ot ltG own expense at said polnl of delivery, the necessary standard metering 
w:;L1iprnont for propi::rly rne;:isuring the quantity of water delivered to Haubstadt 
("Metering Equiprmml") from and including the delivery site and to calibrate such 
Metering F.:quiprnent whenevor rcqt1ested by Haubstadt but not more freqLtently lhan 
<,ncti tJ'.Jery 12 months. Metering Equipment registered not more than. 2% above or 
lHlcw-1 the test r~~sulls Will Lle deemed to be accurate. The previous re~dings of any 
Mctoring Eqtiiprn{:nt dir.closml to be inaccurate to the extent of more than 2% will be 
C.tiir0Cted for the 2 nwnths previous to such tests in accordance with ttle percentage of 
ir1.:iccurancy in cxcas:1 of 2% found by such test. If any Metering Equipment fails to 
r0.gi~>loi for flflY period, l11e wnount of water delivered during such periods shall be 
lfomnr:rl to b~ lht: amount of the water delivered in the corresponding periocl 
irnrnc:idi:::itc:;ly prior to lhc foilure, unless Gibson Water and Haubstadt agree upon a 
(mfr:r~nt mriount. Ttlo Meteiing Equipment shall be read monthly. An appropria\o 
o!lkif.11 of Hciubslfldl sh~ll have access to the Metering Equipment for the purpose of 
vnrlfying Its rmidings (.lt all masonC:1ble limes. 

4. §.illit;i.H.~..: Gibson Water Wiii furnish to Haubstadt by the 20th day of 
c:::ich month i-ll'l ltorniwd billing of !he amount of water delivered to Haubstadt in tile 
pmGc;tling month. 

5. §EJJ.~ Pt~Ws;r_9t W<Ater. Haubstadl agrees to purchase all of its water 
nncd~ C1nd ~LJpplic:;s durinn the lerm of this Agreement from Gibson WCJ\er. 

G. frr~f.~_IJ.9.Y-.W.!~ter Us<ige. In the event that Haubstadt expericm~cs a 
Y;iignificm1l ernergancy (o.g. vmterllns breaks and firefighting needs) or an\icl1Kilcs a 
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~innifir.ml\ incrna~a in uswJge {e.g. system maintenance and £lllshing). Haubsladl w\11 
noUfy Gibson Water a:; soon as possible of such emergency or anlicipaled increase in 
usng!~. 

7. ~~r.P.ato~\:, H~ubstadt shall pay to Gibson Water each month for water 
rlciliv~irar,I by Gll'.1!\0ll Waler to Haubstadt the current wholesale rate for such usage, as 
r.pprovcd by lhG lndi<111£1 Utillly Regulatory Commission, or any successor regulatory 
cornnils.slon having juri;.;diction over the rntes. The Parlies further recognize and 
t.~xpressly agree that Gi\Json W'1ter has tile right to petition th<il Indiana Utility Regulatory 
C:nmmi~slon for ;in lncmr1s~ in the Moresald rates from time to tirno and that this 
Awccmr.nt shall be subject to any change, amendment, Increase ot decro'1SD in tt1e 
t;:iriffs and rates charg~d by Gibson Water under thls Agreement pursuant to the 
npproval of tho lndlann Utility Hegulatory Commission. Haubstadt shall pay any sucti 
t<:1riff ~ind ral€1 £'lppHcnl>I~ to it tllat Is lawfully chargeable by Gibson Water al ciny ii mo 
cl11rinf1 the tr~rm of U1ls Agraem0nf1 including bu( not limited to, any now or addili(Jnal 
tariff:;, mtes w1d ch2lroes tlmt rn~y be ih effect at any time during the term hereof. 
Giti;.on Wnter agree:-;; to notify Haubstadt In a timely manner of any intention or an 
initi.ntlon of fl ptoc1;,mling with the lndlsn Utility Regulatory Commis$ion to change any 
tale aHocling M8ubst•.\r.lt. Tl1~ Parties acknowledge and agree 1hat the "demand ch::irge" 
aor{:0cl upon in th\:I OriEfinr.il Contract shall no longer be charged to Haubstadt. 

$, ~,fill!i~rtlil)n Qf._M!:tering and Pass Through C:hargas. The volume 
eh~irg~s to Haubr.tficlt sh~ll be measured by the volume registered at the metering poinl 
on a monthly b~sis. In additlCJn lo the above stated charges. Haubstadl.~cknowleclges 
that Gibson Wnlm purch::isos Its waler supply from the City of Evansvllle, 'Indiana, and 
that any increasn in th€1 chmge that the City of Evansville makes to Gibson W'1ter shall 
b~i f.lll~Sf;cl through nnd tracked by Gibson Water to Haubstadt and that Haubstadt shall 
pny Gibson Wntar_for Haubst<1dt's proportionate share of such lncreEJse in charges per 
IJ<3llon. The mett=.ir ~nd regulatory equipment shall be ac:cessiblo to f1UU1orized 
ornployet~s of HmJbslaclt at all reasorwble times. Volume reports shall be subrnittocl by 
Gibson Wflt~r to Haubstadt with eiacll monthly bltling. Haubslndt shall have the ri9hl to 
m'1ke r:in cll1dit1 al ra::isonablo times mutuEJlly agreec:ible to the Parties, of Gibson Wcitcr's 
boo~:s t'lnd records to ttm extent ne.cr.sssry lo verify Gibson Water's calculations for lhe 
w.:itar taken by Hm1lx1tndt. 

9. !2::!1'.9~.Lf!J..MQtill.llY Bill. Gibson Water's monthly w~ter t)ill lo Haubst<.1dt 
.sll(lJI be c\ua r1nd payable no h-1ti:ir llian the first working day of each month or as stated 
nn !he monthly vmkir bill, whichc:wor dcite is tater. In the event that payment is not 
ri:cetvr.d by $~1Gll r.lnle, lhcm Haubstadt shall pay a late payment charge of 10% of the 
firr.t $2 •• 0o mid 3% of 1ti0 t:tmount of tt1e hill over $3.0D. In tlie event Urn! 30 days elapse 
wl!1·1oul rmyrrn:ml by f·fmrbst\ldl, then Haubstadt shrill havo breached t1·1is contracl •:ind 
GiliC)Ol1 Wn10r inriy give 7 clays' written notlce to Haubstadt to cure its qefaull, If 
He1ubstntlt fails to cure the dorault, Gibson Water may elect to pursue civailable !eoal 
mmr::di{:)S including, witl1ou1 limitation, the termination of water service. 
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10, Tuml.91.M,~~eg.rr.!fillt and Extenslo11. This Agreement shall be in effect 
!m o pcirind of 20 yenn1 from the date first written above and thmeaftar shall 
m1lomntic;ally ron~w for zuc;oosslvs 1~year terms, unless either Party is notified in writing 
fly lho other pt'ifl~' wllhln 6 months prior to expiration of the inilial or any succcssiv~ 
renew<il term. 

11. W,!:!!_q!:.$Z!:Will\' r·:'1!11;!.@. Gibson Water shall not be liable lo Haubstadt for 
f()i\lng to supply w~tt:r p1,1muanl t.o this Agreement when water is not avnilable due to 
cm1ses b~yond tho control of Gibson Water. Gibson Water shall provide Haubstadt wilh 
i.is much C'.ldvance 110lloo as pcsslblr: In !he event lhal Gibson Water Is unnble to provide 
lho raqulred WrJlor supply to Haubstadt. Haubstadt shall be permitted to purchase 
w~1tnr, 1.hiring riuch time that sufficient waler Is not available from Gibson Weiter. from 
o!lt~r source::::, if avz1lhlblo. H~ubstac.11 acknowledges that the wator supply for Gibson 
Wvler Is obtained fmm 1ho C!ty of Evansville pursuant to a contractual Agreement with 
IM City or Ev~111sVil1f; W1:1ter Deparlment. However, Gibson Water shall use due care 
<itrld dlligenoo not t•.J m~l<a commitments to sell more waler from Gibson Water's supply 
lh~1n orm br-J rnasonably oblt.llned through Gibson Water's contractu~l Agreement \vilti 
li1~ City of gvansvmo Wnlt~r Q1;)partmenl. Notwithstanding such commitment, should a 
slll)lti:1ge of walN acc1Jr, then Gibson Water agrees that it will fairly and cquit~1bly 
npportion the supply r-.M:iilzible batween all of Its customers, including Haubstadt. In the 
avr.:nt of lhfl need for irnplen1entation of water use rationing, curmllment or c:onserv;:ilion. 
Gibson Water shall not ffjqulre Haubstadt to reduce its consumption to a greater dGgreo 
lt1Hn lllat is requlroci of its other customers. 

r. 

12. ~.D.9Jl..TJ..Q.C.flon Control bevlces. Haubstadt shall, at its own 
m<penso, ba responsli>h1 for' lhe Jnstalltition and maintenance of any cross connecfion 
c.o!llrol [lovices a$ am neceS}Sary and required pursuant to 410 1.A.C. 6.22~8-1~11, and 
Gibson Wator'fi roq~tlraments. Haubstadt shall construct, own, maintain, control, and be 
re.spon$Jblc for ;:ill Cl'Or:;s connection control devices, the water line that connects 
H::JubRtad\'s syst0m to Gib~10n Water's meter, and all tap-ins on said connecting line 
ccnistrncted, owned, C'md rncilntoined hy Haubstadt. 

13. Ela£11n~;<1.2L.R~t'{.g Capnclty. If at any time during the lerm of tills 
''rJrccment, GitJson Water 1'€la$onably determines on U1e basis oi sound and accepted 
Crr1(1lncorlng practlco tl1at HnubslCJdt's fUture increased usage threatens to exceed 
G!l.isc1n Watnr1

ti al>ility Lo provide WC1ter in sufficient quantities to all customers, Gibson 
WritOr nwy rcqu\ro HmillfitarJL to pt1rchase reserve capacity ior such future increased 
ll!>fl!JO. Such rf.!sorvo cnpociLy arnounl shall be mutually agreed upon by Lhe Partle$. 

14. A:wt1m1l:!l!l!Y ..... This Agreement or any right or duty hereunder cannot be 
cis~;igned w!t11oul writlt')n c:1pproval of both Partles. 
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15. S©.f!i.ft.J! Etfpct. This Agreement shaH be binding on the successors, 
Rprirov(ld ossl,gns, and Lruski('!s of eacll party, 

1 u. £'.JlPLQ.'l<aL.Q.Q.UllD.U{JP~ This Agreement shall be coritingent upon 
approw1I of tho same by the lndiRna Utility Regulatory Commission and shall have an 
cffoclive dal0 cont:urront to lll13 date of si,.teh approval. · 

IN WITNESS WHER~OF, the Parlles hereto, c:1cting under authority of their 
re~pcr.tive executivci bodic:~. cause 1his Agreement to be duly executed in two 
c;;oi.tn1mparts, ecich of which shall constitute an original. 

GIBSON WATER, INC. 

'4~ zzih 
President 

DATED this - •.. J ... ,_ d;ay of . /Jl.fff..e/.f 2010. 

f\T'fGST: 

-~e~~&~1 (\~J~1,~:-·---~~--~·--
0orm10 rnQ11t:r1 i!:.lorl\-T fc:c:isurer 
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15. Binding Effecl This Agreement ,shall be binding on the successors, 
approved assign's; and trustees of each party. 

16. Approval Contingency. Thi$ Agreement s~all, ,be contingent upon 
approval of. the same by the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission and shall have an 
effective date concurrent to the date of such approval. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto, acting under authority .of their 
respective executive bodies, cause this Agreement to be duly executed jrt two 
counterparts, each of which shall constitute an ariglflaL 

OA TED this / 7 day of _.,,....~~f~b~if'_vt ....... ~=1<:::-0-· .,..,.. ....... __.,..,. 2010. 

·GIBSON WATER, INC, 

President · 

DATED this ___ day of..,... ___ ___,. ____ 2010. 

ATIEST: 

Bonnie Wagner, Clerk-Treasurer 
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TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HAUBSTADT 

Kenneth Reinbrecht, Preside.nl 

Harry MarUn, Council Member 

Michael Ballard, Council Member 



Toyota Motor Manufacturing, Indiana 
Water Sales Agreement 



WATER SALEAND PURCHASE CONTRACT 

THIS AGREEMENT, for the sale and purchase of water, II1ade and entered into Oil. 

the 1st dar of March, 1997, by and between GIBSON WATER, INC., a Not,-For-Profit 

Corporation pursuant to the Indiana Not-For-Profit Act of 1971, hereinafter referred to as 

SELLER, and TOYOTA MOTOR MANUFACT.l]RING, INDIANA, INC.; hereinafter 

referred to as PURCHASER, WITNESSETH: 

prnREAS, PURCHASER is constructing a man,ufacturing faeility nearPrinceton, 

Gibson County, Indiana, and i$ connected by a new pipeline to SELLER,s waterdistrioutibn 

system, and PURCHASER desires an adequate and substaI1tial supply o~ reliable water for 

its plant, and to accomplish its purpose of Obtaining such water supply PURCHASER has 

entered into negotiations with SELLER which have culminated in this Contractual 

Agreement, an,d 

WHEREAS, SELLER owns and operates a water supply distribution system with 

rights to supply and a capacity currently capable of serving the present plant needs of 

PURCHASER and providing.water through SELLER's distribution system tol'URCHASER 

at its plant in Gibson County, Indiana,, in the quantity hereh1aft;er agreed to by the parties, 

and 

WHEREAS, PURCHASER has corporate and legal authority to enter into this 

Contract and to purchase water from SELLER as provided in this Contract, and SELLER 

has been authorized to sell water to PURCHASER, in a.ccordance with this Contract and 

approval thereof by the Board of Directors of Gibson Water, Inc. 

NOW; THEREFORE, in consideration cf the foregoing, and additional mutual and 

valid con~ideration as set forth hereinafter, the parties mutually agree as follows: 



1. SELLER agrees to furnish PURCHASER at the point of delivery hereinafter 

specified, during the term of this Contract; and any renewal or extensi.on hereof, potable 

treated water, meeting applicable purity standards of the Public Water Supply Section of the 

Indiana Department of Environmental Management and Indiana Department Of Natural. 

Resources, but not presently exceeding a maximum quantity of one million (1,000,000) 

gallons U.S. per day, unless SELLER gives its express written approval to any excedence in 

said quantity. 
•'::... . 

t 
i~ SELLER's water will be furnished to PURCHASER at a reasonably constant 

· normal pressure (approximately 80 psi) from SELLER's supply main which shall be of 

appropriate dimension~ therefor. The connection and delivery and take point shall be 

owned by SELLER and located· on PURCHASER's property at [DESCRIPTION OF 

LOCATION OF METER PITJ. 

The actual cosf of connection between SELLER's main and PURCHASER's take 

point shall be determined by SELLER and submitted to PURCHASER and such costs shall 

be paid by PURCHASER in advance of the connection. If a lesser or greater pressure than 

that available at.the point of delivery is required l>.Y the PURCHASER, the reasonable cost 

of providing such lessor or greater pressure shall be borne by PURCHASER Emergency 

failure. of pressure or supply due to equipment or pipe· brea}{.s) power failure, flood, fife am;l· 

use of water to fight fire, earthquake or any other catastrophe or event of force majeure 

shall excuse the SELLER from its obligations hereunder for such reasonable period of time 

as may be necessary to restore service. PURCHASER sh:;\ll. be responsible for payment of 

all reasonable costs and expense of SELLER for any additions, extensions, changes or 



improvements of SELLER's system which are necessary and utilized exclusively to supply 

water to PURCHASER, including but not limited to any pump modifications.and additions, 

meters and a metering pit, orifice aiid pressure regulator; backflow prevention equipIJ1ent, 

and connection; PURCHASER shall also become a member of Gibson Water Company, 

Inc. and pay the membership fee of $100.00; reimburse SELLER for all reasonable' 

professional fees and expenses pertaining• to connection of and service by ·SELLER to 

PURCHASER; and PURCHASER shall pay SELLER a tap in fee which shall consist of 
(l .. 

any difference between SELLER's estimate of costs, expenses, fees and services involved in 

connecting PURCHASER to SELLER's system and meter and the provision of water an~l 

service.by SELLER to PURCHASER, andthe actual total cost thereof, it being the express 

agreement and, foten,t of the parties that SELLER shall not incur any out of pocket cost in 

connecting PURCHASER tb its systern and providing ·water supply a,nd service to 

PURCHASER. 

3. SELLER shall operate and maintain at its own expense· at the sai<i point of 

delivery, the necessary standard metering equipm.ent for properly measuring the quantity of 

water delivered to the PURCHASER anti to initially calibrate such metering equipment and 

to calibrate such· metering equipment whenever requested by the PURCB.ASE:R but not 

more frequently than once every tWelve (12) months. A meter registering not more than two 

percent (2%)·above or below the test results will be deemed to be accurate. The previous 

readings of any meter disclosed, by tests to be inaccurate to the extent of more than 2% shall 

be corrected for the two (2) months previous to such tests in accordance with the percentage 
. . 

of inaccuracy in excess of 2% found by such tests. If any meter fails to register for any 
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period, the amount of water furnished dui;ing such. period shall be deemed to.be the amount 

of water delivered in the corresponding period immediately prior to the failure, unless the, 

SELLER and PURCHASER agree upon a different amount. The metering equipment shall 

be read monthly. An appropriate official of the PURCHASER shall have access to the 

meter for the purpose of verifying its readings at all reasonable times. 

4. SELLER shall furnish the PURCHASER, before the 10th day of each month, 

an iterni~ed billing of the amount of water furnished the PURCHASER in the preceding 
.:·.\.. 

month, ~md PURCHASER sbq.U pay said bill, absent any objection, by the 25th day of the 

biliing month; provided however; if the bill is not provided byfore the 10th day of the month; .. 

then PURCHASER shall pay the bill, absent any objectitiri, by the 25th day of the month 

immediately following the billing month. 

5. PURCHASER agrees to purchase all of its water needs and supply during the 

term hereof up to the maximum of 1,000,000 gallons per day 11-orn SELLE~. The parties 

acknowledge the following estimated schedule of water usage which schedule is subject to 

modification by rnutual agreement or due to changed circumstan~es: 

Average Gallons/Day To be Available Not Later Than 

200,000 March; 1997 

400,000 February, 1998 

800,000 September, 1998 

6. Quantities of water in excess of 1,000,000 gallons per day may be purcha:sed 

by PURCHASER from SELLER, subject to engineerjng and system constraints, for a period 

tlf time not to exceed seven (7) days by notifying SELLER not later than twenty-fo11r(24:) 
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hours prior to the time that said additional water shall be·tak~n and receiving approval from 

SELLER to draw the additional water. Additional quantities of\vatet may be purchased for 

a period of time greater than seven (7) days by submitting a written request to SELLER at 

least fourteen (14) days in advance specifying the a9ditional quantity and the specific days 

it is to be taken. Before the additional water is take11, the request must be approved in 

writing by SELLER. The parties acknowledge that one purpose for ·the .. requirement of 

obtaining prior apptovall:1efore additional water can be taken is to prevent PURCHASER 
~-. . { . 

from placing unscheduled peak demands upon SELLER's system or supply which could not 

be fulfilled by SELLER. The SELLER shall not Withhold approval tmreasonably. The 

SELLER may, however, require PURCHASER to purchase additional res.erve or 

reservoir/storage capacity· if continued additional usage threatens to exceed the SELLER's 

ability to proVide water in sufficient quantities to all customers. In the. event that 

PURCHASER takes more water than .. its maximum daily quantitywithout obtaining prior 

approval, tben a su:rcharge shall be pajd by PURCHASER of fifty cents ($.50) per one 

thousand (1,000) U.S. gallons taken each day in excess of the maximum daily quantity of 

1,000,000 gallons. 

7. PURCHASERshall also pay SELLER as foliows: 

PURCHASER shall pay to SELLER ,each month for water delivered by 

SELLER to PURCHASER one c;lollar and six cents ($1.06) per each one thousand 

(1,000) U.S. gallons taken from SELLER with no monthly demand charge for the 

initial term hereof. Said rate, Sl:lbject to regulatory approval, s)Jall be fixed for an 

initial period of three (3) years. The volume charges to PURCHASER shall be 
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measureo by the volume registered at the metering. point on a monthly basis. In 

addition to· the. above •stated chargesi PURCHASER acknowledges that SELLER 

purchases .its water supply from the City of Evans\iille, Indiana, and tltat any increase 

in the charge th.at City of ]3vansVille makes to SELLER $hallbe l?assed tl;rrou$h and 

tracker;! by SELLER to PURCHASER and that PURCHASER, shall pay SELLER 

-f~i; all such charges. 
'·· 

... , \ 
The parties acknowledge and agree that the one dollar and six cents ($1.Q~) 

Jer 1,000 gallons charge, without a monthly demand charge; to be paid by 

PURCHASER to SELLER has been calculated ~nd set on the basis of SELLER's. 

sales, rates and financials existent atthe date of this Agreement an(! ate .s.ubje~t to· 

:approval ofthe Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission, and that such approval is a 

condition prece.dent to the· effectiveness of this Agreement. The parties further 

recognize and expressly agree that SELLER ha,s the right to petition the Indiana 

Utility Regulatory Commission for an increase in the aforesaid rates from time to 

ti.me and that this Agreement shall be subject to any change; amendment, increase 

or deerease · in the. tariffs ·and rates initially ·charged by SELLER under this 

Agreell1ent pursuant to the approval of the Indiana.Utility Regulatory Commission 

and PURCHASER shall pay such tariff and rate applicable to it that is lawfully 

chargeable by SELLER at any time during the term of this Agreement1 including but 

not limited to any new or additional tariffs, rates and charges that may be in effect 

at any time during the term hereof. 
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Meters and regulatory equipment shall be accessible to authorized employees 

of PURCHASER at all reasonable ti.illeS. Volume reports shall be submitted by 

SELLER to PURCHAsERWith,each monthly billing. PURCHASER shall have the 

right to make an audit, at reasonable times; of the SELLEWs books and records to 

the extent necessary to verify the SELLER's calculation of the water taken by 

P~RCHASER and SELL.BR's billings therefor. 
,. 

·:;~ 

t 

This Contract shall extend for a period of ten (10) years from the date first 

above Mitten and continue t)Jereafter for successive one (1) year periods unless and until 

either party give~ tbe other at least ninety (90) days.advance written notice of termination 

as of the end of the 'initial ten (10) year tetm or ~s ofth.e end of any successor period. 

9; The charges for water shail be effective after approval thereof by the Indiana 

Utility Regulatory Commission and as of the dat.e of completion of construction of the 

connection between SELLER and PURCHASER, and at the time that notice of availability 

of water at the point of connection is served upon the PURCHASER by SELLER, and 

upon PURCliASER's payment of all expenses and ce>sts as provided for; herein, and upon. 

PURCHASER's take of water through SELLER's meter'at the point of epnnection~ Until 

all of the foregoing occur, and until this Contract is finally approved by the· Indiana Utility 

Regulatory Commission, all water taken by PURCHASER from SEILER shallb~ purchased· 

and paidfor by PURCHASER pursuantto SELLER's applicable standard existing tariff and 

rates; 

10; SELLER reserves the right to either increase or decrease its rates and charges 

for water from time to time as may be required based upon the SELLER's operating 
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experience, government regulations, and. changes in supplier prices, all as approved by the 

lndiana Utility Regulatory Conmtission, provided however that the. in,itial rate provided in 

Paragraph l hereof sha11 be fiXed for ail initial period of three (3) years - subject to 

Regulatory approval 

11. SELLER shall not be Hable to the PURCHASER for failingto supply water 

pursuant. to this Contract when water is physically not available. due to causes beyond the 
·,. 

control of the SELLER. PURCHASER acknowledges that the watet supply for the 
:>-"<: 

t 
SELLER is obtained fr6rn the qty of Evansville pursuant to a contractuaJ agreement with 

the City of Evansville Water Department, However, the SELLER shall riot make 

commitments to seU i:note water from the SELLER~s supply then can be reasonably obtained 

through the SELLER's contn1ctual agreement With the City of Evansville Water 
. . 

Department. NotW:ithstanding.such commitment, should a shortage of water occur, then the 

SELLER agrees tha:t it wi11 fair~y and equitably apportion the supply avail~ble between all 

of its customers, including the PURCHASER In the event of a need for implementation 

.of water use rationing, curtailment or conversion, SELLER shall riot require PURCHASER 

to reduce its consumption to a greatc:r degree than that reqµired of its other customers, 

unless an emergency exists. 

12. PURCHASER shall install and maintain1 or cause to be installed and 

maintained, at its own e;cpense such cross connection control device(s) as are necessary and 
. . 

required pursuant to 410 1AC6.22_,8;.I-11, and SELLER's requirements. PURCHASER 

shall construct, own; maintain, control and be responsible for aU cross connection control 

devices, the water line that coiln~cts tM PURCHASER's system to SELLER's meter and 
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all tap-ins on said connecting line constructed, owned and maintained by PURCHASER. 

PURC!fASER shCllHdso be solely responsible fo:r the quality and distribution of all water 

after it has passed through SELLER's meter at the point of connection on PURCHASER's 

property. PURCHASER has agreed to be solely responsible for water requjred for 

PURCHASER's fire protection. 

13• That if any time during the life of this Contract, it becomes apparent on the' 

basis of ~ound and accepted engineering practice, that the daily amount of wate.r tb be 
I' . . . 

deliverea to PURCHASER is inadequate to meet the PURCHASER's water supply needs, 

then the said daily. quantity of water may be. increased by supplemental agreement if 

mutually accepted by both parties. 

14. This Contract and any right or qµty hereunder cannot be ~.ssigned without· 

written approval of both.parties. 

15. This Contract shall be binding on the successors, appr.oved assigns, and 

trustees of each party and shall be governed by Indiana law, 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, acting underproper legal autbonty 

have caused this Contract to be duly executed in two (2) counterparts, each of which shall 

constitute and original. 

SELLER: 

::sON WAUfJL 
President · 

/-27-'f? 
I 
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ATTEST~ 

.!--=: .... .. 
116?20 ~ 

l 
PURCHASER: j 
TOYOTA MOTOR MANUFACTURING, 
INDIANA, INC. ,; t 

. 2 3p;9f, 

By: ~.kl 
Its: 

I 
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